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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEHE Financial data 2017 2018 2019
(U FETIT) (expressed in HK$000)
BEBEBEEBEE  Including continuing operations and
BRIEEERY discontinued operation
S Turnover 299,670 87,824 38,307
EM(EH) Gross profit (loss) 38,754 5424 (2,574)
AREERA Profit for the year attributable to owners
eI REFE R of the Company (237,098) (1,320,525) (1,045,306)
HIBRFE B 1 E KM Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
i Bl 2 A and amortisation (115748) (1,182,380) (871,971)
EERE Total borrowings 1,749,884 1,766,720 1,754,002
RNARHEA ANEIGH#ESZ  Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 2,034,129 650,053 (391,978)
FHEBER (H77#5) Average capital employed (note 5) 2,772,396 2,466,652 1,543,784
WY BB &%  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 18,598 12,101 6,919
KRRFHEBABMGEEFR Net asset (liability) attributable to owners
FEE(RE)E of the Company per share (HK$)
(B) (Bzt1) (note /) 0.466 0.149 (0.090)
R LL & Financial ratios
FEFEARBIHHR (f77#2) Return on capital employed (note 2) (42%) (47.9%) (56.5%)
MENLL K (H3E3) Current ratio (note 3) 1.10 1.33 0.68
RENLLE (HiF4) Quick ratio (note 4) 1.05 129 0.67
Bt - Note:
I ARABEA = ARAHEA -~ FEEEAR I, Net asset attributable to = Equity attributable to = Number of issued shares
EEEREE iR HEE owners of the Company owners of the Company at year end
EfE per share
) EREAEE = MKEFE - THERER 2. Return on capital = Earnings before interest, = Average capital employed
BWomERE (Hiits) employed tax, depreciation and (note 6)
HAEF amortisation
3. mENE - RBEE + RBAR 3. Current ratio = Current assets = Current liabilities
4. BE)LE - (RBDEEF + RBER 4. Quick ratio = (Current assets - -~ Current liabilities
%) Inventories)
5. FHERER = 5. Average capital employed = [(Total equity + non-current borrowing) + (last year

ERREE L EERDER))
)

4 FEMABRERE (£8)ERA[ ¢ 2019F 5K

total equity + last year non-current borrowing)] = 2
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HEEE-

RESULTS SUMMARY

The Group has been operating in an extremely challenging market
environment, despite its efforts, the results of the operations for the current
year have not improved. The turnover for the year 2019 for continuing
operations comprised sales of wind energy related products of approximately
HK$12.3 million and operation of wind power field of approximately
HK$26.0 million whereas that of 2018 comprised sales of wind energy
related products of approximately HK$33.7 million, and operation of wind

power field of approximately HK$25.4 million.

For the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group's turnover from
continuing operations amounted to approximately HK$38.3 million as
compared to that of 2018 of approximately HK$59.1 million, representing
HK$20.8 million or 35.2% decrease in turnover; the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$1,045.3 million as compared to that of 2018 of approximately
HK$1,320.5 million, representing HK$275.2 million or 20.8% decrease in loss

attributable to the owners of the Company, which was attributable mainly to:

Sales dropped during the year, resulting in a loss before taxation from
continuing operations of approximately HK$991.9 million, as compared
to HK$1,233.5 million for the year ended 3| December 2018,

representing an decrease of approximately HK$241.6 million; and

2. Asaresult of the changing in market environment during the year, the
results of the operations have not improved as well as the collection
of accounts receivables falling below expectations, a significant
impairment loss from continuing operations was recorded on the
relevant assets of approximately HK$669.3 million for the year, of
which impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, prepayment and inventories of approximately HK$100.3 million
was included in the other gains and losses; approximately HK$569.0
million was included in the impairment losses on financial assets and

contract assets.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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3. Due to the significant decline in the results of operations of certain
joint ventures and associates during the year, the net share of profit
of joint ventures and associates was approximately HK$26.3 million,

amongst them, including:

a.  the Group recorded the share of profit of a joint venture of
approximately HK$31.4 million, which was, compared to the
year ended 3| December 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$44.8 million. This was due to the structural
changes in Chinese auto-motive market, which resulted in a

significant reduction in orders from major customers; and

b.  the Group recorded the share of losses of associates of
approximately HK$5.1 million, which was, compared to the
year ended 3| December 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$124.7 million. This was due to an associate
and its affiliates were filed for bankruptcy liquidation by creditors
due to defaults of contract debt during the year 31 December
2018.

Considering the uncertain prospects of engineering application of the
technologies under development and the limitations of commercialisation,
the Company has decided to discontinue the research and development on
graphene and energy storage, and discontinue the energy storage segment. A

provision for asset impairment of such segment was HK$49.5 million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Wind Power Generation Business

Further to Document No. 52 announced by the National Energy
Administration (“NEA") in 2017 which continued to affect the Group's wind
turbine business, the Document No. 47 was published in 2018 with the aim
of eliminating non-technical costs. During the year, the National Development
and Reform Commission (“NDRC") announced the Notice on Improvement
of Policies Regarding On-Grid Tariff of Wind Power ( (R EEEE L4
EEBEABA) ) (Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 882), which stipulated that
the on-grid tariff of all newly approved centralised onshore wind power
projects shall be determined through competition. The wind power industry
is entering an era of subsidies deduction and comprehensive competition
on the basis of cost per KWh, which presents tremendous challenges to
the business development and business model of the Group's wind turbine

business segment.

With reference to the announcement of the Group dated 29 July 2019
and 17 September 2019, the Group value the importance of continuous
improvement, and the task force will continuous to review the Group's
existing safety systems and procedures with the main objective to step up
more stringent checks and better safeguards in line with the best practices

and industry standards.

Wind Farm Operations

The wind farms operated by the Group include the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Farm in which the Group holds a controlling interest, which provides a
capacity of 24,650KW with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines. The three wind
farms invested in and constructed by the Group include the Jilin Longyuan
Tongyu Wind Farm providing a capacity of 200,000KW with 236 sets of
850KW wind turbines; the Jiangsu Longyuan Rudong Wind Farm providing
a capacity of 150,000KW with 100 sets of |.5MW wind turbines; and the
Inner Mongolia Datang Wanyuan Xinghe Wind Farm providing a capacity of
49,500KW with 55 sets of 900KW direct-drive wind turbines.

Revenue contributions to the Group from the aforesaid wind farm

operations remained relatively stable.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Business of Automotive Engine Management Systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co,, Ltd, a joint venture
of the Group, is a major supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel
injection market. It continued to report a decline in operating results for
2019 due to the downside pressure in the macro-economy and national
policies such as imminent implementation of the National Stage 6 Emission

Standards.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

For the six major risk categories in 2019 as assessed by the Group, namely
policy risks, operational risks, financing risks, quality risks, technology risks and
safety, the Company has devised corresponding risk management and control

measures, the details of which are as follows:

(I) Policy Risks

In 2019, the NDRC announced the Notice on Improvement of Policies
Regarding On-Grid Tariff of Wind Power ( (BN T ERE LHE
BHERMOEAN) ) (Fa Gai Jia Ge [2019] No. 882), which stipulated
that the on-grid tariff of all newly approved centralised onshore wind
power projects shall be determined through competition. Relevant
policies, such as those in relation to grid price competition and grid
parity, were announced in succession and the adjustments had a very
significant impact on the Group's principal business segments. The
Group continued to enhance its prospective study on national macro
policies and industry developments, making timely adjustments to its
market coverage and allocation of resources in accordance with its

strategies.
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Operational Risks

The intensive introduction of national policies marked the wind
power industry's formal entry into an era of subsidies deduction
and comprehensive competition on the basis of cost per KWh with
intensified industry competition, which has seriously undermined
the profitability of wind turbine equipment manufacture. The Group
is actively devising a strategy for product cost reduction based on
considerations in various factors, such as research and development,
market, procurement and maintenance, among others, in a bid to

enhance the general competitiveness of its products.

Financing Risks

The wind turbine manufacturing business typically commands a
high level of capital investment, and the shortfall in working capital
is met mainly through financing from financial institutions, resulting
in a relatively high gearing ratio and therefore more pressure on
profitability and financing ability. The Group will continue to strengthen
its effort in the settlement for sales and actively exploring other

financing channels.

Quality Risks

Quality risks arise from key parts and components sourced externally,
the production process of which mainly relies on the suppliers
own control and management. The Group will continue to control
quality risks by enhancing the operation of quality assurance system,
comprehensively sorting out and solving quality issues, establishing
quality issue communication mechanism, formulating and strictly

implementing systematic solutions as well as other measures.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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(H) # o R (V) Technology Risks
XRBIETELRARRMESNY Under the impact of grid parity and technology advancement of wind
2 mEHRAKRRELE FENKH power industry, the market has put forward higher requirements for
ETRTERMER - REESBERRT safe, reliable and economical operation of wind turbine equipment. The
B 5T & FEhAE R R T E R M R R Group will continue to optimize the adaptive design and improvement
B HEBILSCADAR R A Ri& s of the main bearing shaft system, improve the solution design and
B B e o i 5 L e A B e ) i B implementation and transformation of the SCADA system as well as
A B EETRE R Y adopting other technological transformation and upgrade in relation
BESEX RAZERE ReEAE to wind turbines, in order to increase the operational stability and
BRMARE - reliability of wind turbines, reduce the failure rate, improve power

generation efficiency and enhance the utilization level of wind power

resources.

() RZ2A® (VI) Safety risks
MR EEE PRI EREEX EIR The operation and maintenance of wind turbine equipment involves
EESRRIEE BBEEBNERE high risk works such as high-altitude operation and electrician
L% ER2ERETIMAER T A operation, which are normal operation and could lead to work safety
REBEEREEW - FEBEREES accidents in the absence of sufficient safety management and control.
BEEREB TR BREXZEREML The Group will further consolidate the operation and maintenance
TEREEBHNE BRERBELEE platform, implement safety management responsibility, optimize safety
2 ZEBERSE MAREIEG management system, tighten on-site safety management and strengthen
BHROGRIELEER- special inspection and closed-loop rectification measures so as to

continuously standardize and enhance safety management.

10 REMXBREE (£8)ERAT 20195 K
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PROSPECTS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2020,
the wind turbines manufacture business, which is the main business in
the wind energy related product segment of the Group, have difficulties
in fulfilling all the requirements of productions orders given: (a) there are
difficulties in the combination of power network by the end of 2020 as a
result of our suppliers’ difficulties in delivering certain key ancillary equipment
in wind power generation manufacturing project(s) of the Company as
affected, among others, by the recent outbreak of the COVID-19 disease; and
(b) there are currently no pipeline orders for the wind turbines manufacture
business while the wind turbines manufacture business is conducted based on

a made-to-order model.

The demand for the manufacture of wind energy products is expected to be
materially affected as the termination of the fiscal subsidy mechanism to the
wind energy industry (the “Subsidy Policy”) which will be effective from the
end of 2020 and all non-combined wind farms will not be able to entitle to

the Subsidy Policy after the effectiveness of such termination.

It is increasingly difficult for the Company to acquire new orders for the wind
turbines manufacture business as there are still unsolved technical deficiencies
and quality issues associated with the certain wind turbine products of the
Company.

The Company has taken steps to attempt to address the challenges to its
wind turbines manufacture business, and as of the date of this report, the
Company continues to operate business in providing maintenance services

for wind energy related products and in operation of wind farms.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 3| December 2019, the Group had 12 employees (3|1 December
2018: 18 employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 342 employees (31
December 2018: 439 employees) in the offices of the PRC. Remuneration of
employee is determined according to individual employee's performance and
the prevailing trends in different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The
Group also provides Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its
employees. In addition, discretionary performance bonus is available at the

discretion of the Directors.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

All the borrowings of the Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's fixed
interest rate borrowings amounted to HK$ 1,754 million as compared to that
of HK$1,767 million as at 31 December 2018. All borrowings of the Group
were determined at market interest rate. The Group has not issued any

financial instrument for hedging or other purpose.

Financial Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's debt to asset ratio and debt ratio
were |11 and 0.56, represented by the ratio of total liabilities to total assets

and the ratio of total borrowings to total assets respectively (31 December
2018:0.84 and 0.41).

Financial Position

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a combination
of internal resources generated from operations and borrowings. The Group
had pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents of HK$78 million as at
31 December 2019, a decrease of HK$ || million compared to HK$89 million
as at 31 December 2018.
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Distribution to Shareholders

There was no distribution to the Company's shareholders in the year 2019
(2018: nil).

Pledge of Assets

Other than stated under the section of “Subsequent non-adjusting event” in

this report, no material assets of the Group have been pledged.

Exchange Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, several subsidiaries of the Company are
involved in 16 outstanding legal proceedings in relation to contract payment
disputes with business counterparties with an aggregate claim amount of
approximately HK$386 million. In addition, there are five concluded legal
proceedings with a total unsatisfied claim amount of approximately HK$59
million against several subsidiaries of the Company which are also in relation
to contract payment disputes with business counterparties. The relevant
amounts are due considered and accrued for in the consolidated financial

statements as at 31 December 2019.

Other than those stated above, the Group did not have any significant legal

proceedings.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Subsequent non-adjusting event

On 25 December 2019, the Group entered into the loan agreement for a
RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$330,000,000) loan facility
to be provided by a wholly owned subsidiary of the controlling shareholder,
which are to be secured by the share charge over all the shares held by the
Group in the joint venture, Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management
Systems Co., Ltd.

Such loan agreement and the share charge are approved by the independent
shareholders on 8 March 2020.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Zhiwei, aged 54, master degree holder, served as deputy general
manager of Beijing Wanyuan Industrial and Trading Company and chief of
the project development department of Beijing Wanyuan Industry Co,
Ltd. from 1998 to 2005, and as deputy general manager of Beijing CASC
Coal Chemical Engineering and Technology Corporation Limited (currently
known as Aerospace Changzheng Chemical Engineering Co,, Ltd.), general
manager of Tai'an Aerospace Special Vehicle Co., Ltd. and deputy general
manager of Aerospace Changzheng Rocket Industrial Co. Ltd., the Chief
of Business and Investment Department of CALT from 2005 to 2017. He
has been vice chairman, general manager and the Chief of Science and
Technology Committee of Beijing CASC Science and Technology Corporation
Limited from 2017 to October 2019. He has been vice chief of Science and
Technology Committee of CALT and chairman of Beijing CASC Science
and Technology Corporation Limited since October 2019. Mr. Liu has also
reserved as director of Changzheng Engineering Co., Limited (Shanghai Stock
Exchange stock code: 603698) from April 2015 to July 2018 and chairman
of the supervisory committee of China Satellite Communications Co., Ltd.
(Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 601698) from June 2017 to August
2019.

Mr. Li Lei, aged 46, master degree holder, served at a good amount of
departments of CALT, since 1996, including vice-chief of the Industrial
Development Department, vice-chief of the Business and Investment
Department, head of management office of Human Resource Department
and head of management office of Operation and Investment Department of

CALT. Mr. Li has been the director of Astrotech since August 2018.
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Mr. Han Qingping, aged 55, master degree holder served as deputy
general manager of Beijing Wanyuan Industry Co., Ltd. vice chairman and
general manager of Ares. Co. and president of China Asia Pacific Mobile
Communications Satellite Co., Ltd. from 2004 to 2016, as president of China
Changzheng Rocket Co,, Ltd. from May 2016 to September 2017 and as vice-
chairman of China Changzheng Rocket Co., Ltd. from September 2017 to
October 2019.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 51, master degree holder, he was qualified as a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Since November 2005,
he had successively been the Chief Accountant with subsidiaries of CALT,
namely, Long March Aerospace Control Engineering Corporation, CALT
Institute 18, and Aerospace Research Institute of Materials & Processing

Technology.

Mr.Wang Guanghui, aged 49, master degree holder, served as head of the
finance department of nineteen office of CALT from 2002 to 2009. He has
been head of capital operation office and investment management office of
Business and Investment Department of CALT from 2009 to 2018 and head
of capital operation office of Industrial Development Department of CALT
from 2018 to October 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, age 48, master degree holder is currently a
practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Lau is currently the company secretary of BBMG Corporation (stock
code: 2009.HK) since August 2008, an executive Director of Future World
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 572.HK) since January 2014, an
independent non-executive director of Sinopharm Tech Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8156.HK) since January 2020, an independent non-executive
director of Tenwow International Holdings Limited (in provisional liquidation)
(stock code: 1219.HK) since November 2018, Artini Holdings Limited (stock
code: 789.HK) since April 2008, Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (stock
code: 1192.HK) since March 2014 and HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2323.HK) since March 2016. Mr. Lau was an independent non-
executive director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8238.HK)
between April 2019 and November 2019, and a non-executive director of
Alltronics Holdings Limited (stock code: 833. HK) between March 2017 and
December 2018.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 55, master degree holder, he was qualified as a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and Hong Kong in 1994. He has been
the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital Market, Asia of an international law
firm since July 2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin
Brown & Wood, Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan
& Hartson, Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 1100) and ZTE Corporation (stock code: 763), the companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 63, PhD degree holder, processing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had
been the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the
years 2001 to 2003; Chief Information Officer, and Chairman of Technology
Management Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the
years from 2003 to 2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial
Technology during the years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013
to May 2015. He has been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial
Group, offering the perspective on technology and risk management to the
group since June 2015. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive
director of LUZHENG FUTURES Company Limited (stock code: 1461).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 55, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing Long
March Hi-Tech Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief
Engineer and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy
General Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development
Centre of Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd. He has been appointed as
General Manager Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW
wind turbine of the Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a
Vice President of the Company on 26 August 2010.

Mr. Shen Jian, aged 56, a senior engineer, graduated from China Textile
University majoring in mechanical design. For the period from 1993 to
2011, he has been an engineer of the technology department, deputy
director and director of the equipment factory of Beijing Long March Hi-
tech Corporation, general manager of Beijing Aerospace Sanjin Technology
Development Company, and deputy general manager and general manager
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen has over |2 years of extensive
experience in the wind power equipment manufacturing industry. He was
appointed as an assistant to president of the Company in February 2011 and

was appointed as a Vice President of the Company on 30 March 2017.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note

45 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on pages 85 to 86.

The Directors adopt a dividend policy on 24 December 2018. Detail terms

of the policy are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019. No dividend has been declared by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business performance, business review, financial review as well as prospects
and strategies of the Group are set out in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis™ in this annual report. Certain key financial indicators
are provided in the section “Group Financial Highlights™ in this annual report.
Since the end of the financial year under review, save as disclosed in this
annual report, there are no significant events that have a material impact on

the Group.
CHARITABLE DONATION
There was no donation made by the Group during the year (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note |8 to the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.



B &

AARBAZFBERGER
37 ¢

B REM T

MR HEXKROFLFR LTHES

REEARARAEAMEARMERE

HESXBLARDAMEMERES-

ErREE

RERIFASHEEOZRE (ﬁt%ﬁi$
RRBRLPIARERRELNNA) -
EAELCEERE-

FRREE R

—NEF AR T AL RN
gl
] 7 iR G 0

—NEF+ZRA=+—8 AR2ARE
REREERENE (REE) (—AA—
FEIFED  LERE RIBE) st ER A D
EKEEARZ (ZF—/\F: 47164,215000/%
TC) o AN 8] A 3 K 3K 51 AR BT AR R A
B mERAR EE’M%XPWE' HERTIRZ
BRESRIRNRER  AAREHNKRAE
ERBIETABEER JE@E’ME%‘

ESTREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2019, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 3|1 December 2019, calculated
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted to nil (2018: approximately
HK$164,215,000). The share premium account of the Company is available
for distribution or paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Articles and provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its

debts immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date

of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhiwei (Chairman)
(appointed on 7 November 20/9)
Mr. Li Lei (Vice-Chairman)
(appointed on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Han Qingping (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as executive director on 7 November 2019 and

as chief executive officer on 2 December 20/9)

Mr. Xu Jun (Financial Controller)
Mr. Wang Guanghui

(appointed on 2 December 2019)
Mr. Liu Xiaowei

(resigned on 7 November 2019)
Mr. Wang Xiaodong

(resigned on 19 July 2019)
Mr. Li Guang

(resigned on 2 December 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
(appointed on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
(resigned on |8 March 2020)

BRRTESEARARIARBAL HF
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VRHTESZEAEEHRF-

Each of executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a specific term. Each of independent non-executive

Directors was appointed or re-appointed with a fixed term of 3 years.
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Pursuant to the article no. |16 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation and
a retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which
he retires, and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. Pursuant to the article
no. | 19 of the Articles, any Director appointed from time to time shall hold
office until the next annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-
election. In this connection, Mr. Liu Zhiwei, Mr. Li Lei, Mr. Han Qingping, Mr.
Wang Guanghui and Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence shall retire from office at the
conclusion of the 2020 AGM and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of her or his independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors have been independent from throughout the year ended
to 31 December 2019 and remain independent as of the date of this annual

report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2020 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

The emoluments of the Directors are proposed by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board, having regard to the Company's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics, subject to the final

decision at the discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” in this annual
report, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any controlling shareholder (as

defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the
directors and officers of the Group shall be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from or against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their offices provided
that such indemnity does not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
throughout the year ended December 31, 2019. The Company has arranged
for appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the

directors and officers of the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company or their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of the Group as are

required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and
the amount of each of such persons’ interest in such securities or in any

options in respect of such capital were as follows:

BESENES L
Approximately
£1 E 4V B {7 & B Percentage of
Name Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
42 BEXEGIARIER (Ki22) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CASC Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
il EAEXEH A RER (H772) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CALT Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
Astrotech ERlEEA A (Hit2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Astrotech Beneficial owner (Note 2)
Bt Note:

[LIERERARNZRA-

2. ZER D B NETBT 2 B BB B A R)Astrotech
BE AERATMANEENBLAR - ZR0
EHRBEED PMmBRASRER AR
B Astrotech¥F B 12,649,244,0008% B 15 2 #E S

TEMABRER (£E)ERADT ¢ 2019F#

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the Shares.

2. These shares are held by Astrotech, a company wholly owned by CALT. CALT is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CASC. By virtue of the SFO, CASC and CALT are
deemed to be interested in the 2,649,244,000 Shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 3|1 December 2019,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any

member of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules:

Connected Transactions

Loans from Shareholder or Fellow Subsidiary

There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's subsidiary,
Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd. (“ASTF") or from ASTF
(with guarantee from CALT) to Beijing Energine as set out in note 42(i)
(@)(1) and (2) to the consolidated financial statements. Since CALT and
CASC are intermediate major shareholder and ultimate major shareholder,
of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's subsidiary, the loans
were connected transactions yet they were exempted from requirements of
disclosure, reporting and shareholders’ approval by virtue of interests relating
to the loans being of commercial terms or better to Beijing Energine and no

security made for the loans under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details could be referred to the note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions disclosed above also constitute
related party transactions under the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. Save as the connected transactions disclosed above, no other
related party transactions are connected transactions under rule 14A of the

Listing Rules.

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year was

disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 95% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 54% of the Group's turnover. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 52% of the Group's purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20% of the Group's purchases. None of the Directors, their
associates or, to the best knowledge of the Directors, any shareholder who
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any interests

in the above five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum
public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance
practices. A detailed Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the

year is set out on pages 30 to 50 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

A detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for

the year is set out on pages 51 to 80 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurred after the reporting period are set out
in Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements and the section of

“subsequent non-adjusting event” on p.14 of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2020 AGM is currently planned to be held on |2 June 2020. A notice
convening the 2020 AGM and all other relevant documents will be published

and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.

AUDITOR

There was no change in the Company's auditor in the preceding three years.
A resolution will be proposed at the 2020 AGM to propose for the re-

appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Zhiwei

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 May 2020
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices
and explains the application of the principles in the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year") and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to

the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices
are fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of
a company and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of

shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices

set out in the CG Code throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in the Model Code. The Company had made specific enquiries of
each Director, all Directors have complied with such code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions throughout
the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility, and to avoid power
concentrating in any one individual. The chairman of the Board is the
executive Director; Mr. Liu Zhiwei, who was appointed immediately following
the resignation of Mr Liu Xiaowei with effect from 7 November 2019; and
the chief executive officer of the Group is another executive Director, Mr
Han Qingping, who was appointed as chief executive officer of the Group
following the resignation of Mr. Li Guang with the effect from 2 December
2019.
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The chairman of the Board is mainly responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices
and procedures; and appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their views are communicated to
the Board as a whole. The chief executive officer of the Group, supported
by the executive directors and senior management, is mainly responsible
for managing the Group's businesses, including the implementation of major

strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhiwei (Chairman)
(appointed on 7 November 20/9)
Mr. Li Lei (Vice-Chairman)
(appointed on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Han Qingping (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as executive director on 7 November 2019 and

as chief executive officer on 2 December 20/9)

Mr. Xu Jun (Financial Controller)
Mr.Wang Guanghui

(appointed on 2 December 2019)
Mr. Liu Xiaowei

(resigned on 7 November 20/9)
Mr. Wang Xiaodong

(resigned on 19 July 2019)
Mr. Li Guang

(resigned on 2 December 2019)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (appointed on 18 March 2020)

Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (resigned on 18 March 2020)

Save as disclosed in this section, to the best knowledge of the Company,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship

among the members of the Board.

Meetings of the Board (the “Board Meetings”) are held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of the year
are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days' notice is given to Directors
so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for the Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of
a conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of
which all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each

other.

Apart from the regular Board Meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held a meeting with all independent non-executive Directors, without the

presence of the other executive Directors.
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AEEHBITAREZTEERRARARRE During the Year, |4 Board Meetings and the annual general meeting of
AEREe([ZE—NLFREAFKE]) the Company (“2019 AGM") were held, at which the attendance of each
RESHREZESZNBEREAIMT Director is set out as follows:

(HE 87 FRRH

BITEE
AERBEE(HF))
TEEEWF2))
BEYEE (HEG)
Bl

ERERE (HiFE)
BB E (W7 5))
TEREE (HiFeE))
THREE(HFT))

BIFRTEE
BIExE (HiFes)
RERKE
FTABEE
BBt (Hi2o)

Number of Meetings
(Attended/Held)

—E-0F
EFeel BREAEXE
Board Meetings 2019 AGM
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhiwei (Note (1)) 3/3 TERAN/A
Mr. Li Lei (Note (2)) TERN/A RERN/A
Mr. Han Qingping (Note (3)) 3/3 TERAN/A
Mr. Xu Jun 14714 11
Mr. Wang Guanghui (Note (4)) 2/2 TERAN/A
Mr. Liu Xiaowei (Note (5)) [0 11
Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Note (6)) 717 11
Mr. Li Guang (Note (7)) 12/12 11

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Note (8)) TEAN/A TERAN/A
Mr. Gordon Ng [4/14 11
Mr. Li Dapeng 14/14 0/1
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Note (9)) [4/14 11
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(h appointed as an executive director on 7 November 2019
(2)  appointed as an executive director on |8 March 2020
(3)  appointed as an executive director on 7 November 2019
4 appointed as an executive director on 2 December 2019
(5)  resigned as an executive director on 7 November 2019
(6)  resigned as an executive director on 19 July 2019

(7) resigned as an executive director on 2 December 2019

(8)  appointed as an independent non-executive director on 18 March 2020

(9)  resigned as an independent non-executive director on |8 March 2020

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be
retained for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and
long-term objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business
plans and financial statements, interim and final results announcements,
material acquisitions and disposals of assets, investments, capital projects
and commitments, annual internal control assessment, funding and risk

management policies as well as connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and

internal controls systems.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties.
The terms of reference of Corporate Governance Functions was adopted by
the Board on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which

are being performed by the Board are as follows:

(i)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three independent non-executive Directors. Each of the
independent non-executive Director was appointed or re-appointed with a

fixed term of 3 years.

During the vear ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of
three independent non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board,
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
bring independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct through
their participating in the Board Meetings and the meetings of the Board

Committees.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent upon taking
into factors for assessing independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
considers whether a candidate will bring potential complementary benefits
to the Board and contribute to the improvement of the overall competence,

experience and expertise of the Board.

The Company may consider the diversity of the composition of the Board in
various aspects, including professional experience and qualifications, gender,
age, ethnicity, and cultural and educational background, as well as any other

factors that the Board from time to time deems relevant and appropriate.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to experience and expertise, professional
experience and qualifications, gender, age, ethnicity and cultural and
educational background. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, will

review this policy as and when appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.

The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional

development program with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and

duties of a director of the Company in the Year is recorded as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Zhiwei

Mr. Li Lei (Note /)

Mr. Han Qingping

Mr. Xu Jun

Mr. Wang Guanghui

Mr. Liu Xiaowei

Mr. Wang Xiaodong
Mr. Li Guang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Gordon Ng

Mr. Li Dapeng

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Note 2)

Note:

RiRSAER
B2EZRH
Reading

monthly updates
and reference

materials

v
N EFAN/A

NN N N SN N

v/
v/
v/
T EAN/A

SHMHE
RREH
Attending
Seminars/
development

programmes

v
N EFAN/A

S N N N NN

v
v
v
TEANA

(h RIZZZF=AT+N\BEREZERNTE (1) appointed as an executive director after the Year (18 March 2020).

E-

Q) RIZEZZFE=ATN\BEREBZERBIHE (2)  appointed as an independent non-executive director after the Year (18 March 2020).

HITES-
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Insurance for Directors and Officers

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
("D&O Insurance”) for Directors and officers of the Company. The Company
undertakes an annual review of the Company's D&O Insurance policy in
terms of the amount of cover, the reputation and financial strength of the
potential insurer and the provisions of the insurance policy to ensure that
sufficient cover and protection are provided to the Directors and officers of

the Company. During the Year, no claim was made against the Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, one executive Director namely Mr. Han Qingping; and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Gordon Ng, Mr. Lau Fai
Lawrence and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Gordon Ng.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
on 30 March 2012. The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:
(i)  to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure

for all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

(i) to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
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(i)

(v

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors;
to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.

During the Year, three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held,

at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as

follows:

(HE 87 FRRH
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Remuneration Committee Members
Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Han Qingping 11
Mr. Li Guang 2/2
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 3/3
Mr. Li Dapeng 3/3
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence TEANA
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The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the Year was
pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and is

summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended to the Board on the existing
remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for all Directors” and

senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended to the Board on the amount of remuneration to be
paid to each executive Director and senior management member for

the Year with reference to corporate goals and objectives; and

(i) recommended to the Board on remuneration proposals for the new

appointed chairman of the Board.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company

for the year ended 31 December 2019 by band is set out below:

AB

Number of

individuals

£ % 1,000,0007 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 7
1,000,000 7T £ 1,500,000 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000

9
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of five
members, two executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Zhiwei and Mr. Li Lei; and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, Mr.
Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Nomination Committee
is Mr. Liu Zhiwei.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 30
March 2012.The Board revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the
new code provision A.5.5 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019. The Board
also adopted a nomination policy providing the nomination procedures,
process and criteria which shall be adopted by the Nomination Committee

to select and recommend candidates for directorship on 24 December 2018.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;
(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

(v)  to review the policy on Board diversity (as above) and the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board diversity
policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make
disclosure of its review results in the corporate governance report

annually; and
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(vi) HEFERRBRREAGLREZRER (vi) where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as

BEEALRBUNNTES 5 H an independent non-executive director at the general meeting, the
BREAGBEM ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬂx%_u& Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders
SRR REEEGEZ and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
B general meeting;

@@ ARBIEANEFAREZS (a)  the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
RBRZBATEEENRRANR believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
HRARZEGATEBIHRA considers the individual to be independent;

(b) fHIREBIIFRTESTHETLH (b) if the proposed independent non-executive director will be
FtE(HEZ) LTRAES holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why
B -E22RRZEALNA the Board believes the individual would still be able to devote
WREFERAREREMNE sufficient time to the Board;
=8

(0 BBATANURESSTRNE (c)  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
BoRERER R bring to the board; and

(d) ZBRATWAREEEEXES (d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

Tt e
AEFGHBI=ZRREEEZEGEE BEE During the Year, three meetings of the Nomination Committee were held,
EREHFEZEERNLEHINNT at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as
follows:
(HE 87 2BRY
Number of
Meetings

(Attended/Held)

REZRERE Nomination Committee Members

EREE(FE) Mr. Liu Zhiwei (Chairman) 1/
AMEEE Mr. Liu Xiaowel /1
ik Mr. Xu Jun 3/3
BEBLLT Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 3/3
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng 3/3
FABEEE Mr. Li Dapeng 3/3
TEEE Mr Li Lei TEAN/A
e Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence NEBN/A

TEMABRER (£E)ERADT ¢ 2019F#
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the Year was
pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and is

summarised below:

(i)  reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i)  assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors

pursuant to the Listing Rules;

(i)  recommended to the Board on the change of each of the chairman
of the Board, the Nomination Committee, and Development and

Investment Committee;

(iv) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of one

independent non-executive Director; and

(v)  recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2018
AGM.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (i) as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting under the

Articles.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of three
members, namely Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng,
and all of the committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, with
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management

expertise.
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The Board adopted and revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
on 30 March 2012 and on 24 March 2015 respectively. The Board further
revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the revised code provision
C.32 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019. The main duties of the Audit

Committee are as follows:

(i)  to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor; and to answer any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

(i) to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant

financial reporting judgments contained therein;

(iv) to review the Company's financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

(v)  to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to

have effective internal control systems;

(vi) to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management's response to these findings;

(vii) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced,
has appropriate standing within the Company and to review and

monitor its effectiveness; and

(viii) to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.
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During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held, at which

the attendance record of each committee member is set out as follows:

(HE BT FBRB
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Audit Committee Members
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 212
Mr. Li Dapeng 2/2
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Chairman) TERAN/A

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the Year was pursuant to

the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and is summarised below:—

(i) reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

(i)  reviewed the reports from the internal audit department on
assessment of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control system of the Group covering material controls for financial,

operational, compliance and risk management;

(iii)  reviewed the continuing connected transactions; and

(iv) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment

of external auditor.

Development and Investment Committee

As at the date of this report, the Development and Investment Committee
comprises five members, namely Mr. Liu Zhiwei, Mr. Li Lei, Mr. Han Qingping,
Mr. Xu Jun, Mr Wang Guanghui and Mr Li Dapeng. The chairman of the

Development and Investment Committee is Mr. Liu Zhiwei.
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The main duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No meeting of the Development and Investment
Committee was held during the Year. However; one meeting of the Board was
held with full Board members, for discussing and approving the business plan

and budget for the Year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged Deloitte as its external auditor subject to

re-appointment by the Shareholders at the 2020 AGM.

The aggregate remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte for

the Year paid or payable to them is set out as follows:

FET
HK$'000
FiT R Audit services 3,150
b EREE B AR 1S Interim review services 530
3,680
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ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

There were no changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December
2019 and of ensuring that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is in accordance with the applicable standards
and requirements. The statement of the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 81 to 84 of the Annual Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements
or losses can be avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in

operational systems.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has reviewed
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The internal audit team of the Company performs regular reviews
of all material controls, including risk management, financial, operational
and compliance controls of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and
effectiveness on a continuing basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and
agreed every year with the Audit Committee. A report of audit findings
is submitted to the members of the Audit Committee, discussed at the
meetings of the Audit Committee and then report to the Board. The
audit reports are then followed up by the internal audit team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are implemented for

protecting the assets of the Group and identifying business risks.

The Board has overseen the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems covering risk management and all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance for the year under
review and in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management
and internal control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with
the code provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG
Code.

The Company has implemented its policy and procedures on inside
information, which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and

dissemination of inside information.

Annual Report 2019 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

47



48

LEEIRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REWE

NRAMERAXERESTEURRESTENRE

Eﬂéﬂﬁ@ﬂL*“?Aﬁ REARRF 3t
EREEHEZSRLES BHEZAR
TEEREIBIRBEIXER

BHREEREELLIREME)NEIIR-Z
—“NE-A+mBR=ZZE-AF=A=+~
AT fBEECKRETRIE3280E
EZEAARARZARME BZT—NF
AT NBRER - RRWEEEZTD
RIS/ B EEI5 - AE T E A
M - RELCHERERAFEANCETR
BISPNREEEF -

B BEE

AEEN EFECRMBBEBEK BEER
BRERRERAIHECO®R Bt EF

EREZEARSENREEREKNSHE

Kt R T E%

() ARANERKRERAXRRLTHE
£

iy AEEBHEBEESTRKRRERE
& ;

(i) ARAREWBRARZRBRBMNEA
it R

vy TEBEERA
ERIRR & &

RE 31 S 9 B S b N Y

v) EMEZESRS/ERNEZR-

TEMABRER (£E)ERADT ¢ 2019F#

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary shall provide assistance to the Board and ensure
efficient information circulation within the Board and, in compliance with the
policies and procedures of the Board, provide advice on governance matters
to the Board, facilitate induction of Directors and monitor their training and

continuous professional development.

Following the resignation of Ms. Luo Xiao Jing and Ms. Li Shan Mui on
[4 January 2019 and 26 March 2019 respectively, Mr. Yu Ngai has been
appointed as company secretary of the Company pursuant to rule 3.28 of
the Listing Rules with effect from 26 March 2019. The Company Secretary
must take no less than |15 hours of relevant professional training to update
his skills and knowledge. Mr. Yu has confirmed that he undertook over |5

hours of professional training during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

During the Year, the Board adopted a dividend policy with an aim to provide
the Shareholders with stable and sustainable returns, pursuant to which the
Board will take the following factors in proposing any dividend distribution

and determining dividend payout:

(i)  the actual and expected performance and liquidity of the Company;

(i) the expected requirement for working capital and future investment of

the Group;

(i)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and its

subsidiaries;

(iv)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders; and

(v)  any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
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The Board shall review this policy against the financial performance and

market condition from time to time and to amend it as and when necessary.

The distribution of dividend by the Company is subject to applicable laws

and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and potential investors.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to the Shareholders in
a timely manner through a number of formal channels including quarterly,

interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting
("AGM") to ensure a high level of accountability and to be kept informed of
the Group's strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, are available to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Board in respect
of each issue to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of
Directors and if an independent non-executive director serves more than 9
years. An AGM circular will be distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM (at least 10 clear business days in the case of
all other general meetings), setting out details of each proposing resolution,

poll voting procedures and other relevant information.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website (http://www.energine.hk) at which the announcements, business
developments and operations, financial and corporate information of the
Group and some policies including the shareholders communications policy,
procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director,
whistleblowing policy and other information are posted under the section of

Investor Relations of the Company's website.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72, shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition (“the Written Requisition”),
specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed Resolution”) accompanied
by a statement in respect of the matter referred to in the Proposed
Resolution, to the Company's secretary at its Head Office, to request the
Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified in such

Written Requisition.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing by post, by email or by fax through the Company Secretary

Department whose contact details are as follows:

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza

I8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: cs@energine.hk

Fax No.: +852 2531 0088
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report mainly sets out a summary of the strategies and the performance
of the Group for the period from | January 2019 to 31 December 2019 in
terms of environmental, social and governance (“ESG") aspects. The report
principally covers the business of manufacturing and distribution of wind
turbines and wind farm operations. This report was prepared in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and it has complied with the “Comply or Explain”
provisions in the ESG Guide.

Comments and Feedback

We value your comments and feedback on this report, and your comments
will help us to improve the performance in the future. Do not hesitate to
give your comments, if any, by email (cs@energine.hk) or by post (Suite 4701,
47th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong).

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To determine key points and content of this report as well as review its
own ESG performance and strategies, the Group has conducted a materiality
assessment during the reporting period. Based on the ESG issues set out
in the ESG Guide, we have consolidated a list of issues for materiality
assessment. By conducting interviews with the senior management, as well
as small group discussions among employees, we have successfully collected
the stakeholders' issues of concern and performance rating of the ESG
work of the Group. Material issues were identified and prioritised based
on the comments from the management and the results of the employee

engagement surveys, and 16 issues were identified as issues of concern.
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MEAGRRERERERHINT (REL The following table summarizes the material issues most relevant to us (in
Rp) ZRBAEFPE—ZRHZEH order of priority) and their respective key performance indicators. The top 5

JIRERBIZE: issues in the table are classified as issues of major concern:

HEER
BEEEN HF BE RBENER
Priority
of the
Importance of Issues Issues Issues Key Performance Indicators
EXBIEE 1 BIfIIRXE ERREY (BEB3) —RIRE  BIENIETE3 - B32
Issues of major concern Employee training and support ~ Development and Training (aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1, B3.2
2 BERERERZZ EEre (E@B) —RKE
Occupational health and safety ~ Health and safety (aspect B2) general disclosure
3 BIRH# EfR (Ems) —RRKE
Grievance mechanism for Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure
employees
4 MHER ERER (BEA) —RKE BRERERALS
Use of materials Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.5
5 HRERR/ B ERER (BEAY) —RBE BREMERAL A2 RERX
Energy saving/low carbon RER (BEA)—MBE BREZEEA
Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1, A2.3; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure,
KPIA3.I
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BEER
BEERH HF BE RBRNER
Priority
of the
Importance of Issues Issues Issues Key Performance Indicators
e 6 AMEMER/AMENLE  GEBREE (BEB) —RRE WRENREE
Issues of concern BAEERR Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI B5.2

Assessment on social
responsibility performance of
suppliers/contractors

7 BIMBSEREER  ERE(EER) —REE BRENES
Related statistics and policies on  Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure, KPI BI.

staff
8 ENRE PR (BEA) —REE  BRERIERAIZ Al4 Al
Waste treatment Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.3,Al.4,Al.6

9 EmMBRENRHFLEEE EmEE(BEB) —REKE BREWEER
Number of products and service  Product responsibility (aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with

10 ERE By (BEAD —RER BREMSEALI AL ALS B
Exhaust control RAAER (BEA3) —KEHE

Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.1,Al.2, AL5; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure

11 E;MREORTHE EmEE (EHEBe) —RTE  WRENERR62
Responsibility policy on product  Project responsibility (aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2

and service
12 BTHERRER SBTER (BEBY) —REE
Regulations and standards of Labour standards (aspect B4) general disclosure
labour
13 KERER ERER (BEAY) —RKE BRERERALL A24 A3
Management of water resources  Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.2, A2.4, A3.
14 EHESER RE)S (BEB7) —RBE  BRENESRET2
Prevention of corruption and Anti-corruption (aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2
bribery
15  ETER g (BmAl) - ERE (BEB) BRER2 (EmB) HTE

Compliance with regulations Bl (BER4) EmAT (EEBs) - RE)S (EHEB7) —BHE
Emissions (aspect Al), Employment (aspect BI), Health and safety (aspect
B2), Labour standards (aspect B4), product responsibility (aspect B6), Anti-
corruption (aspect B7) general disclosure

16 FHAHER /ABENRE HERER (BELS) —REE WRENEES.
=H Supply chain management (aspect BS) general disclosure, KPI B5.2
Assessment on environmental
performance of suppliers/
contractors
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group recognises a sound corporate governance framework as the
foundation for a smooth, highly efficient and highly transparent operation for
which it is essential for the steady development of the Group. As such, we
value “the proposition of employees’ talents to achieve win-win situation for
all" in the management approach of the Group and apply this to our day-to-
day operation with an aim to “pursue excellence and lead the development

of new energy”.

Management of sustainable development

The framework for management of sustainable development of the Group
covers three major areas, namely quality, environment and occupational
health and safety. The management systems for each of the above areas have
been established in accordance with international and national standards.
Beijing Energine Industry Co., Ltd. and Gansu CASC Energine Wind Turbine
Manufacture Co. Ltd. have acquired 1SO9001:2015 (GB/T 19001-2016)
quality management system certificate, 1ISO14001:2015 (GB/T24001-2016)
environmental management system certificate and OHSAS18001:2007(GB/
T28001-2011) occupational health and safety management system certificate.
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We uphold the management system'’s principle of “planning-implementation—
checking-action” to formulate the approach for quality, environment and
occupational health and safety and set out mid-to-long term targets and
performance indices. We conduct internal inspection regularly with relevant
departments on quality, environment and occupational health and safety
pursuant to the management procedures, as well as assess the progress made
towards the targets. During the reporting period, the Group ran an internal
audit on Beijing Energine Industry Co., Ltd., and Gansu CASC Energine Wind
Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd.. To continuously optimize our management
systems, the audit looked at the resources allocation to each department,
responsibilities of each department and their operational difficulties, quality
control of products, identification of environmental factors and their source
of risks, as well as inspection and measurement of equipment management,
to ensure that the approach and targets are applicable for Group's
development and affirm that the management systems are appropriate,
sufficient and effective. In the event of any non-compliance or potential
substandard items identified, measures for rectification, prevention or
improvement will be followed up at the management committee meeting,
to determine the responsible department and the period of time for
rectification. As the Group adjusted its organization structure in 2019 and
the 1SO45001-2018 occupational health and safety management system was
issued, the Group revised the system documents (including one management
manual and 24 procedural documents; manual and procedural documents for
Gansu CASC Energine Wind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd.), identified certain
defects for improvement and alteration therefrom as well as fully discussed

the suitability of the documents.

The Board reviews the strategies and policies on ESG work at annual
management committee meeting, supervises the implementation and
evaluates the KPIs. In addition, the Board is responsible for preparing and

publishing the ESG report of the Group.
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Stakeholder

KEE/ Investor/Most senior
EREEE management

BT Staff member

BERH Cooperative partner

®E Customer

R Community

56 REMXBREE (£8)ERAT 20195 K

Stakeholders Engagement

The Group highly values the opinion from stakeholders, and therefore
various channels and methods tabulated below are available for effectively
and constantly communicating with stakeholders. By understanding and
responding to the opinion and requests from stakeholders in due course,
the Group strives to improve its operational performance and upholds its

environmental and social responsibilities:

REHA

Way of communication

BRRRE General meeting

EHHRE A5 BEFR Regular report, announcement, circular, annual
report

#E S Press release

NAE Website of the Company

BRTESE Management committee meeting

BIKKRKE Staff meeting

8 T3 Staff training

BTEMEZ Employee performance assessment

AEE T HY Internal publication for staff

TEHgH® Regular meeting

& R Contract and agreement

mE e Quality analysis meeting

it e ST 2 Supplier evaluation system

2= m it e Product supply

AR Contract and agreement

B PR Customer service

NAE Website of the Company

mEEHE Satisfaction survey

NAEM Website of the Company
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a high-end clean energy developer in China focusing on wind turbines
manufacturing, development of wind farm and distributed energy, the Group
bears the responsibility of creating a green community while vigorously
developing and promoting energy saving and environmental protection. To
realize our vision and commitment to environmental protection, we strictly
comply to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People's Republic of China, the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise
and the laws and regulations on environmental protection applicable to
the locations of our operation, to ensure we fulfil compliance obligations in
exhaust, greenhouse gas, waste water emissions and to meet environmental

standards where we operate.

The impacts on the environment and natural resources are principally from
exhaust emissions, waste water, solid waste generated from our operation
activities as well as consumption of electricity, water and paper at our
premises. We have minimised the impacts on the environment and natural
resources by integrating environmental protection concepts into the Group's
operation and management as well as strictly implementing control policies
and measures on water and energy saving and emission reduction. We
continue to monitor our operation model and adopt necessary measures to
scale down the impacts on the environment and nature resources. During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material breach of laws

and regulations in relation to environment and natural resources.
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Environmental Management

We distribute the management manual of quality/environment/occupational
health and safety, which was prepared in reference to the revised National
Environmental Management System Standards, to all departments and
subsidiaries. The three key documents of the management system, namely
the “Control Procedure for Environmental Emergency Preparedness and
Response”, the “Control Procedure for Performance Supervision and
Measurement of Environment, Occupational Health and Safety” and the
“Control Procedure for Document Management”, set out the details of our
solid waste management, emergency handling, supervision and measurement
of our performance in environment as well as our management in record

keeping.

We also implemented “the Control Procedure for Environmental
Management”, setting out the management responsibility and procedure
on procurement, sales activities, waste treatment, infrastructure and work
environment at headquarters office, wind farms and subsidiary level. In
the middle of 2019, the Project Management Department of the Group
conducted an environmental impact assessment with relevant departments,
the non-conformities were corrected according to “the Control
Procedure for Management Improvement”, to ensure the fulfilment of the
Company's environmental approach and targets. The subsidiaries formulate
environmental targets based on their own operational conditions, and their

production process also need to strictly follow our procedures.

Emergency measures for environmental accidents

In case of any accident or emergency from activities, production, and service,
the Group would proceed with effective control and disposal, so as to lower
the degree of personal injury, financial loss, and environmental influence.
We organized proper training and drills in respect of possible accidents. In
case of any emergency, individual departments handled and immediately
reported the case to the leaders and department in charge as required, and
then carried out emergency rescue in a rapid, effective, orderly, and efficient

manner based on specific conditions.



BR HEREIRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RERERE

BMBEIMAERE BB ERERE I
REBENBEILER T 2EFEERRR
RINBERARCEY - S L EFEHiE6 800 77
Keoiggth RARTHEBEEXR  BMM
EITEBGBRE BFREIES00F A K M
BRERABEHZEEETR REEEE
FAEEED4600%F 5K B BHEIRE
LEE HMBAOAEE TAIEFEN TR
EERE ABENEBBF&ICHP%L
FR—BLEHER-

SR

RPIBHR D BB IR IBER R
W EHEEE— AR TR RIRR - $4
EBRTELNBERY BR BKLEZ
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬂ°ﬁiﬂm'ﬁﬁ$ﬁ%
TEMEREREERBIN MK RE
m%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%§%%§iﬁxﬁm
EREREMN-

B RN

AEBEEERRBERERNEERER
BRIV EBEZENERSANFEN - EBESE
HRERFIREEREEREmRRMHH
B EXERAMEELENEREANLY
(NOx) * FR &AL ¥ (SOx) R B IF R F (PM) © F,
METER CTEHRTEAEEERIE)
ki F A(REL BRREE BRI EDA
WOE) SHEERER ERABER (EH
BREHE) BERRER UBRSHATE
iy e

Environmental protection facilities

We place emphasis on the ecological environment in factories and their
surrounding area. There are green plants around our factory in Gansu for
air purification and sound absorption. The green area has covered 6,800
square meters. In addition, integrated green planning has also been made for
our wind farm in Inner Mongolia where a flower bed of 500 square meters
was annually planted for the purpose of inclusion of ecological elements in
the wind farm area. Currently, the farm has a lawn area of more than 4,600
square meters. We endeavour to create a comfortable work environment for
our staff by greening and beautifying the area, and meet the local government

requirements on ecological greening.

CONFORMING DISCHARGE

The Group was committed to reducing environmental pollution in the
process of discharge and implementing a series of targeted emission
reduction projects and programs. In consequence, the waste materials,
exhaust gas, wastewater and noise arising from production were controlled
effectively. During the reporting period, there was no event in breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation and disposal of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

Exhaust gas emissions

The manufacturing of direct-driven wind turbine generators and wind energy
equipment of the Group has not emitted much exhaust gas. The exhaust
gas incurred during the course of business was principally from the vehicles
for transporting products and raw materials. The main pollutants include a
small amount of NOx, SOx and PM. We have complied with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the national Measures on Supervision of
Exhaust Pollution from Automobiles and the local Measures on Prevention
and Control of the Exhaust Pollution of Motor Vehicles in Inner Mongolia.
Every year, we perform inspection on vehicles in accordance with our Vehicle

Management Mechanism to ensure conforming discharge.
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REBHA NEB T BB HE B R A During the reporting period, the emission of the Group'’s vehicle exhaust was

P as follows:
B 1 B BE
Emissions* i Quantity
a1t ¥ SOx = Kilogram 0.5
RA(LPINOxX = Kilogram 29.6
BIFHRTPM Tr Kilogram 22
AEREHK Greenhouse gas emissions

SEEEMNREPEZREERAETME  The carbon footprint of the Group is principally the direct emission from
NEEFEREBATNNEEERR -EET vehicles” engine and the indirect emission of electricity purchased. The gas
FREKNREBEREZRE ALK emissions in the process of electricity generation mainly include Sulphur
RENW-209F EEAERBINER Dioxide and NOx. In 2019, the greenhouse gas emissions generated by the
|,745M8 — @b iR B £ (tCOw) R ERBMBHE Group amounted to 1,745 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOze),
MERE RO (M_EtkEE FHKE whereas the intensity was 0.02 (tCOze/square metre of gross floor area).

HEER)

BERBHER B R ¥ HHE
Greenhouse gas emissions Source of emissions i Volume of emissions
BEEVHM(BE—) (tCOe) S0M N B R E RO HE B A ME—SLixE 8
BRI A RO U B S
Direct carbon emissions (Scope 1) Consumption of diesel and gas as well as ~ tCOze 152
(tCOqe) gasoline and diesel used for vehicles
PR (BE =) (tCOze) BENEN “AREE
Indirect carbon emissions Electricity purchased tCOse 1,593

(Scope ) (tCOze)
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Waste management

To comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
implemented the internal provisions of “Solid Waste Management Measures”
to manage and supervise the process of solid waste disposal. The solid waste
produced from the production and operation of the Group is divided into
recyclable and non-recyclable as well as hazardous and non-hazardous. The
Group recycles the non-hazardous waste, such as waste paper, waste metal,
waste glass, waste plastic, waste equipment and parts and components,
and individual departments move the recyclable wastes to a designated
separate collection station for combined disposal. For the non-recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, such as solid waste from cutting and trimming in the
production process of blade and household waste, are processed by certified

waste collection companies.

Our hazardous wastes are mainly ink cartridge, engine oil, dry cell battery,
storage battery, waste cloth (which contains engine oil, isoamyl acetate
and ink), waste mercury-containing lamps, waste chemical containers and
laboratory wastes (such as cloth, gloves and filter materials). For disposal
of hazardous wastes, the production department places garbage bins at
various designated locations in plant or office or storage areas pursuant to
the “Procedures for Pollution Control of Hazardous Waste” to ensure the
prevention of spread, loss and leakage of hazards. A qualified company will
be engaged for collective disposal upon accumulation of certain amount of
hazardous wastes. For recyclable hazardous wastes, such as ink cartridge
and lubricants, the Group has formed an agreement with suppliers for
recycling waste ink cartridge and lubricants. To prevent, control, and dispose
of hazardous chemicals, the subsidiaries, according to specific conditions,
formulated accident emergency plans to guarantee well-preparedness. During
the reporting period, the Group expected a 100% of recycling rate of

hazardous wastes.
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Solid waste category

In 2019, the Group's disposal of principal wastes was as follows:

Volume

BERBEYEE Disposal of hazardous waste i tonne 220
BEREZEY)EE Disposal of non-hazardous waste 7] tonne 16.87
|EEREE Y B Recycling of non-hazardous waste i tonne 0
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Woastewater Management

Our wastewater source is mainly sanitary sewage of our employees in
the factory area in Gansu. Therefore, we have, in accordance with the
requirements of report on environmental monitoring in Suzhou District,
treated sanitary sewage in the septic tank, and transferred them to an
integrated sewage treatment facility for, among others, bio-treatment,
hydrolysis, oxidation and filtering. As the effluent after treatment has been
gone through nitrogen removal, dephosphorization and organic matter
removal, it meets the requirements specified in the Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard and can be discharged to municipal sewage discharge

network.

Our factory endeavours to seek opportunity for recycling water resources. In
summer, household sewage after treatment in plant area flows into the clean

water reservoir inside factory for irrigation.

Effective Use of Resources

The resources consumed in the production of wind turbines and batteries
includes energy, water resource and raw and auxiliary materials. To reduce
operational costs and to demonstrate our determination in environmental
protection, we are committed to effectively use resources in our operation.
For effective utilization of resources, the Group has formulated the “Control
Procedures for Supervision on and Assessment of the Performance in
the Environment and Occupational Health and Safety”, to request all
departments and subsidiaries to monitor the consumption of electricity,

water and gas.
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NARER AL REIH019FEREER For example, Inner Mongolia area has set a number of targets, in areas of
FERFIN TERRK ORERREERER water conservation, reduction of energy consumption and reduction of

FHE: resource consumption in its Environmental Management Plan 2019:

E#® HEEE
Indicator Corresponding Measures
87 4 F 7K A FKE T 3% - BREFERKHOEEREEIRF FIVFERKEE
Wiater conservation Reduction of water VikZBERE AHRKE
consumption per capita Calculating the annual volume of water consumption
by 3% by referencing annual water conservation indicator and

production process, and minimising water consumption per

capita to the level of the annual volume of water consumption
- HMEABEERESHORKNER

Assigning a person in charge of monitoring the implementation

of water conservation

AR BE TR AR EE T 3% « EERBRBAMIIBERER ABEKE
Reduction of energy Reduction of electricity Turning off all production equipment and tools when not in
consumption consumption per capita use
by 3% c THRBERAZHERMERKA
Switching off equipment and tools at office before leaving
R B R OH AR E T 5% - REFEARSOES JUFERAAEE TREES
Reduction of resource  Reduction of paper Brlk&8IMAEE
consumption consumption per capita Calculating annual paper consumption by referencing annual
by 5% paper conservation indicator; and reasonably allocating paper

consumption quota to each employee

o EITEEREEEATRR RS RER TE O MR
Affix "Paper Conservation” sticker on printers and
photocopiers as a reminder

« FHREUHORLRALAEEER MAEROX G &
TR AFTED
Use both sides of A4 paper for non-confidential information,
and new A4 paper is only used for printing finalized draft of
document

- EREERSXH
Recycling waste document

« BIEXHEMBE RS XHREEDE
Formulating a document circulation system for reducing the
number of photocopy of documents

- REAM(EWEEHE) BT

Implementing the internal “Vehicle Management System”
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Energy consumption

Other measures for effective use of resources include promotion week for
energy conservation, low carbon day campaign, recycling grease can, affixing
“saving electricity and water” sticker at canteens, toilets and water rooms and

using treated effluent for irrigation.

In terms of energy consumption, the Group mainly consumes electric energy,
while fuel is mostly consumed by vehicles. In 2019, the Group consumed
electricity of 1,437,916 kilowatt-hours, gasoline of 29,472 liters and diesel
of 1,056 liters, contributing to the total energy consumption equivalent
to 1,684,662 kilowatt-hours. As for water use, the Group only utilizes tap
water. In 2019, the water consumption was 10,534 cubic meters. In terms of
total gross floor area, the intensity of total energy consumption and water
consumption were 37.04 (kilowatt-hours/square meter) and 0.23 (cubic
meter/square meter). In terms of production, the Group's products need
only few packaging materials such as wooden case, plastic film, rain cover, and

packing strap, to protect the products from damage in transit.

& Electricity

YU Gasoline

£E0H Diesel

# 5 iF H #E Total energy consumption

KRiFERE

Water resource consumption

JK Water

IRBRMHEAR

IS kilowatt-hours 1,437,916
DI Liters 29,472
A Liters 1,056

E kilowatt-hours 1,684,662

Volume

b1 S

Cubic meters 10,534

Consumption of principal packaging materials

7R %8 Wooden case 7 Tonne 0.6l
4L #H Paper case ] Tonne 0.27
PBRHEE Plastic film 7 Tonne 0.05
PIRS 2 Rain cover ] Tonne 0.0l
T8 % Packing strap 7 Tonne 0.0l
#84 # $ B4 ¥ Total consumption of materials ] Tonne 0.95

64 REMXBREE (£8)ERAT 20195 K
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Case - Promotion Week for Water Conservation Campaign in
2019

To more effectively manage and use energy, the Group organized a
promotion week for energy conservation campaign and a promotion week
for water conservation campaign in 2019. During the promotion week for
water conservation, rolling advertisement billboards were used to broadcast
slogans including “To save water, start with a drip” and “Water is the source
of human life”, so as to increase employees’ awareness of water conservation

in their daily work.

At the same time, the Group released the “Initiative of Water Conservation
from the Drips”, shared common knowledge on water conservation, and
signed cooperation on management of energy-conservation and emission-
reduction targets with each department, so as to call on employees to
consciously save water, develop good water consumption habits and advocate

energy saving and consumption reduction with the attitude of the master.

AF *:-ww"'"wm

Wise use of electricity: Turn off corridor lighting when not needed,
minimise standby power consumption of computers and make sure all
electrical appliances are switched off after work by assigning responsible

persons to conduct inspection.

Reducing the use of official vehicles and encouraging low-carbon
lifestyle: The official vehicles are collectively managed for effective use
of the transport capacity. Use of official vehicles by employees is strictly
controlled through an intelligent office software to implement energy
conversation measures on official vehicles. Vehicle inspection is carried out
during routine vehicle maintenance for minimising wear and tear by man-

made causes.
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Use of raw materials

The raw materials required for our production mainly are energy, water
resources and packaging materials. To avoid excessive use of raw materials,
facilitate the formulation of procurement plan by the Group as well as the
cost control of products, we have implemented management measures on
procurement and use of raw materials in our subsidiaries. Production teams
are distributed a defined amount of raw materials. In the event of insufficient
raw materials for production, head of technology department is required to
fill in a form stating the reasons for insufficiency and the additional amount
required after verification. For those cases of excessive use of raw materials
caused by man— made factors, the persons involved may receive punishment

in the light of actual conditions.

CLEAN ENERGY AND DEVELOPMENT OF
GREEN PRODUCTS

We are committed to promoting the application of clean energy. In 2019,
the wind farm located in Benxi, Liaoning together with the wind turbines of
the Group and the wind farms controlled or partially invested by the Group
generated electric energy of 2,260,000,000 kilowatt-hours, which meant that
we saved about 73 tonnes of coal and reduced 2.20 million tonnes and 8,200
tonnes of carbon dioxides and nitrogen oxides respectively. In the process
of product design, the Group always keep in mind of its social responsibility
issues including reducing environmental pollution, saving resources and
energy as well as reducing emissions. In the process of wind turbine units
design, the Group has strictly followed the internal control documents of
the Company to standardize its design process management. The assessment
of environmental impacts are conducted for materials use or production
process, and priority are given to harmless materials and advanced green
technologies in accordance with the requirements under the “Operation and
Control Procedures for Managing Environment”. During the reporting period,
the Group's R&D department completed the design and improvement
work on our new 2MW permanent magnetic generator based on a cost
analysis on the previous one, during which, the design idea of platformization
was adopted to expand the series spectrum of units to meet the needs
of different markets in different regions. For in-service operating units, the
Group analyzed their respective operating status, improved and optimized
the design of such units based on the principle of service-oriented, which

further improved the reliability of the wind turbines in operation.
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TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group conducts business in a manner of “engaging in new energy
cause, contributing to the society, and benefiting the mankind”, building up
a good social corporate image over the past years. Our “people-oriented”
management together with the following measures have enhanced the
integrated strength of the Group while bringing satisfaction and nurturing

sense of belonging within our employees.

Employment and labour standards

The Group continuously attracts, searches, and nurtures talents in addition to
optimisation of its management system of human resources, so as to create a

harmonious, diversified and friendly work environment for our people.

Our employee breakdown in 2019 is as follows:

iREA BEIAY
Description Number of employee
B Male 276
27 Female 78
28 Full-time 354
58 Part-time 0
355 AT 35 or below 233
3688 £455% 36 to 45 59
465 E555 A T 46 to 55 below 50
567% K LA £ 56 or above 12
%% Hong Kong 12
1 & 3 Mainland China 342
WMETIAB:354

Total number of
employee: 354
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The Group has strictly regulated the recruitment process and adopted a
fair and transparent recruitment policy to ensure fair treatment and respect
to all employees. During the reporting period, there was no litigations
in relation to discrimination in employment. The "Detailed Rules for
Senior Management” was issued by the Company to explicitly guarantee
meritocracy in recruitment. In the same year, the issuance of "Detailed Rules
for Management of Personnel for Reemployment” has secured the legal
benefits of those employees who have not been offered any positions or
has not agreed with any re-designation arrangement due to restructuring,
adjustment and elimination of certain types of positions. The Group strictly
complied with relevant requirements of the Employment Ordinance in Hong
Kong, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC and other laws and regulations
relating to work environment, forced and child labour. We provide our
employees with various labour protection, safe and hygienic workplace and
reasonable remuneration and benefits, including employees’ insurance and
annual health check. In 2018, as requested by our staff, we update the health

check scheme by providing more service providers for them to choose.

Health and safety

The Group endeavours to provide its staff members a safe working
environment. We strictly follow the “Production Safety Law of the People's
Republic of China” and the Chinese occupational health and safety standards
of GB/T 28001-2011, and implement the “Administrative Regulations on the
Work Safety”. Based on the renewal work for 2018 Certification for Safety
Production Standardisation, on 22 March 2019, the Company obtained the
Level 2 Certification for Safety Production Standardisation granted by Beijing
Work Safety Federation.

Our Safety Management Committee regularly held 5 cross-departmental
meetings in 2019 to review work performance and formulate annual
activities on safety. For the suppliers working at our wind farms, they must
receive safety training. During the year, the Group had one major accident
in Zhoujiajing Wind Power Farm (JAZKF B E 5 ) , to which the Company
provided operation and maintenance services. Upon the accident, the
Company actively responded and adopted a series of measures such as
special rectification of safety production in operation and maintenance, to

improve the Company's safety management level. The case was closed.
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The Group organised a campaign named “Safety in Production” in June
2019 with a slogan of “Prevent Risks, Eliminate Potential Hazards and
Avoid Accidents” and launched video clips on safety. The campaign lasted
for the entire June, covering the aspects of fire accident, electric shock,
use of machines, operation of wind turbine and transportation. In addition,
the campaign included implementation of works for raising safety concern,
fostering safety culture and increasing in safety level at the level of the Group.
We have established a special team for coordinating and monitoring, for
example, providing training on high angle rescue, safety inspection use of
tools and machines reviewing the use of personal protective equipment with
an aim to ensure the compliance of the safety rules and procedures by all
employees. In the event of any non-compliances, the special team will ask for
a rectification to prevent accidents in workplace. We have carried out safety
message collection activities, and a Letter to the Family Members of the
Operation and Maintenance Employees drafted by the manufacturing center
was sent to such family members. By utilizing the staff dormitory at wind
farms, we have established safe home positions posting safety messages and
family photos, with a view of educating and reforming our staff with kinships

to always keep safety in mind.
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In addition, the Group cares about the physical and mental health of its
staff members and encourages them to achieve a better work-life balance.
The Group provides its staff members with health check and mental health
assessment, and organises various activities to raise concerns about stress
management. We encourage work-life balance, and encourage staff to
participate in recreational therapy in spare time. Through these acts, we
hope to secure physical and mental health of its staff and effectively reduce

sickness and absence rate of the Group.
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Development and training

The Group endeavours to provide a career development platform to its staff
members, regularly organizing internal trainings on different topics, including
safety, departmental and standard system, expertise and skills enhancement.
We also provide external trainings to our staff for personal development.
During the year, our training reached 642 person-times in total with 26,528

training hours.

BURET
FIYIEIRE

Average number

RNERESL

Percentage of

staff members of training hour

Category Description trained per staff member
£ 5 Gender Bt Male 100% 40
2 M Female 100% 44
{E & Staff member = 4% & 32 JE Senior management 100% 296
& 1 A B Management 100% 46
B A B Technology personnel 100% 34
£ 8¢ A B Skillful personnel 100% 53
BiliA#EZE Seminars on Technology

09F BTREXRAABNRMEE #
BRORBETENERMITENZERER
TEBMETRMARBRE  TRFERM
ABEARMBEBERR  RSREREHKA
ERBHENEERE BITHHENER
BMRn BEAEEMENEEEE TR
ST H)ERE o

FEMAERER (RE)BRAF  2019F 3

In 2019, in order to improve the technical diathesis of designers, the R&D
center has occasionally conducted technical knowledge lectures according
to work progress and industry development. In the lectures, different
professional technicians exchanged technical topics. At the same time,
according to the quality feedbacks on the operation of wind turbines at wind
farms, the R&D center has conducted targeted thematic technical exchanges,

which has laid a good foundation for handling major quality issues.
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Young Leadership Training Camp

To grow and develop with our people, the Group has implemented the
“Measures on Performance Assessment and Management for Employees”. In
order to motivate our people to increasingly improve their performance by a
reasonable reward and punishment system, and strengthen our management
to enhance their performance and work quality, the Group has also organised
various recreational activities to build team spirit and a sense of belonging in

the Group.

Supply chain management

Throughout the entire production process from design, R&D, production
and processing, installation and commissioning to maintenance and repair; we
require a number of materials, equipment and devices as well as parts and
components. For our procurement policy, the “Measures for the Management
of the Purchase of Supplies” are strictly implemented to reduce purchase
cost and carried out the standardisation of the purchase model. For the parts
and components required for the mass production of wind turbines, we issue
invitations to tender once a year. For those special parts and components
which cannot be procured through tender invitation, we will procure them
through price negotiation. We have followed the principles of “transparent,
fair and impartial” and “collective procurement, making comparison for the
best” throughout the procurement process. Our supplier selection criteria
include qualifications, price level, quality, delivery performance and after-sales

services.
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The Group has implemented a comprehensive “Measures for the
Management of Suppliers Development” to include the requirements for
environmental protection, occupational safety and social responsibilities in
selecting suppliers. The suppliers involving key issues of environment or
occupational safety will be given a written notice in accordance with the
"Operation Control Procedures for Environmental Management” and the
"Operation Control Procedures for Occupational Health and Safety”. Any
failures to improve its behaviour on environment or reduce environmental
risks, the Group will require the supplier(s) to rectify or cease cooperation
with them. In assessing our suppliers, our team will conduct a detailed on-
site inspection on production, equipment and facilities and production sites
and issue an assessment report on suppliers within one week after the
completion of the assessment. We recommend to use new suppliers in order
to effectively reduce purchase costs and avoid the risks arising from using

exclusive supplier.

The Group has established a guide on supplier rating and classification, and
the “Annual Appraisal Method of Suppliers” sets out the detailed guidelines
of appraisal, with the appraisal indicators on possession of certifications
on environmental systems, pricing and quality. The suppliers who pass the
appraisal will be put on our "list of qualified suppliers”. The annual appraisal
of suppliers is the important reference for annual procurement practice, in
order to effectively control supply chain, identify deficiency along the supply
chain and explore new suppliers for optimising the Group's supply chain. At
present, there are 85 qualified suppliers on parts and components on our

“list of qualified suppliers”.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

We always focus on our customers and adjust our key areas of R&D with
the shift of target markets. We are committed to launch new model of
wind turbines with market competitiveness, enhanced product adaptability
and reliability. To satisfy higher demand from our customers for product
customisation and to offer better user experience to the uses of our
products. Our capability of offering high quality and highly efficient wind
turbines is based on strict compliance with the laws and regulations on
product quality, legal utilisation of corporate trademark and proprietary
technology, refusal of intellectual property infringement and protection
of trade secrets. We have established a comprehensive system for quality
assurance which is able to ensure a compliance management of the entire
production process covering receipt of raw materials, production, product

quality check and approval, marketing and aftersales service.

In compliance with the quality management system standards and the
requirements of system implementation, we have ensured our products
reaching 100% passing rate on the assurance test on departing plant for
delivery. For wind turbines in wind farms, an average utilization rate of 97%
was reached, ie. high standard requirements for the product’'s quality. In
parallel, the Group strictly controlled the product quality of its suppliers
in stringently executing the supplier evaluation and control program. In
addition, we have also complied with the environmental management
system standards and the occupational health safety management system,
and the design of our products is up to the national standards in terms
of environmental protection, noise pollution and safety. Through the grid
compatibility test and the power quality test required by the State and based
on the characteristics of domestic grids, the Group has improved its products
to enable them to possess the low-voltage ride-through function in assuring

the power generation efficiency and operational reliability of the products.

Quality risks are mainly arising from the production process of parts and
components sourced externally, and such risks should be principally managed
and controlled by the suppliers themselves. The above risks are managed
by the measures of the quality assurance system on one hand, and through
supplier certification and assessment, quality assurance terms under purchase
contracts, dispatch of quality engineers to intervene the manufacturing

process of critical components, and establishment of insurance mechanism.
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A professional service team is formed to provide service and technical
support (i.e. technical training, installation, operation, maintenance, recall and
repair). We have set limits on response time in ensuring that customers'
issues and requirements are addressed promptly. In addition, we conducted
a customer satisfaction survey in accordance with the “Procedures for
Monitoring Customer Satisfaction” during the reporting period, over 90%
of customer satisfaction achieved from seven participants, such as China
Huadian, Datang Power and Wuwei New Energy, exceeding our 85% target
of corporate customer satisfaction. During the reporting period, we did not

receive any formal complaints about our products and services.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We have zero tolerance on bribery and corruption and place high emphasis
on ethical conduct. We endeavour to build a corruption-free working
environment by strictly following the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China and
the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. Each
employee is required to uphold his/her own responsibility and act in an
honest and pragmatic manner; and is prohibited to get involved into any
criminal activities, such as bribery and corruption, blackmail, fraud and money

laundering.

The Group launched regular self-inspections on anti-corruption. In particular,
we inspected office space, official vehicles, business reception, funds
management, employee selection and appointment, allowances and subsidies,
etc. and no corruption, bribe-taking, and other acts in breach of the rules and

laws were identified.

In the event of any bribery, corruption, blackmail and money laundering
detected, we will take necessary legal actions to protect the interest of
the Group. Meanwhile, the Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to
which employees can report, in confidence, any suspected misconduct in the
Company to the Audit Committee. The committee will then establish a case
for internal inspection and seeking legal advice. In 2019, no corruption lawsuit

occurred in the Company.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We have actively organized and participated into community service activities
for fulfilling our corporate social responsibilities and developing a harmonious
society. Firstly, we have organized and conducted activities to help with
poverty alleviation and care for left-behind children. Staff were sent to the
Central School of Ih Huree, Shangdu County, Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region (A5 & B/AR P #B S K E M 48+ 0 248 ) to teach the left-behind
children science of aerospace and donate books, sport equipments and other
teaching and learning materials to the school. Secondly, we have organized
and conducted the “Love Eye Action”, young volunteers were organized to
go to the Starlight Film and Television City in Daxing District, Beijing (3t
RMAERE KRN to participate in the “Love Eye Action” public
benefit activities organized by CCTV, and they helped in entering the vision
datas of tens of thousands of children in Lhasa into system and establishing
a vision file during holidays, which was a dedicating of love, spreading of
positive energy and a feedback to the society with gratitude. Thirdly, we
have organized and conducted expanded team-building activities for young
employees, young employees from |7 departments of Phase Il were
organized to participate in such activities, which enhanced the ability of team

organization and cohesion of young employees.

r_.‘Lj,,
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HEABRRSIR

A RE

A. Environmental

BEAI
Aspect Al

—REE

General Disclosure

RS 4E IR IZ AL
KPI ALl

FRERIERAI2
KPIA12

B RMIEIRALS
KPIAL3

BRI IRAL 4
KPIAL4

FSIRBIEIRALS
KPIALS

FSRBIEIRALS
KPIALS

REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

—BREERMBENER
General Disclosures and KPIs

L

Description

Bk
Emissions
FRBERMAERBHN MAKRLHOS EEREERENNELFN: P56-6
Information on:
() HE: K
b) BITHBTABEAFENHBERRROINER-
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BB E LR EUE P58-59

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERBEHNE (UM E) R (WER) ZE (NASEEEL  BEREFE) - P59
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

FELAEEENEE (UHHE) R UER)BE (M SESEH SERE Pl
) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
FELEZERVMAE (UWE) R
AE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

(Em)BE (MAEBEEEN BERE P61

unit of production volume, per facility).

HAREFMENEEEAERR P65
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
HiREAEREERENNTE REELENRERAEKR- P60

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives

and results achieved.
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BEA2
Aspect A2

— =
General Disclosure
BB TURIRAL
KPI A2.1

B AR IR IEA22
KPI A2.2
BB MIEIEALS
KPI A2.3

B AE IR IZEALA
KPI A2.4

BB IR IR 1RALS
KPI A25

BEA3
Aspect A3
—RE

General Disclosure

B2 4B I IZ AL,
KPI A3.1

‘il'liﬁ& B /ﬂﬁ*

—REERMBRVER
General Disclosures and KPIs

Description

REER

Use of Resources

BHERER (BREER KEREMEME) OHBEK -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
RENESMEER/IEEER(NE fguh) R (UTETERTE)R P63
ER (MNSEERMN BERIESE)

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh

P61-65

in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BRAKERZE (WABEEEN BERMHE) - P63

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

A BE R AR Et B TG AR

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

SR EGE B KR E R AR A - A R T RK G A B R AR - P61

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water

P62-63

efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
BRmAAEEMBNEE (UEAE) R (NER) BEESMEE- P63
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with

reference to per unit produced.

BRRXARRE

The Environment and Natural Resources

REZETAHRARRREREREATEORE - P56-65
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural

resources.

HARBEHURERRABERNEATZERERNEEEEFENTH - P56-65

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to manage them.
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BALE

B. Social
[BHEBI
Aspect Bl
—RIRE

General Disclosure

B 3245 WL IERI.|
KPI BI.I

BEB2
Aspect B2

— R E

General Disclosure

—REBERMBRYER
General Disclosures and KPIs

L

Description

B
Employment
FRFMIRE BEREN TERE RYE FERE STt REEARE  P66-67
fb 538 AR A A -
Information on:
(@) HBE: K&
b) BTHETABEARENRBZIZLROINER -
(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
R BEEE Fi ARRNEEDHNIEELEH - P66
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.
RERZZ
Health and Safety
BRRULZ2THRRELREREECRELREEN: P67-69

Information on:

(@) BE: K

b) BTHETABEARENRBZIZLROINER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.
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BEB3
Aspect B3

—RBKE

General Disclosure

B 2 48 S 1RB3.
KPI B3.1
FIREMIE1ER32
KPI B3.2

BmEB4

Aspect B4

— R E

General Disclosure

[BEBS

Aspect BS

— =
General Disclosure
% 85 45 JUIB1ER5.2
KPI B5.2

‘il'liﬁ& B /ﬂﬁ*

—REERMBAVER
General Disclosures and KPIs
L
Description
RERRE
Development and Training
BRRARERITIERE NN RREMEE - M EIES - P69-71
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
RUERREEENEDNOXIEEADLL - P69
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
RUERREEERNE D BREE AN FIREH- P69
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
SI%A
Labour Standards
B LETHBRHSTH: P66-67
Information on:
@ BE:R
b) BTHBETABEAFZENHBZELRIINER-
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
pEAED
Supply Chain Management
ERRERORERLEABBE P70-71

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
HABARERREROEN MERTEREMNHERHE ARBRED P71
TRERET A

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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BEB6
Aspect B6
—REE

General Disclosure

BA S AR IR 1RB6.2
KPI B6.2

BEB7

Aspect B7

— R E

General Disclosure

B3R 4B W5 IERT 2
KPI B7.2

EmB8
Aspect B8

— R E

General Disclosure

—REBERMBRYER
General Disclosures and KPIs

L

Description

ERRE
Product Responsibility

BFRAMRHEERMRENRERLZE BS
Information on:
@ BR: K
(b) BITHETAREAFENBEERLADINER-
(a)  the policies; and
(

EZENALBEEARBER AN : P72-73

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and methods of redress.
REBERERNMRENRFEENLEL X P73
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.

R&5

Anti-corruption

BRADILHRE $R
Information on:

(@) BE: Kk

(b) BTHETAREAZENEBEERAOINER -
(@)  the policies; and

HEFRE R P73

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
AR BREF  ARERRITRERS A P73
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

itER T

Community Investment
AN RSERBERS
;ﬁ [

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where

EREHERENEREXBADEZEHRAENEK P74

the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.
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CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
TEMXERER (KE)ARLT
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 85
to 264, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
form an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As described in Note |B to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss from continuing operations of approximately
HK$995,638,000 during the year ended 3| December 2019 and, as of 3
December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately HK$742,748,000 and approximately HK$350,787,000,
respectively. The Group's aggregate borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$1,754,002,000 as at 31 December 2019, out of which HK$659,983,000
will be due for repayment within twelve months from 3| December
2019; while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$78,227,000 only as at 31 December 2019.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION Continued)

The directors of the Company have undertaken a number of plans and
measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, as set out in
Note |B to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of these plans and measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) successful extension of the
existing unsecured loans of RMB792,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$884,369,000) advanced from Aerospace Science and Technology
Finance Co. Ltd (“ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary of the Company, and loans
of RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$446,538,000)
advanced from China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), an
intermediate holding company of the Company, through ASTF as the trustee,
both of which will be due for repayment within twelve months from the date
of approval of the consolidated financial statements; (i) successful extension
of the loan facility of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$333,000,000) provided by ASTF upon expiry; (i) successful disposal
of the pledged land and buildings by a joint venture in order to collect
the amount due from that joint venture of HK$67,351,000; (iv) successful
disposal of the Group's equity interests in a joint venture and an associate
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$46,871,000; (v) successful disposal
of an investment property located in Shenzhen with carrying amount of
HK$48,226,000; (vi) timely collection of the Group's certain debtors in
accordance with the repayment schedules agreed with them; and (vii)
successful agreement with the Group's creditors of settlement arrangements

where applicable.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures,
or should ASTF and CALT no longer have the financial ability to provide
finance to the Group, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to reclassify the Group's
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying values of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any provision for any
contractual commitments that have become onerous as at the end of the
reporting period. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in

the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION Continued)

Since the execution of the above plans and measures are in progress with
details as set out in Note |B to the consolidated financial statements, and
in view of the significance of the extent of the uncertainty relating to the
ongoing availability of finance to the Group, we disclaim our opinion in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. However, because of the matter described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to form an

audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Au Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
I5 May 2020



ReReERRAtZEKREE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

et 2019 2018
NOTES FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
(#Z5)
(Restated)
FREERE Continuing operations

= 1 Turnover 5 38,307 59,116
HEKA Cost of sales (40,881) (53,157)
(E8)EF Gross (loss) profit (2,574) 5959
A Other income 7 17,914 24283
Hi s R EE Other gains and losses 8 (107,024) (190,038)

EREERENEERNE Impairment losses, net of reversal,

BB (nkReEmE) on financial assets and contract assets 9 (569,049) (698,933)
HERDHEKA Selling and distribution expenses (130,533) (73,007)
THER Administrative expenses (146,025) (165,525)
BB R Finance costs 10 (80,860) (82,546)
EEBERAZEE Share of results of associates (5,076) (129,834)
BEaEb¥EE Share of results of joint ventures 31,359 76,177
BRIAER Loss before taxation 12 (991,868) (1,233464)
A Taxation 14 (3,770) (580)
AEERERBLEEB L Loss for the year from continuing operations

EE (995,638) (1,234,044)
ERLEERERE Discontinued operations
AEERECDKILEEER 2 Loss for the year from discontinued operations

B Il (59,841) (96,102)
rERER Loss for the year (1,055,479) (1330,146)
Kt2ERAX: Other comprehensive expense:

BIAEERAEERRLEE  Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
-HE2NEBEL Y — exchange differences arising on
X ER translation to presentation currency 2,332 (66,293)
AFEEERAYEH Total comprehensive expense for the year (1,053,147) (1,396,439)
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RaRERAtZENRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

i3 2019 2018
NOTES FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
(#Z5))
(Restated)
ADEHEEANEIGARFZERE  Loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company
-REBBLLEE — from continuing operations (985,465) (1,224,423)
-~ REERILREEH — from discontinued operations (59,841) (96,102)
(1,045,306) (1,320,525)
FEEHERREERERZERE  Loss for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests
- REFERLRE — from continuing operations (10,173) (9,621)
rERER Loss for the year (1,055,479) (1,330,146)
ITATEEZEMSERE:  Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
AREHEEA Owners of the Company (1,042,031) (1,384,076)
JEPE 1 Non-controlling interests (11,116) (12,363)
(1,053,147) (1,396,439)
BRERE-ER Loss per share — Basic l6
RERBELERELKLE From continuing and discontinued HK(23.93) cents HK(30.22) cents
3 operations (23.93)#&(ll (30.22)7 1l
HK(22.56) cents HK(28.03) cents
REFBLEES From continuing operations (22.56)#& Al (28.03)7& Il

86 hEMXBRERE (£E8)5RAT  2019F K



FEMEKAE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2019%F 12831 H
At 31 December 2019

Pt & 2019 2018
NOTES TET FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
ERDEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties |7 130,724 133,531
EN e ] Property, plant and equipment 18 194,507 238,574
EREEE Right-of-use assets 19 6,342 =
ik 3 Goodwil 20 2,004 2,004
BRVEE Intangible assets 21 - 63,165
RIEHIEEE Deferred tax assets 36 - | 643
REEE R R 2 Interests in associates 22 194,587 206,108
NG &R 2R Interests in joint ventures 23 932,381 1,015,299
B —EaeEhER Amount due from a joint venture 29 67,351 104,165
BATEFAREMEZE Financial assets at fair value through
Wz emEE other comprehensive income 24 4,800 4,908
1,532,696 1,769,397
mEEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 41,170 78,291
BHREMBEU &S  Trade and other receivables, deposits
RIEN K and prepayments 26 1,079,654 1,760,599
ANEE Contract assets 27 226,518 304,759
JFE WAL Bt & X ) 3K Amounts due from associates 28 154,507 252,457
BN —FeEhER Amount due from a joint venture 29 19,186 20,089
BEEFRITER Pledged bank deposits, bank balances
RITBEBERAS and cash 30 78,236 88,838
1,599,271 2,505,033
mEAR Current liabilities
B 5 R E MK Trade and other payables 31 1,320,176 1,467,241
JIE {5} Bt 2 R R] 3K Amounts due to associates 28 23,372 25,876
A EDER Amounts due to joint ventures 29 2,862 2,459
BT 8 B Government grants 32 696 711
RIEEE Warranty provision 33 328,231 259,918
FE 718 Taxation payable 1,621 1,888
f&E Borrowings 34 659,983 125,542
HERE Lease liabilities 35 5,078 -
2,342,019 1,883,635
nE(RAR)RERE Net current (liabilities) assets (742,748) 621,398
REBBARDAR Total assets less current liabilities 789,948 2,390,795
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RaMEBIKAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2019F 12831 H
At 31 December 2019

B 5x 2019 2018
NOTES FEIT FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
ERBDAR Non-current liabilities
B B Government grants 32 27,520 28,123
&E Borrowings 34 1,094,019 1,641,178
HEEE Lease liabilities 35 1,363 =
BEENBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 36 17,833 18,337
1,140,735 1,687,638
(350,787) 703,157
BERGER Capital and reserves
LN Share capital 37 436,900 436,900
(EAL) & (Deficit) reserves (828,878) 213,153
ARBVER AEGER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company (391,978) 650,053
FEIEHIME R Non-controlling interests 41,191 53,104
(BH)Eaed Total (deficit) equity (350,787) 703,157

FIRESR24E 2 IR BREK NEES The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 264 were approved
202055 H 5B L R ETIE - SWALEA and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on |5 May 2020 and are

TEERREE: signed on its behalf by:
BRF il
HAN QINGPING XU JUN
HITEE HITEF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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GEHRERR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

LG LN
Attributable to owners of the Company
DREMER FEREED
k% BURE  RBER  Propery ERGHE  AMEE  RHER Non-
Share Special Share  revaluation Exchange Other  Accumulated gt controlling #n
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserves losses Sub-total interests Total
TAT AT TET TET TAT AT TET TET AT AT
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(Hiti) (#rit2)
(Note ) (Note 2)
R0I75128318 At 31 December 2017 436,900 86971 2732397 1,399 191498 107,100 (1,522,136) 2034129 66,749 2,100878
AEEFE Loss for the year - - - - - - (1320525)  (132052) ©621)  (1330,14¢)
FEZHERELL  Exchange differences arising on
EXEE translation to presentation
currency - - - - (63551) - - (63551) 74) (66293)
AFEREFRZBEE  Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (63551) - (13055)  (1384076) 12363 (1:396439)
W—HBARZIEEH Dividend paid to non-controling
BEERNZRE interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (1282) (1282)
HE-RHEAR Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - 18819 - (18819) - - -
B2 Transfer - - - - - 04 (324) - - -
R0I8%128318 At 31 December 2018 436900 86971 2732397 1399 146,766 107424 (2.861,804) 650053 53,104 703,157
AEEEHR Loss for the year - - - - - - (1,045,306)  (1,045,306) (10,173)  (1,055,479)
RERF|EHELZ  Exchange differences arising on
EXEE translation to presentation
currency - - - - 3,275 - - 3,275 (943) 2,332
TEEZEMA Total comprehensive income
(%) 88 (expense) for the year - - - - 3215 - (1,045306)  (1,042,031)  (I1,116)  (1,03,147)
m—REREA Dividend paid to non-controlling
FEFIMBRE RS interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (197) (197
B Transfer - - - - - 401 (401) - - -
R0I9%12A318 At 31 December 2019 436,900 86,971 2,732,397 1,399 150,041 107,825 (3,907,511) (391,978) 41,191 (350,787)
Bl - REBzBRIBHIERLATERTRAT Note |: The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
BEANFFFEAMNBARS ZITRAT amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount
B7EZBEBBAREERNIO97E8A I B#E of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the
TEAM R EMEEER 7 B 16025000 aggregate amount of HK$116,025,000 transferred from other reserves pursuant
BT REERAREMOEZE20I5F128318 to the Group's reorganisation on || August 1997 and the amount of dividend
FEERE - recognised and paid for the year ended 3| December 2015.
K2 EMERHeERPEARLNR ([RH]) Note 2: Included in other reserves are reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's

M—RMBARENRENBHEFERR
(VEREEXBORRESURBERR
BEREEERE BERBETATDRT
BREFERHES

Republic of China (the "PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior
years' losses or (i) expand production operations and reserve fund for future
enhancement of safety production environment and improvement of facilities and

is not available for distribution to shareholders.
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FEHRAER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Bt Z2019F 12831 A IF FE

For the year ended 3| December 2019

M 2019 2018
NOTE FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
(4 Z3)
(Restated)
BEED Operating activities
B 150 31 65 18 Loss before taxation
- RERBBLLEY — from continuing operations (991,868) (1,233,464)
~REERIEREER — from discontinued operations (59,841) (96,102)
(1,051,709) (1,329,566)
FUATREELRE: Adjustments for:
MEHA Interest income (5,465) (5211
MEFR% Interest expenses 80,860 82,546
A= UNGIE ¥ Share of results of associates 5,076 129,834
BlEREbEXE Share of results of joint ventures (31,359) (76,177)
B EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 9,577 33474
mE -BERZEZE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 24,463 31,166
TREEEZE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5,698 -
HE—ABR KR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 44 - (17,417)
B HER 2 BT i B Government grants recognised (708) (766)
REMELTEESZ (Gain) loss from changes in fair value of
(M) B #E investment properties (112) 9,452
HE/ MENE - BER Loss on disposal/write-off of property, plant
R BE and equipment 4,267 5949
HEVEERRCREER Impairment losses recognised in respect of
intangible assets 55,432 163,606
HE BERRERERL Impairment loss recognised in respect of
REEE property, plant and equipment 15,874 23,501
BEPE KRR b Impairment losses, net of reversal, recognised
AARBSUEAREE in respect of trade balances arising from
BHERBRORERER contracts with customers and amounts due
(fBR%EE) from associates in trade nature 535,568 727,193
BN —FEBE DR R Impairment loss recognised in respect of
—RaERER amount due from an associate and a joint
R REER venture 75,969 -
iRl 77 & Write-down of inventories 22,623 62212
MiEEERS Write-off of purchase deposits 23,342 =
HEEREBHILE Operating cash flows before movements
Heng in working capital (230,604) (160,204)
78 (Em R (Increase) decrease in inventories (8,812) 13916
BOHREMEK  Re AR Decrease in trade and other receivables, deposits
BT and prepayments 129,596 143,406
BREE (BM)ED> (Increase) decrease in contract assets (13,646) 6,634
i N Decrease in amounts due from associates 6,734 -
B 5 RE MRS Decrease in trade and other payables (117,051) (145,525)
EHAERYD Decrease in contract liabilities - (13,765)
JERT B & A B FOR > Decrease in amounts due to associates (1,973) (33,396)
EReatERemOnd) Increase (decrease) in amounts due to
joint ventures 465 (1,434)
REREEM Increase in warranty provision 73,994 29,062
ARRE 7B E Cash used in operations (161,297) (161,306)
ERAEH Income taxes paid (1,940) 4713)
RERPMARE TR Net cash used in operating activities (163,237) (166,019)
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GRAKINER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Z2019F 12831 A IFFE

For the year ended 3| December 20/9

M 2019 2018
NOTE FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
(#E3))
(Restated)
RBED Investing activities
WS & ARz IR Receipt of dividend income from
a joint venture 225,205 195,747
EKAE Interest received 4,555 968
HEME  BERFEHMSH Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 1,438 2,807
YR B 465 B Receipt of government grants 754 -
BTHERR BN Advance to associates (4,129) (21,774)
BEWE BERR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,919) (12,101
(T—HagtEs®x) (Advance to) repayment from a joint venture
—RAERERN (2,293) 4283
R—EME N[ 2FE Capital injection in an associate (2,276) =
RERVEE Addition of intangible assets (2,082) (51,460)
HE—RREAR Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary
RERAFE 44 - 18,619
Wi B B 2 1 B2 AR B A Receipt of dividend income from associates - 5989
BEARRK Repayment from associates - l,18]
REREEARRITER Release of pledged bank deposits - 54
REGHEACREFE Net cash from investing activities 214,253 144313
BEED Financing activities
MEAEE New borrowings raised 426,443 1,341,018
BRIEE Repayment of borrowings (407,999) (1251,075)
ERAE Interest paid (80,860) (82,546)
BEHERE Repayment of lease liabilities (5,598) -
m) — P B 2 Rl JE e 1 Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of a
BaEX M ZRE subsidiary (797) (1282)
BERMAEREAE Repayment of obligation under a finance lease - (22)
REED (FA)MEN Net cash (used in) from financing activities
ReFE (68,811) 6,093
REeRBEZEMRLFR Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17,795) (15613)
ENZRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 88,829 107,871
NEEXEE  HE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 7,193 (3:429)
ER7BRERASEEN Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
PARTT#88 RIR 3R representing bank balances and cash 78,227 88,829
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e MEREME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

IA. —fRE#

HEMABERER(EE)ERAA
(IRRAE]) RRFAERSEMATL 2
BERAG - BRORBEAMERSMA
BRAE (TBRAT]) Ef-AARIZE
R X B B Astrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech | ) * Astrotech & 1A 5 & #
BRESEMK I AR HEARAT
60.64%2 fE 2 ° Astrotechf Bl G 12 3
BUE = A ST R TR o b (T AR ] ) 2
BRB -FEMABRER AT ([
el ERERERASRKAER
Bl SRR A R o AR Ko N & B39
A B AL

ARTAEMBEEBIREBEE Y
BRERERZARAR

ARAZDEEEBARE (AR
%)) T B HRRAET (178
T2 ARNEFRRARA B
REAT RHRBRH LT KBH
RAEERES RMETAAENS
B -

ARBZ EBEBRREZR  TRM
BLR BERRAIRAELRECIIER
TS BT HTRE45

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

IA. GENERAL

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech Group Limited
("Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
which holds 60.64% interest in the Company. Astrotech is wholly-
owned by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"),
a state-owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science & Technology
Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company of the
Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and
CALT are companies established in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the

annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors of the Company consider that HK$ is
the appropriate presentation currency since the Company is a public
company with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of

its investors are located.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its major subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

are set out in note 45.



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IB. REMBHREHER

AEEHE0I9F12A3IBLEE
EERBRELEEB 2 FERLN
995,638,000/ 7T * K& # £2019F 12 A
3R AEBORGEERDAEBFEE
& & & F 5 5 5l #9742,748,0007% 7T &
350,787,000/ T - A& BB BB B
,754,002,0007% 7T + H #1659,983,000/%
T B2019F 12831 B+ =

WEBEE: MR2019F 128318
BekBReSEBMELR78227,000%

ﬁo

ERAEER ARBESFEFEAE
EREE AU B ERAREL LR
EEEZRASENARRBDEER
IR K K ] AR B B R © AN B
BEREVGE TR 8RB AT ERBE
SMRLRE RSB BAR  BIEE
TRRIATRIE:

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

IB. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group incurred a net loss from continuing operations of
approximately HK$995,638,000 during the year ended 31 December
2019 and, as of 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$742,748,000 and
HK$350,787,000, respectively. The Group's aggregate borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$1,754,002,000, out of which
HK$659,983,000 will be due for repayment within twelve months from
31 December 2019; while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$78,227,000 only as at 31 December 2019.

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and financial position
of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity position and to improve the Group's financial position which

include, but are not limited to, the followings:
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e MEREME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

IB. FEMEBRRERER o)

(i)

REE-—EFEEMABRTB
EREEDA ([MARBHH
Bl ARRRBRHMBLR) R
KSR REIREE R AT R R
BRUBBN B EEREER
AR 7922000007 (HHE R4
884,369,000/ 70 ) bA & X &7 B B
BMARE M BEERZTARN
2B 7 A R #400,000,0007T (48
2N 47446,538,00008 T ) % E
BERSEL ER A ®RE 2 B
rcciiy e it = Rl = RO NN =<5
ERE ERBAZE ZEE
RET A RAERRSE FRE
AT

BUWARRBHE-T—NFAH
BZ+tHRBZzAMERALRAH
HE-_E-_TF-_A_-+N\AH
ZHRMFE R-_E-hE+=
A-+HB AEBRMARH
HHERMARRTBEERASE
B 12 it & & A R #300,000,0007T
(18 & 7 #9333,000,000 7T ) 2
EXRETI v ER RS ([ER
WiEl) ZEERRBEZUAR
EERTMAREMENRE
EOELRERRERLEHK
EERGARAR ([ZHEE])
BEZAERG (HEREH
B 249% ) 2 B fa & ([P
HHEIEER - ERERE
THHPBRAE—EBFEE-E
FHEEBRORAZER T =
ZE=ZF+N\BRINEKAQTE
BSR4 Rl K & - AR SR L O o
REETEHRRIERSH K
£ BB REA R 61,450,0007T
(1% M 4968,599,000/ 7T ) ° 2
EEENEHEZERRERS
A B #300,000,0007T (HHE R D
333,000,000 7 ) - AEAEH
BaRAMBREAMER R —
BRARAESEANTEER-
ARAREERA EHMARE
BHEREEE RS R H
— SR

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

IB. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

()

The Group has been actively negotiating with Aerospace
Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd. (“ASTF"), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, and CALT for the extension of
the existing unsecured loans of RMB792,200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$884,369,000) advanced from ASTF
and loans of RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$446,538,000) advanced from CALT through ASTF as the
trustee, both of which will be due within twelve months from
the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is expected
that further extension of such loans would be granted by these
counterparties based on past experience;

As set out in the Company's announcement dated 25
September 2019 and the Company's circular dated 28 February
2020, the Group and ASTF entered into a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) on 25 December 2019 for a loan facility of
RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$333,000,000)
to be provided by ASTF to the Group, which are secured by
the share charge (the “Share Charge") to be granted by the
Group in favour of ASTF over all its shares held in a joint
venture, Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems
Co., Ltd (“Delphi”) (representing 49% of the share capital of
Delphi). The loan is repayable on the first anniversary of the
Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement and the Share Charge
were approved by the shareholders in the extraordinary
general meeting of the shareholders of the Company on [8
March 2020. As at the date of the approval of the consolidated
financial statements, an amount of RMB61,450,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$68,599,000) has been drawn down by the
Group. The Group is expected to utilise the full amount of this
loan facility up to RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$333,000,000) to enable sufficient financial resources are
available to the Group within twelve months from the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is expected that further
extension of such loan facility would be granted by ASTF upon
expiry;



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IB. FEMBERENER o)

iy AEBEELHEBEEERERKE
RIEB 673510008 7T WiE
BHEBBAAELEMER LT
REFUHEER

vy AEBE-EESHREEEXR MU
WEAEBRN —HAE DX RE
& N 7] 42 BR [ 8 /46,871,000
TLZ AR HE

v AEE-EHEESHKEEER U
WBEAEEURFIREES
482260008 L 2 B M E

Vi) AEBBREEILHEHAZHE
EENGEIRBIERERERE
BRREARENEREBEBRAE
BEFREEF: &

vi) ARE-EZHREERALE
Ay REEA %°$El—ﬁﬁ
{ERARSER LEE
LERAESENS m%xg
K(MB) ARARIEERS B
p$%Eﬂ£E%%Aﬁ—i%

B TiHELR e (ER) -

S

ADBREFRR KEE LAFEIRE
i ARERARRAZEESHEL
2 UBTEEREFERBRR L
AiEst+—EARIMNMBEEE-
Bt - ARAREFRRRFELERE
REGARBRRTDBEE

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

IB. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(vii)

The Group has been arranging the collection of outstanding
balance from its joint venture of HK$67,351,000, through
disposal of the pledged land and buildings by such joint venture;

The Group has been looking for potential buyers to acquire the
Group's equity interests in a joint venture and an associate with

an aggregate carrying amount of HK$46,871,000;

The Group has been looking for potential buyer to purchase
an investment property of the Group located in Shenzhen with
carrying amount of HK$48,226,000;

The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment schedules
with certain of its debtors and endeavoring to request them to
repay the trade receivables in accordance with the repayment

schedules agreed with them; and

The Group has been arranging for settlement of part of the
balances outstanding to its creditors. The Group has ongoing
communication with its creditors, and monitored closely any
settlement requests of trade payables. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, it is expected that the Group could
further negotiate with its creditors and agree on the settlement

agreements where applicable.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into

account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will

have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet

its financial obligations as they fall due within twelve months from the

date of approval of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,

the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to

prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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e MEREME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

IB. FEMEBRRERER o)

@”Wk AR a8 RIS i DR
TH A ASEERERSER Lt
%ﬂ&%ﬁf&éﬁ$ﬁmﬁ A&E
REORFELERIANRAEERBMN
THAELRANBERELRER
EMEEN

E =]

(i

(V)

(vil

P Th A B R BB B S B 2 3R
BEEFERAKRK792,200,000
7t ($E 7 47884,369,0007% 7T )
A R N 8T Bt 38 38 i K B 4 B 7S
(EBXTN)BRZERA
R 400,000,000t (& R4
446,538,000/ 7T )

A B BB 1% B DD E BB R BH B 7%
feft 2 A% A R #300,000,0007T
(+AE 7 49333,000,000TT) 2 &
HEE

—BAECERNHEEERAL
Hh RAEF AUl Y — A E D
2 32067,351,0007 7T ;

BKOWEEER—BEAEEEN
BEARNBRE S REEEA
46,871,00058 7T :

RIS RRYREY R
AR TE 1B /348,226,007 7T :

REBEARZHE < ERERRR
RO A EE TERBAES:
&

EAKEERARGE LS (10
SER) ZRKH 5% o
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IB. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above plans

and measures are in progress, significant uncertainties exist as to

whether management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans

and measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able to

continue as a going concern would depend upon the Group's ability

to generate adequate financing and operating cash flows through the

followings:

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

successful extension of the existing unsecured loans of
RMB792,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$884,369,000)
advanced from ASTF and loans of RMB400,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$446,538,000) advanced from CALT
through ASTF as the trustee;

successful extension of the loan facility of RMB300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$333,000,000) provided by
ASTF upon expiry;

successful disposal of the pledged land and buildings by a joint
venture in order to collect the amount due from that joint
venture of HK$67,351,000:

successful disposal of the equity interests in a joint venture
and an associate with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$46,871,000;

successful disposal of an investment property located in
Shenzhen with carrying amount of HK$48,226,000;

timely collection of the Group's certain debtors in accordance

with the repayment schedules agreed with them; and

successful agreement with the Group's creditors of settlement

arrangements where applicable.



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IB. FEMBERENER o)
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

IB. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and
measures, or should ASTF and CALT no longer have the financial ability
to provide finance to the Group, it might not be able to continue to
operate as a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made
to reclassify the Group's non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively, to write down the
carrying values of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts
and to provide for any provision for any contractual commitments
that have become onerous as at the end of the reporting period.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

Annual Report 2019  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

97



REMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

2. ERAMITREETEEME
BEEN([FEMERSGE
Bll) (&)

REFEAFNENNFITREESTE
RMEREER (2)

BB ENE 9% STEEIE
(B3IK) RSB E
BB G ERNE2% RS AR R
(B3IX) RERAYL
RE#ER
BAMBRE £ BEME
(BAIX) W& &S
“E-1%F%
“E—+F
ELE R

BRI E SN - NAFE A Ll #h
BB REERR BB B RE
RRZ BT ARREHASENE A
EARFEHBRREKE R, &
REGRMBRRMECBBELEE
K3

&

g
I

o

BB BHEERFE16% [HE ]
AEBERAFEEENERAEETH

HEHBE 65 - BB EREERE
6 MR BB S ERE 75 [HE]
REERE-

928 hEMXBRERE (£E8)5RAT  2019F K

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the above new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretations in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and

performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”, and the related

interpretations.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial

application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after | January 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract

contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 6 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognised at the date of initial application, | January 2019.

As at | January 2019, the Group recognised lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening accumulated losses and

comparative information has not been restated.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS
|6 at transition, the Group applied the following practical expedients
to leases previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease

contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date of

initial application; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use

assets at the date of initial application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified as
operating leases, the Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial application. The

weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied is 4.35%.
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ERMITREEITEMRE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

BREER([ERMEREE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
Bll) (&) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
REEERHENDMITREBITE New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
BRMBEREEYN (&) effective for the current year (Continued)
EBUBHEERE 6T [HE) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(%)

TEREABA ()

As a lessee (Continued)

2019118
At | January
2019
FAT
HK$000
7201851231 HKEE  Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018
M EHE AR 8,946
i Less:
BRARE-EHEE Recognition exemption — short-term leases (225)
AIfTREE A -MEE  Practical expedient — leases with lease terms ended within
VERBEINMEARA |2 months at the date of initial application
ThEZMEE (3,852)
4869
FA2019F 1 HIBZHME#  Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental borrowing rates
WEEEMEETUR  asat | January 2019
MHERR 4,725
vail=] Analysed as
mE Current 3,306
FERH Non-current 1419
VDS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at | January

BEZREERENT: 2019 comprises the following:
ERERE
Right-of-use
assets
FET
HK$000
HERERBEBHMBIME  Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases recognised
R E 6B R upon application of HKFRS 16
REEERAN
fEAERE 4,725
B&R By class:
T REF Land and buildings 4,725

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#
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BRAHIREETEEZMSE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
BREER([ERMEREE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
Bll) (&) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
REFERVEROHRITREECTE New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
BRMBEREEYN (&) effective for the current year (Continued)
EBUBHEERE 6T [HE) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
(%)
1EREAMA (B) As a lessee (Continued)
TXHEINER -_T-NhF-—HA—-B2 The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in
HEMBMRARABRAZ 2BIELZ the consolidated statement of financial position at | January 2019. Line
AR WEARINILBEHEHTEZE items that were not affected by the changes have not been included.
H o
®2019%F
SRR I1RI1B
20185 REFEME
12A31R REEREIR
ERMEREE HAE EHRMHEREE
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December | January
2018 Adjustments 2019
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current asset
EREEE Right-of-use assets - 4,725 4,725
mEaE Current liability
HEBE Lease liabilities = (3,306) (3,306)
ERBEE Non-current liability
HE&E Lease liabilities - (1,419) (1,419)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,
movements in working capital have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at | January 2019 as

disclosed above.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the Group
is not required to make any adjustment on transition for leases in
which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases in accordance
with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application and comparative

information has not been restated.

The directors of the Company considered the application of HKFRS 16
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial

position and performance as a lessor for the current year
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits received
were considered as rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS
|7 applied under trade and other payables. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect
the discounting effect at transition. However, the adjustments are

insignificant at the date of initial application, | January 2019.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Insurance Contracts'

Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

Amendments to HKAS | Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after | January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the “Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards”, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020.

Except for the amendments to HKFRS mentioned below, the directors
of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the other
new and amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation will have a
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality

judgments. In particular; the amendments:

. include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which

the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the information;

J replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could

influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence”; and

J include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply

referring to “users” which was considered too broad when

deciding what information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will
be mandatorily effective for the Group's annual period beginning on
| January 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the

“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction

between a liability and an equity instrument;

discusses historical cost and current value measures, and
provides additional guidance on how to select a measurement

basis for a particular asset or liability;

states that the primary measure of financial performance is
profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances other
comprehensive income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current value of an

asset or liability; and

discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the

reporting entity and combined financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards (Continued)

The New Framework: (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions of
the framework. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer to the
previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the New
Framework on its effective date in determining the accounting policies
especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise

dealt with under the accounting standards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
which are measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies

set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since | January 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results

of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level I, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

S Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

0 has power over the investeg;

0 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets

of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 or when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash generating units (or groups of cash generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.

A cash generating unit (or groups of cash generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash
generating unit (or groups of cash generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or

groups of cash generating units).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)

retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an

associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

Annual Report 2019  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

115



116

RaMBERNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

35

FEEHBK &)

REBELTREERLRIRE (&)

BERRRAELRIER BERA
ENEREMENZSIRAMBTRE
AR e AR @A RRIE < B2 R R
RECEMBRRRAREZENEMU
ERTRBUR S RFHAERBER
FZetBREHE - AEKECELEE
BEAEBEARRAERR 2G5
BERAAEE G HR R - RigED
% RBERR R ERRIRENS
RKAR S BN REER WA
KEENRALNEBRIAZEZ AR
FeEbEcBEEMEEKE-
KM%EQT A%ﬁ%%ﬁ&@ﬁ
(1Bs M EE I A
N SRS ﬁ$¢l%ﬁm
GEREDH BAKEENG-HHE
ARHAEEEIBERELAARER
DBMELRSARELFE R (B
EELEBRAKRERZBERRXA
EhRREFE A2 EARDE
@) B ARERIEEREMGE—S
BR-ENAEECEDERRIETER
T AERRZBELRHBELEX
NRBEZBERT T eERBEIINEE -

FaS

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments have been made to conform the associate's and the joint
venture's accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate or joint venture.



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEEHBK &)

b2 3

B

T
B
Iy
n

EEERZRR (&)

EEREZRENER
Wil “ﬂﬂ&é“ﬁ%“ﬁ%
%%”f RN E ARKA
BEEZRER REKXNBRASE
DIEZERELTHNEEREBER
FRE2EASIEREEE Wit A
BEZREAE WREFNTEE &
BRI HAEERBEBEC AT FE
BIMEERA - Alg IR & 2 1A
IR B s R

\
N

Z-%
e

Zm‘\/\)

Y

]
\n

i’

5 B

n

Bl

ASEFGERLGEARERBRERANE
ERAIRAERE DA BERE-

=

WEFEETAEBREE RE (BEA
B2 2HRAERE-EEREDE
SRTEREGSRETRER  TER
FEAWE S (VAEREERQTE
BEERAZBRERE) BEREE
fELLE - BB ZEREBEL RS

R =

EEEMEE (BEBHE) BRERE
REEZ D REFEGELF

3657 + REE 1R A @ R AR A
HEREMZ RO 2B AR -

=
ElS

R & e
ERRHAELE EAER
BZBERT  TeRAKBZEaM%
WA PR

> I
w%%@%m

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount

of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or

joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the

relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

0 the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

J the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. The Group's contract assets
represent retention receivables for which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional at the end of the warranty period. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract

are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised

impairment loss.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS
6) or (before application of HKFRS

[6) in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the

prepaid lease payments”

consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the

entire properties are classified as property and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair values, adjusted to exclude

any prepaid or accrual operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

J the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that

it will be available for use or sale;

J the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

J the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

J how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

J the availability of adequate technical, financial and other

resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to

the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that

are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if

any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses whether there
is indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant

cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all

estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other vears and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference

arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEEHBK &)

W& (&)

RME AR ZHRERRBERR LA
EhRBEAMZERMERZR
BYHREEHRBRIE  FRIFAEE R
EHRRZE B MASHEEZE
PRABEAER RARRERL - BAZFR
BREGZANRRREZRELNOR
ERBEEE ENr R R ARRT T
AR PR 4K 84 B By = B8 | 25 L TR S
A R AR B RIER N5 T HERR

ARERBEHREREEHEAE
2B WET A4 R R
R 2 B 805 B 0 R
Hio

BREHREENAGBENRETHRE
BHAEEICEANTE (RBX)
REPNEEREXEREENHE
R BERFTE -

ELHARBELEEFERRERAK
SENREPABHULOKEEEE
FRBERABZ T AMEL 2B
%O

AEMBRAFERAGEZRENE
HEER AR - BRME CREETIR
RBBIHE2BRE - BRIFZRRBIE
BRIRRSN - BREMER THERIAE
ERERRMIEEBHEE HRRKENE
FBEERAMOEENENERER
RAR BRBRRSRERD-

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than

through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS |2 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities

resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same tax

entity by the same tax authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they related to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included

in the accounting for the business combination.
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of leasehold land and buildings and motor vehicles that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

J the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,

less any lease incentives received; and
S any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not

readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance

fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest

accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever the lease term
has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the date of reassessment or changes in market rental rate
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payment using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

S the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the

right to use one or more underlying assets; and

S the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price

to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a

revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component

and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or; if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of

financial position as a finance lease obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as

expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted
as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lumpsum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold

land is under finance lease.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit in
the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial measurement
of the net investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return

on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for

investment properties measured under fair value model.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS |5 to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part
of the lease payments for the new lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the

useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Annual Report 2019  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

137



138

RaMBERNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

35

FEEHBK &)

BHEFEE

B E R RN E B A
BEAE2HERTINERERERES
REARRERI/MA

ERIEAET

FRHE B RN R IRt R R AR
1T ST ERBERABH & 8 T ARER
AR R B BAIIRR AR - BRIE
BER—HEAMBHREENRTEI
AFRAE R A B ERARRIE R ©

EBERABN (WIBRFE FRE
AR)NARENEREERAAE

ﬁﬁ ﬂé?&éﬂﬁf%M%=°
MERREENSREERRGHE
ERERNR LHER - AR EEHEARE
35 3 Al S 1B I AT 3 R s PR A S B
ENGREERSR-

éﬂﬁ?&éﬂﬁ1@*ﬁ@¥ﬁﬁ

EEEBRFANNE SRR
Eém%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmiﬁg
R B BETTEREERERAR
BEREH X HHARIFHERE N
AEREEAFEAXEREELT
B (&) -

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the government-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the service. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

S the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual

cash flows; and
J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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(Continued)
e€MIR (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
ETHEE (&) Financial assets (Continued)
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
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All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit/loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit—
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity

investments, and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit

or loss.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model (including trade and other receivables, contract
assets, amounts due from associates and joint ventures, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each

reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, |2-month ECL (“I2m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are made based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and amounts due from associates in trade nature. The

ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to |2m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date

with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
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at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

experience and forward-looking information that is available

RIFE B #} e without undue cost or effort.

ARmE AHEERRELE In particular, the following information is taken into account

ZRMEZETIINER : when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

c ERMIAMINS (B K . an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
NEBEE T RE R A financial instrument's external (if available) or internal
REEE: credit rating;

- AMBTHEERRIERE +  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
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BANEEROERER

credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

AUEEYIIE

. X% MBS EEMRRE 0 existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
Rl B AMNEEHESR or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
SBHEBABITHER significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
BERIBE S KIE TP obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

0 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(il

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)

that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any

subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual

cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the

contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,

discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for

determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in

measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16
(since | January 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to | January 2019).

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of

the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which

case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for

all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the

exception of trade receivables, contract assets, and amounts due from

associates, where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through

a loss allowance account.

Annual Report 2019  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

149



150

RaMBERNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

35

FEEHBK &)

&MIR(Z)
ETREE (&)
TREEZRIER

EERBEEURREREZROET
EEHE ARERIEITHBEE
INEREREENRZEERA
ARERRERLOHERETEME
BRRIERZREE WAKELAR
BETARBBREDAEERRR K
A EEEH D EREE  AIAKE
ERERZBEENREERT R E
AX NN REDEEAE  HAKE
RE-BHCBRTREENBAI S
FIARERR N EH AR EREER
ZATBEEY T2 WE TR
R-BRABRMEE-

RELBRRARBEERATEZERE
ER EEREERCRNIERREZ
ERRERER

PR RN EEERREAFEA
HipeERatENRETANKE
B ERIRRE B AR RES
FETEEMHIBERG BEBBE
ZEER-

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not

reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised
as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of the money is

material).

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers are recognised
at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best

estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interest as

appropriate).

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same
functional currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising
on translation to presentation currency are transferred directly to

accumulated losses.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the management has reviewed the Group's investment properties
portfolios. For the Group's investment property located in Shenzhen
of the PRC, the management concluded that it is depreciable, but
not held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment property, the management determined that
the presumption that this investment property measured using the fair

value model is recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group's investment property located in Tieling of the PRC,
the management concluded that it is depreciable and is being held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group's deferred taxation on investment property, the management
determined that the presumption that this investment property
measured using the fair value model is recovered through sale is
rebutted. The potential deferred tax impact to the Group at the end of

the reporting period is shown in note 36.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

period, are discussed below.

(a)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets of
technology know-how

Determining whether intangible assets of technology know-
how are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the relevant cash generating unit to which technology
know-how have been allocated. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the future cash flows expected
to arise from the relevant cash generating unit, discount rate
and growth rate in order to derive the net present value of the
recoverable amount and management's judgement. Where the
expected future cash flows are less than expected, or changes
occur in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash, further impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of technology
know-how is nil (2018: HK$48,370,000), net of impairment loss
of HK$141,877,000 (2018: HK$106,298,000). Details of the

recoverable amount calculation is disclosed in note 21,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment assessments of trade receivables, contract
assets and amounts due from associates which are in
trade nature and amounts due from associates which
are in non-trade nature and amounts due from joint
ventures.

The management of the Group estimates the amount of ECL of
trade receivables, contract assets, amounts due from associates
in trade nature and amounts due from associates which are
in non-trade nature and amounts due from joint ventures
based on individual assessment, after considering internal credit
ratings of debtors, forward-looking information, recent trade
relationships, financial background and creditability of individual
debtor, historical settlement records such as default or delay
in payments and aging analysis of such balances and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors
operate. The estimated loss rate applied is based on the internal
credit rating assessed individually taking into consideration of
historical loss rates and forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable, and available to the directors of the
Company without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the loss rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-

looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group's trade receivables, contract assets,
amounts due from associates in trade nature and amounts due
from associates which are in non-trade nature and amounts
due from joint ventures and the impairment assessment of such

balances are disclosed in note 41.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment assessments of trade receivables, contract
assets and amounts due from associates which are in
trade nature and amounts due from associates which
are in non-trade nature and amounts due from joint
ventures. (Continued)

As at 3| December 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables, contract assets and amounts due from associates
in trade nature and amounts due from associates which are
in non-trade nature and amounts due from joint ventures are
HK$983,249,000 (2018: HK$1,495,086,000), HK$226,518,000
(2018: HK$304,759,000) and HK$38,589,000 (2018:
HK$127,619,000), HK$115,918,000 (2018: HK$124,838,000)
and HK$86,537,000 (2018: HK$124,254,000) net of allowance
for credit losses of HK$1,002,592,000 (2018: HK$632,447,000),
HK$ 160,213,000 (2018: HK$98,590,000), HK$214,982,000
(2018: HK$138,382,000), HK$36,485,000 (2018: nil) and
HK$38,150,000 (2018: nil) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have used a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions
and assumptions made on the investment properties, including
comparable market rents and transactions with adjustments to

reflect different locations or conditions.

In relying on the valuation reports, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions and current development of the investment
properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
As at 3| December 2019, the carrying amount of investment
properties is HK$ 130,724,000 (2018: HK$133,531,000).
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BRE 5. TURNOVER
AEERAFEREFBLEETH An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year from continuing
BEBOTMT operations is as follows:
2019 2018
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
(#ZE5))
(Restated)
BFHREERS Continuing operations
SHER NEEMEBEM Sales of wind energy related products 12,345 33,678
HERERSEE L Sales of electricity from operation of
EW) wind power field 25,962 25438
38,307 59,116
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The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external

customers are recognised at a point in time.

For sales of wind energy related products, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of a promised
good and the entity satisfies a performance obligation. The control is
transferred when the products are accepted on site which is the point
of time the customers have an ability to direct the use of the good and

obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the goods.
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TURNOVER (Continued)

For sales of electricity from operation of wind power field, revenue
is recognised upon the satisfaction of its sole performance obligation
with its customers (when the electricity has been transmitted to the
customer). The amount recognised is based on the observable price
of the goods in the contracts since there is no significant financing

component and there is no variable consideration.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 1[5, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

contracts is not disclosed.

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external

customers are detailed below:

2019 2018

FET TFET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

(#ZE3))

(Restated)

R The PRC 38,298 54,713
B Hong Kong 9 133
Hity Others - 4270
38,307 59,116
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (*CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision maker have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

In prior year, there were 3 reportable and operating segments namely
Wind Energy Related Products, Operation of Wind Farm and Energy
Storage and Related Products.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the CODM has reviewed
the Group's business operation and considered Energy Storage and
Related Products segment was discontinued. Therefore, it is no longer a
reportable and operating segment of the Group. Details are described

in note | 1.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments for the

year under HKFRS 8 "“Operating Segments” are as follows:

Wind Energy Related — Manufacture and sales of wind

Products energy related products
Operation of Wind Farm - Sales of electricity from operation

of wind power field

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SHEEH ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
SHBRREER Segment revenue and results
AEEREERARENEEDZK The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results from
ERBEREEBR e B REEDN continuing operations by operating and reportable segment.
mTe
BE_S-NF1T-A=1+—-HLF For the year ended 31 December 2019
E
BhRE
HRER RGEE wme
Wind
Energy Operation
Related of Wind
Products Farm  Consolidated
FET FET FExT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
HHEEERY Continuing operations
3 1] TURNOVER
HINHE External sales 12,345 25,962 38,307
& RESULT
NERE Segment result (856,768) 600 (856,168)
AEAEAAER  Unallocated corporate expenses (100,889)
REHEEAMIUW A Unallocated other income 17,357
B AR Finance costs (80,860)
i i) AN Share of results of an associate
ES
—REHEEHH — unallocated portion (6,562)
Bl —HA&={%  Share of results of a joint venture
ES
—REH R — unallocated portion 35,142
BREMEZ Gain from changes in fair value of
N EEE RS investment properties 112
BRELAIEE Loss before taxation (991,868)
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2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

6. HHEEH 7 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
SHEBRBRER (&) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
BE-E-\F+=-HA=1—HIL#F For the year ended 31 December 2018
E

EWk
HEER Ri5E s e
Wind
Energy Operation
Related of Wind
Products Farm Consolidated
FRET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
(KZE3))
(Restated)
FREERS Continuing operations
EXE TURNOVER
HINHE External sales 33678 25,438 59,116
R RESULT
DEEE Segment result (1,099,698) (6,331) (1,106,029)
REHBARER  Unallocated corporate expenses (119,301
REDBEAMWA  Unallocated other income 14,597
BT RR Finance costs (82,546)
FE{h—fEB & A8  Share of results of an associate
ES
—RKEDEBD — unallocated portion (5,925)
BhH—HeEhE Share of results of a joint venture
ES
—REHEBD — unallocated portion 75,192
Txﬁ%%Z Loss from changes in fair value of
NTEEZFHESE investment properties (9,452)
BrEiAIE 1 Loss before taxation (1,233,464)
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FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHEEHE 2

SEBBRRRIR(ZF)

BE-F-N\F+-A=1—-HIF
E (&)

DEEBRES D BEENBRTAEE -
TEEMBKRA - RENE L AT EE
Bl BE AESRZEN—ME
BERAR—HEEREEE URK
RAOBREMBARARIER  WEB1T
BRARESH S  EHBERRR T
1,486,000 7T (= — )\ F : E{h 518
123,909,000 7T) R EL—HE &t E
E5183,783,0008 T (Z T — N\F : (L
7 F9850008 T ) R ELERE D o 1k
TRERDERDBEYFETE -
RAAEENTESZRME-

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Segment results represent the loss before taxation incurred by each
segment, excluding finance costs, gain/loss from changes in fair value
of investment properties, share of results of an associate and a joint
venture which cannot be allocated, unallocated other income and
corporate expenses such as central administration costs and directors’
salaries. Share of profits of associates of HK$1,486,000 (2018: share
of losses of HK$123,909,000) and share of loss of a joint venture of
HK$3,783,000 (2018: share of profit of HK$985,000) are allocated
to reportable segments. This is the measure reported to the Group's
Executive Directors for the purpose of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance.
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2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

6. DEEH 2 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
PHREERAR Segment assets and liabilities
AEERABREDREND ZEEKRA The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
BEAFTIT o reportable segment.
R-F-NFt+=A=1+—-H At 31 December 2019
BhRE
HEER RGER we
Wind
Energy Operation
Related of Wind
Products Farm  Consolidated
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HE ASSETS
DHEEE Segment assets 1,625,646 348,394 1,974,040
R—HE&a&EtEZ Interest in a joint venture
i 898,307
—REDEE D — unallocated portion
REDREE Unallocated assets 259,620
mEEEMRE Consolidated total assets 3,131,967
iR LIABILITIES
BERE Segment liabilities 1,663,753 2,895 1,666,648
KEHELEE Unallocated liabilities 1,816,106
REBELEE Consolidated total liabilities 3,482,754
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SHEEHE 2

SHRERAR(Z)

R-E-NF+ZF=1+—H

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2018

RhEE
MHEEm [R5 E s e
Wind
Energy Operation
Related of Wind
Products Farm Consolidated
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(#E5)
(Restated)
HE ASSETS
DHEEE Segment assets 2,464,137 362,848 2,826,985
REiE AB 2L Interests in associates 4,171
—REDEEBH — unallocated portion
N—REe&EhEY Interest in a joint venture
Ea 976,664
—REDEEBH — unallocated portion
HERIPEEFETEE  Assets relating to discontinued
E%Zﬁ& operation 51,915
REDEREE Unallocated assets 414,695
RAEBEERE Consolidated total assets 4,274,430
AR LIABILITIES
DEEE Segment liabilities 1,749,949 2,494 1,752,443
HER L% Liabilities relating to discontinued
75_%%2%% operation 347
ABDEEE Unallocated liabilities 1,818,483
meERBERE Consolidated total liabilities 3,571,273
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

6. HEEH 2

SHRERAR(Z)
R-FE-NFFZA=F—H (&)
REFEDBRBALIR O BRDEER

BTAARMR—HaE %/
ETHERRZER EREER
EREMFE BAFEFAHE
twEEkE eREEREMLS
BEE (TEERRITASRRER
Z)INFBEEADREERE
7 38 o BB R R0/l 2 77

NEELEDR R

AR DEE TEMNZKE:
BE HEREMETHBAARE

S FERESRERENE.

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2018 (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

J all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interests in a joint venture/certain associates which cannot be
allocated, right-of-use assets, investment properties, financial
assets at FVTOCI and other financial assets that comprise
of mainly bank balances and cash. Goodwill is allocated to

operating segments as described in note 20; and

J all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain payables, borrowings, lease liabilities and deferred tax

liabilities which cannot be allocated.
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SHEEHE 2

Htt 3 WEH
R-E-NF+ZA=1+—-H

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

At 31 December 2019

RFREERH Continuing operations

STENEZEEK  Amounts included in the measure
NEBER of segment result or segment
AZBH: assets:

WEGAEEE Additions of right-of-use assets

REWE- Additions of property, plant and
S E L equipment

B EESH Amortisation of intangible assets

ME BB R Depreciation of property,
BEITE plant and equipment

TREEEZ Depreciation of right-of-use assets
e

HE M Loss on disposal/write-off of
2 HER property, plant and equipment
R ER

NN Interests in associates
i

REEREZ Interests in joint ventures
i

JEGEE & A R Share of results of associates

EiEEEhE Share of results of joint ventures

TREEREL Impairment losses, net of
BERERE reversal on financial assets
(k& E) and contract assets

YR HE Impairment loss recognised in

RIBERZ respect of property, plant and

REEE equipment

HEFMEERR  Impairment losses recognised in
ZREBR respect of intangible assets

7 & MR Write-down of inventories

MEEERS

Write-off of purchase deposits

RH%EE
HARES RiHES RESE =e
Wind
Energy Operation
Related of Wind
Products Farm  Unallocated Consolidated
FEIT FEITT FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,403 - - 7,403
3,491 3,412 16 6,919
9,577 - - 9,577
10,905 12,133 1,043 24,081
2,362 - 3,336 5,698
4,267 - - 4,267
- 194,587 - 194,587
- 34,074 898,307 932,381
- 1,486 (6,562) (5,076)
- (3,783) 35,142 31,359
569,049 - - 569,049
15,753 - - 15,753
38,582 - - 38,582
22,623 - - 22,623
23,342 - - 23,342
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

6. HEEH 2

Htt 3 WBH (&)
R-C-NEF=-A=1—H

RFHEBERS
AENBREEY
NREERG
AZGH:
NEME
B E REE
//J\\Eﬁﬂ/ﬁg
B EESH
RE2ITE
HE /M

e
Bl

fﬁA%ﬁﬁ
ES
SHEENED
BEMERBR
(fnex & E)
B EEWER
ZRERE
wHE BE
RIGHER
WEEE
FEHMO

Continuing operations

Amounts included in the measure
of segment result or segment
assets:

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of intangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal/write-off of
property, plant and equipment

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Impairment losses, net of
reversal on financial assets
and contract assets

Impairment losses recognised in
respect of intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and
equipment

Write-down of inventories

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

At 31 December 2018

RHEE
EEE m
Wind
Energy
Related
Products

FET
HK$ 000

10,880
8,721
30,410

14,800

5949

(113782)

698,933

89912

23,501
62,212

BSEE
Operation
of Wind
Farm
FET
HK$ 000

216

12,482

201937
38,635
(10,127)

985

Unallocated
FEr
HK$'000

68

[,133

4171
976,664
(5.925)

75,192

B
S
o)

Consolidated
T
HK$ 000

(4 &)
(Restated)

[1,164
8,721
30,410

28415

5,949
206,108

1,015,299

(129,834)

76,177

698,933

89912

23,501
62,212
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

SHEEH ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
HMERH Geographical information
AEEZEBURES K EH M The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions
& © of the PRC.
REEMWBUEDBENAEEIERD Information about the Group's non-current assets by geographical
BEAHEHNFRNT location of the assets are detailed below:
FRBRERDE
Carrying amount
of non-current assets
2019 2018
TR T
HK$°000 HK$ 000
A H At & Other regions of the PRC 1,459,796 1,657,583
) Hong Kong 749 1,098
1,460,545 1,658,681

FRBEETERERASELETER
JFENEIEE D - A FEFTAZ AR
CREENRECHREERRE

Non-current assets exclude non-current portion of amounts due from

joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through comprehensive

income and deferred tax assets.
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

6. HHEEH 7 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
FHREEEFR®EH Information about major customers
RIEEFEERBRAEEREHE Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing
REE 2 BIHER 0% % P U over 10% of the total sales of the Group from continuing operations
K are as follows:

2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(#ZE3))
(Restated)
ZEA Customer A 25,962 25,438
& FB Customer B? 6,767 16318
BEC Customer C? 5,565 TEAN/A
EFD? Customer D? FERANA 15498
735 & & Wz : Revenue from Operation of Wind Farm
: BN % EREER KR B Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products
} A A Ui 2 1 7 B (B Ui 2 4 B Y B 7SI : The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 0% of the total
HHRIB0% ° revenue of the Group.
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

Hfth e A 7. OTHER INCOME
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEEERS Continuing operations
HinWAFEBE Other income mainly comprises:
BB (#1aE) Government grants (note) 2,161 2,609
REMERS WA Rental income from investment properties,
(EfMEr/ERX) net of negligible outgoings 6,132 6,698
HMEWA Interest income
—IRITE B — bank balances 487 963
— T MAaEL%¥ 2 - advance to a joint venture
2% 3,677 2,878
— 4T —HBE A ARZ - advance to an associate
B 1,301 1,365
Wit £%8718,0008 L (ZF — N\F: Note: An amount of HK$718,000 (2018: HK$766,000) represents subsidies

766,0007%8 7T ) 18 BI R AT/ 1 B b
BRNBEWE BERSEZZEM
BPAEE 2 HE (M 32)  #E
,443,000% 7T (= F —J\ 5 : 1,843,000
BIL) IERERN, KERREEER
HMRHERTAEE 2 2ERHD
VAR AP B S BRR R 3 B RS (3518
Bi1) Z Bt/ - %2 S B BE M B 61 19
B -

Annual Report 2019  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for the purpose
of financing the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (note 32).
The remaining amount of HK$1,443,000 (2018: HK$1,843,000) represents
operating subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/
authorities for operation of windfarm and other technology development,
and reduction approval from the PRC tax authorities on Value Added Tax

("VAT").There are no unfulfilled conditions attached to those grants.
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

8. Hftlh2 RGN

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2019 2018
FET TR
HK$°000 HK$ 000
(#EJ)
(Restated)
FEEERS Continuing operations
WEVEERAZ Impairment losses recognised in respect of
HEEE intangible assets (38,582) (89912)
HE/WEEWE BB Loss on disposal/write-off of property,
R ZEE plant and equipment (4,267) (5,949)
ERAER (&HE) Net exchange (loss) gain recognised
CoEneE:] (2,569) 988
YE - BERZEHER  Impairment loss recognised in respect of
ZHEEE property, plant and equipment (15,753) (23,501)
7B RO Write-down of inventories (22,623) (62,212)
MEBEEERS Write-off of purchase deposits (23,342) =
KREMEATFEZEH  Gain (loss) from changes in fair value of
W (BE) investment properties 112 (9,452)
(107,024) (190,038)
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

EMEERAGHEERESE 9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL,
( $01B% #% [ ) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT
ASSETS
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
(#ZE3))
(Restated)
BFHREERH Continuing operations
HEREEPEHNZES  Imparment losses, net of reversal, recognised
B R ENEE AR]A  in respect of trade balances arising from
BH5MEFRIBRERZE  contracts with customers and amounts
EEE (NRAED) due from associates in trade nature (493,080) (698,933)
EMN—EHE AT KR Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BELEEFEHNER amount due from an associate and a
FIAHER 2 BEER joint venture which are non-trade nature (75,969) =
(569,049) (698,933)
. BERF 10. FINANCE COSTS
2019 2018
FET T8
HK$’000 HK$'000
RFREERS Continuing operations
A Interest on:
—RITREME K — bank and other loans 80,541 82,546
-HEAR ~ lease liabilities 319 -
80,860 82,546
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

ERLERERE 1. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
@ #HEZFE-NF+ZA=+—H (@) During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group ceased
EFE AEEK EHFE R its business in the Energy Storage and Related Products
MERREED REARKFEE operation due to deterioration of operating results and financial
MRERERIBRNEE - performance during the year.
RECHRILREREEERL S The loss for the year from the discontinued Energy Storage and
¥R EAERERBRENT -REE Related Products operation is set out below. The comparative
BakHEM2EKRRTEED figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
&S T  UEHF25FaERAE comprehensive income has been restated to represent Energy
BEDMKEXBRER RS Storage and Related Product operation as a discontinuing
e operation.
BE2019¥F B ZE20185
12A3IBEFE 2A3IBELEFE
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
KRB BRI Loss for the year from the
HHAERKEEK 2 discontinued Energy Storage and
AEEERE Related Products Operation (59,841) (83,388)
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

1. ERLEEER o 1. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) (%) (@) (Continued)
REEREFFERBBEDRE The result of Energy Storage and Related Products operation for
EEBHREMT the current and preceding year is as follows:
BE2019% BE0185F
12A31B L FE 1A3IALFE
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
= Turnover - 16,643
HERAK Cost of sales - (14.277)
EH Gross profit - 2,366
RRERPENL Impairment losses, net of reversal, in
BAGEBRORNEER respect of trade balances arising from
(k&) contracts with customers (42,488) (28,260)
Hitn 5 Other losses (17,353) (57,494)
ARAAEAA Loss for the year and attributable to
BIEAEEER owners of the Company (59,841) (83,388)
RECRIEREXKL Loss for the year from discontinued
AEEBBELME: operation has been arrived at after
charging:
NE - BERRELZ Depreciation of property, plant and
e equipment (382) (2,338)
nNE BELRREBL Impairment losses in respect of property,
REREE plant and equipment (121 =
BEVEEREER Impairment losses in respect of intangible
assets (16,850) (57,494)
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2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

1. ERLBEEER o I1. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

) HEZFE-NF+ZA=+—H (b)
HFEE - ARA—HHBA R E
—EBBUE= B EMRER
BEEFRM ORI BRAAE
(MR RBIE )51 %= E] 3L
EREEINIEZEE

REEREEMFEHEEZHN

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a subsidiary of
the Company entered into an agreement with an independent
third party in respect of the disposal of 51% interests of fffix
RIEBEE TR ORI BB R (“Shenzhen Aerospace

Telecommunications”) as disclosed in note 44.

The loss for the period from the discontinued

RN Telecommunication Business operation is set out below.
B 220185
128298 IFHfA
Period ended
29.12.2018
TFAT
HK$ 000
REEKIEEH Loss for the period from discontinued Telecommunication
XBEEZHNER Business operation (30,131)
HE—HEMBARMWE  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44)
(Hite4) 17417
(12,714)

BERRBEERERNE R E
ERNENERHEERE

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

The revenue from Telecommunication Business operation
represented the sales of telecommunication products which was

recognised at a point in time.
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1. ERILEEEEE »)

(b)

(%)

ESAGABEREME2EKE
TNBAXKEER _T—\F
—A—BE=Z-N\¥+=A
“t+hBRERBHEMNEED

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

I1. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(®)

(Continued)

The results of Telecommunication Business operation for the
period from | January 2018 to 29 December 2018, the date of
disposal, which had been included in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, were as

N follows:
B=2018F
128298 IE#A
Period ended
29.12.2018
FHET
HK$'000
= 3 Turnover 12,065
HEKA Cost of sales (14,966)
8 Gross loss (2901)
H AU A Other income 615
Hinlzs &1  Other gains and losses (16518)
HERDHKA  Seling and distribution expenses (542)
THER Administrative expenses (10,785)
AHIREE Loss for the period (30,131)
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

ERLEEEEXHE o I1. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) (%) (b)  (Continued)

HZ2018F
RAVBLEEE
Period ended
29.12.2018
T

HK$000

T ALEGEEHAEE:  Loss for the period attributable to:

ZAN/NIE ZSDN Owners of the Company (30,131)
REBRIEEZE 2 Loss for the period from discontinued operation has
HREERD &Mk : been arrived at after charging:
Hip 8 THA Other staff costs 4,172
—Hi 8 TRIKEF — Other staffs' retirement benefits scheme contributions
AT 362
4534
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 3,064
BRBRAX ZFEMKA  Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 14,966
W BE KRB ZITE  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 413
HEVEE®RRZ Impairment losses recognised in respect of intangible assets
BB 1 16,200
FEMRIEF 2L Minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of
ExXfiz&ERE land and buildings 478
TN I RN Research and development expenses and after crediting: 3,362
M BUWA Interest income 5
BE_Z-\FtT_-AZ-TAhH During the period ended 29 December 2018, Telecommunication
B B XK A E AR Business contributed to the Group's net operating cash inflow of
FEER ST A2282,0008 T HK$2,282,000 and net investing cash outflow of HK$17,029,000.
FFRER &R 17,029,000
ﬁ o
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

12. FRIRAIG IR 12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
2019 2018
TET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
(#EZE5))
(Restated)
FEEERS Continuing operations
REFBREEBH Loss before taxation from continuing
BB E R IIBR T operations has been arrived at
BIE: after charging:
EEMe Directors’ emoluments 4,703 5415
Hp& TRA Other staff costs 58,730 68,093
Hith B TRIREH Other staff's retirement benefits scheme
AT B contributions 10,460 11286
73,893 84,794
1% S A Bl Auditor’s remuneration 3,150 3,200
| EESE Amortisation of intangible assets 9,577 30,410
BRAEMI 2FEKA  Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense 31,516 40,099
M HE RE&EZIE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 24,081 28415
ERREEZIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5,698 -
NHBEEREMIEER  Expense relating to short-term leases and
BREREBME other leases with lease terms ended
WEERNFE 16552 B within 12 months at the date of initial
REAANKIEMEER  application of HKFRS 16
HEEM 3,791 -
BELHMREFZEEM  Minimum lease payments under operating
Exftz&EHE leases in respect of land and buildings - 10,005
MER Research and development expenses 13,890 9,990
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

13. EX - #BERERHS

AEREZRARFHREER L
RAIREBARGHRENT :

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors” and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follow:

(a) EFRAER (a) Directors and chief executive
e gEE IhE™  BNE IR i i 20198
Liu Han Wang Liu Wang Li Xu Total
Zhiwei* Qingping”  Guanghui"*  Xiaowei’  Xiaodong™ Guang™ Jun 2019
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
UITER Executive directors
e Fees - - - - - - - -
Eflie Other emoluments:
54 2R Salaries, allowances and
A tbAER other benefits - - - 1,328 776 1,078 936 4,118
EIRER Retirement benefits - - - 17 I 17 18 63
i) Sub-total - - - 1,345 787 1,095 954 4,181
PR TEEMEFEERARE The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
RARBARAEBEREHAE for their services in connection with the management of the
HE AR - affairs of the Company and the Group.
B EE" RE® 2019585
Kan
Lai Kuen, Total
Li Dapeng Alice™ Ng Gordon 2019
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
BUKEHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
B Fees 174 174 174 522
b Sub-total 174 174 174 522

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

13. EXF -HERESME o) 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continved)

) EERBHE(Z) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
PBIHERTEEMETER The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
BREERARRIESMEEMHRA above were mainly for their services as directors of the
R 75 - Company.

20195 ¥ &t
Total
2019
FET
HK$°000
3 Total 4,703
Bz EHR F i re AFIR GRIAEY 2018 4T
Liu Wang Li Xu Han Total
Xiaowei* Xiaodong** Guang*** Jun Shuwang® 2018
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BTES Executive directors
e Fees = = = - _
HitE & - Other emoluments:
e 2UR Salaries, allowances and
EibiEH other benefits 1,206 1,445 1,204 963 - 4818
RGBT Retirement benefits 18 18 18 18 - 72
g Sub-total 1224 1463 1,222 981 - 4,890
FRBTEEHE T ZRARE The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
AR RAEEER SR for their services in connection with the management of the
HE) PR affairs of the Company and the Group.
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13. E5 HEREEME o) 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continved)
() EERBHE(Z) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
2 BE* BE R AL 2018F 5T
Liu Han Total
Xiaowei* Shuwang” 2018
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERITES Non-executive directors
e Fees - -
HAo B2 : Other emoluments:
e EZER Salaries, allowances and
HAiEF other benefits _ _
RIRAE T Retirement benefits - -
NEF Sub-total - _ _
LR TEENE T EREAE The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
FERRARIRAEEESIE mainly for their services as directors of the Company and the
HE AR - Group.
EYN HEE RER  2018F &G
Kan
Lai Kuen, Total
Li Dapeng Alice* Ng Gordon 2018
T FHET FEr FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BIUFKHITEHE Independent non-

executive directors

idka Fees 175 175 175 525
NE Sub-total 175 175 175 525
BN TESHMEEER The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
BREERARBIESMEEMHRA above were mainly for their services as directors of the
BR# o Company.
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

13. EF HEREEMNE ») 13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EERBHE(Z) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

20184 5t

Total
2018
TET
HK$ 000
85T Total 5415
BRARIEINESFNEBE_T Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
—NE+ZA=+—BKk=%F any emoluments in the years ended 3| December 2019 and 31
—N\F+ZA=+—BLEFER December 2018.
ZEMME-
BEVRARRAIZESRAE Han Qingping is both director and chief executive officer of the
EXEBRE s MeBERIER Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
REFRERE 2 M - services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
FHREBEANARRAIZES R Li Guang was both director and chief executive officer of the
B EXFRBER HMEeeER Company before his resignation and his emoluments disclosed
ERBRFIRERE ZME - above include those for services rendered by him as the chief

executive officer.
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13. ES HERERMNE »)

() EERER (Z)
i

: ALEER-_T-—NF+—-At
REZERNTES-

v BEIR-ZT-NET—At
HEZTAEATEZRR_-Z
—hE+-_RF-—HREZEAXR
NGTFCES R

L ERERCF-AETZAS
AEEEANTES:

& ABER=_T—+F=A=+
REZERFNTES YN
T-NE=ZRA=+NBHAFAE
WITER - REERTES I
BE-Z-NEF+—-AtRke4E

o

;g:

»  IBEFRCHGES LE-T
~hELATABEER:

#E BHRN_T—NEF+-A=H
BERDBMITEERES -

g BHER T \F-A+MH
BENTESHATAERTE
o REMBEE T N\E=R
“thBERBER-

i EHEBR-_E-_ZEF=A+AN

AREARRABLERNTE
=o
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continved)

(a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Notes:

*¥

FHK

##

Liu Zhiwei was appointed as executive director on 7 November
2019.

Han Qingping was appointed as executive director on 7 November
2019 and as chief executive officer of the Company on 2 December

2019.

Wang Guanghui was appointed as executive director on 2 December
2019.

Liu Xiaowei was appointed as non-executive director on 30 March
2017, and re-designated as executive director on 29 March 2018. He

resigned as executive director with effective from 7 November 2019.

Wang Xiaodong resigned as executive director with effective from 19
July 2019.

Li Guang resigned as executive director and chief executive officer of

the Company on 2 December 2019.

Han Shuwang was re-designated from executive director to non-
executive director on |4 February 2018. He resigned with effect
from 29 March 2018.

Kan, Lai Kuen, Alice resigned as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 18 March 2020.



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EXE - EERERME 2

(b)

IfIREFMAL

BE-Z-NFt-A=t—H
EFE AURRFMALER
SNEE-ZUEEF FTHAR
“E-NEF+-AZHBEMR
B -

BE-Z-/\ft-A=+—H
LFE AfUSRRHFMALERE
MuBBE-MUEER FTHB
B -

Hep— (22— N\F: —f)&

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

3. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continved)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the five highest paid
individuals included three directors. Amongst the three directors,
Li Guang was the chief executive officer before resignation on 2
December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the five highest paid
individuals included four directors. Amongst the four directors, Li
Guang was the chief executive officer.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2018: one) highest paid

SHEMALTZEMSOT individuals were as follows:
2019 2018
F#ETT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FekEMEH Salaries and other benefits 1,687 98|

HE_Z—NEFER_ZE—N\F
+-A=+—BLEEE" Lt
B K% B & & /T Z 21,000,000
BT

The emoluments of the above employees were within the band

of nil to HK$1,000,000 during the year ended 3| December
2019 and 2018.

14. RIA 14. TAXATION
2019 2018
FET FET
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
RHEEERS Continuing operations
REERBX LB Tax charge for the year comprises:
R EEH PRC Enterprise Income Tax
rEE Current year 2,379 8,193
BEFE (HBHE) (Over)underprovision in prior years
BETR (134) 309
2,245 3,507
BIERIEXH (ER) Deferred tax charge (credit) (note 36)
(Pt 5E36) 1,525 (2,922)
3,770 580
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14. RE(2) 14. TAXATION (Continued)
AEFRIEX L ERHAEE 2 HiR The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the loss before
LIS taxation is as follows:
2019 2018
F#ET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
(#ZE35))
(Restated)
bR 75 B B3 18 Loss before taxation (from continuing
(REFEBELEER) operations) (991,868) (1,233,464)
BABPEMSHBIE  Tax credit at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate
5%t AZ HIEE R of 25% (247,967) (308,366)
EEBERTIRE S Share of results of associates and joint
rEREER ventures (6,571) 13414
BRRBBAZ Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
MBFE purpose (994) (5414)
AAMBRAZ 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
BT E purpose 496 974
RS W TR AT AR B Tax effect of deductible temporary
ERIMBRE differences not recognised 205,516 191,446
REHEAREERZ Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
BERE 53,688 109,049
BA LA RERER Utilisation of tax losses previously not
MIEEE recognised (130) (214)
REFEERA Tax effect of temporary differences
REDEEFEEEEFZE  attributable to undistributed profits of
BLBGRE PRC subsidiaries 159 19
BEFE (HBHE) (Over)underprovision in prior years
BETR (134) 309
BN ERDOR PRC withholding tax paid (293) (737)
AEFRIEXH Tax charge for the year 3,770 580
HRAEERMEANL EEEBR No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group has no
BEBZERBURMN WA RFHREE assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.
FEH

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#



14.

RE 2

BE (hECEMERE) ([0 R
BEE]) REEMEREE LR
FEMEATRRERNZBEY A
25% o

RIEH I F BB IR FE36

& B

RAREEMERREZE_T—NEF
kA—Z2—NE+-_A=+—HILtFE
MR B o

BRER-E%F

ARREBARGERERBERER
THBEE -

14.

FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

TAXATION (Continued)

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on Enterprise

Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 36.

DIVIDEND

No dividend in respect of years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

has been proposed by the directors of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data.

2019 2018
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
(& ZE5))
(Restated)
REFHEEERYE From continuing operations
RRBVHEBAEIEARSE  Loss for the year attributable to owners
E &8 of the Company (1,045,306) (1,320,525)
M:REERIELEER  Add: loss for the year from discontinued
ZAEEER operations 59,841 96,102
HRBEFRELLEEB 2 Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share
BREREBMEH from continuing operations
B (985,465) (1,224/423)
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6. BREIR-&EF &) 16. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC (Continued)

& E

Number of shares
2019 2018

RERERBAM S Number of shares for the purpose of basic

ZW&n 88 loss earnings per share 4,368,995,668 4,368,995,668
2019 2018

FETT &

HK$’000 HK$ 000

RAGRBERER From continuing and discontinued

BRILEERS operations
HREREREEMSH  Loss for the year attributable to owners of
AUNEE 2SN the Company for the purpose of basic
AEEER loss per share (1,045,306) (1,320,525)

FTERME D E FNFlrERE The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for basic loss
AEEAERER - per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

BREE-EX 2

REHECHRLEERE

ERIEREEBNERELABESR
1378 (ZE—N\F (L&) : 219
B - HRBERECEEBIFA
E51859,841,0008 L (ZT— N\ F (K
E]) 96,102,000/ 7)) & Lt EE
BEABEMAZSSTE-

16. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC (Continued)

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations is HKI.37 cents
per share (2018 (restated): HK2.19 cents), based on the loss for
the year from the discontinued operation of HK$59,841,000 (2018
(restated): HK$96,102,000) and the denominators detailed above for

basic loss per share.

ARZMESFEHECRTEEE A
B BRI 2 5 SR

No diluted loss per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
QFE FAIR VALUE
R E 1] At beginning of the year 133,531 149,538
BE 5o B Fxchange realignment (2,919) (6,555)
ERERER Increase (decrease) in fair value recognised
NEEEMORD) in profit or loss 112 (9.452)
PR F 2 At end of the year 130,724 133,531

AEERERLEHERFUERES
IFEERBERNZMAYEER
BERATEREAGE 2BEAREY
EIAVS3-E/E YN LR/ ESaisks
B o

AEER=_T—NE+=A=+—H
RZZE-—NE+ZA=+t—RHZEE
MEAFEEREAEETEBAE
BUABRBEMERMFEHAGTANIT
BRAR ([#5]) REEB B R
FEMYMEETZEEMSD -

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties. The investment properties are located in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2019 and 3| December 2018 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out on the respective dates by Knight Frank Petty
Limited (“Knight Frank”) for the properties located in the PRC. Knight
Frank is an independent qualified professional valuer not connected

with the Group.
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17. #EME 2)

REERBYNENDFER  ARFHM
BRERETEFEERVEMNEM
ERZHERMEBARE-

AEBZREBIAEREXMEME
TihE B HRERBY A BERERMG
ERZYAE B ERNARGER
AR GERNREAZE MBRES
FTERARREEZEREEAL
BREZSDERLATERPOREA -

REFMRZRAFER BRNEZR
aRkEERRNAENAE

TR EBNMEELSRENF
AFE (LERAER 2 HERT RS
ABE) KA FEFEMEAFESR
(F—EF=H) (RELVETES
ABBZABERENR) CEM-

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the financial
controller and certain directors of the Company determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.

The Group engages independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The financial controller works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model. The financial
controller reports the findings to the board of directors of the
Company semi-annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair

value of the properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use

of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.
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17. BEME 2) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
R2019% R2018%
MERARAZKE 12R318 12A318 HERER FURRHARR
FszRENE ZATHE ZAFE LTFESH FEBARE EEZFTRREBARS HAFEZRE
Investment properties
held by Fair value Fair value
the Group in the as at as at Relationship of
statement of 31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
financial position 2019 2018  hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to the fair value
FET Tz
HKS$000 HK$000
fir i B SRE R 48,226 49303 H=/& ERARLE BAfEtR4% (20185 4%) @ RERBASUA AXCLEES
ZERNF AR MERERBRATR RFEEE-
IERARER:
(NER{E ARBTARAREI0T (0185 : 8FARAR AREE ATEES.
QR#H: Bogw) ERFEEERERARTARLER
FED G RER NENRNFRESERIRR
Commercial property in 48,226 49303 Level 3 Direct Capitalisation Approach  Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
Shenzhen, Guangdong capitalisation of rental income potential, nature of ~ rate, the lower the fair value.
Province, PRC The key inputs are: the property, prevailing market condition, of 4%
(1) Capitalisation rate; (2018: 4%) The higher the monthly rent,
(2) Monthly rent. the higher the fair value.

Monthly rent, based on net floor area, using direct
market comparables and taking into account age,
location and individual factors such as location
and size of property of RMBI00/sq.m. (2018:
RMB98/sq.m.)
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17. BEYE &) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B2019% 120185

MERAZAZRE 12A318 12A318 EERTR FURRSARR
FRZRENR ZAFE ZOFE LNTESH TERARE EEZTURRBARE BAFEZRE
Investment properties
held by Fair value Fair value
the Group in the as at as at Relationship of
statement of 31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
financial position 2019 2018  hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to the fair value
FET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
IR EREREEH 82,498 84228 E=# ERAXLE Bt &55% (2018 :5-55% ) B REE  AXMHEHRF ATEY
TXGAXE BERAZERL DERERRTTR fEe
IERABER:
() BRfE RARGEARAREIL QI8E:§EFKA  ARER ATEER.
@ AA- REIL) ERFEARREABRTAL
BARD G RER BN RIRMERA
BEERIRR
Industrial complex in 82,498 84228  Level 3 Direct Capitalisation Approach  Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation
Tieling, Liaoning capitalisation of rental income potential, nature of ~  rate, the lower the fair value.
Province, PRC The key inputs are: the property, prevailing market condition, of 5.5%
(1) Capitalisation rate; (2018:5 - 5.5%) The higher the monthly rent,
(2) Monthly rent. the higher the fair value.
Monthly rent, based on net floor area, using direct
market comparables and taking into account age,
location and individual factors such as location
and size of property of RMBI I/sqm. (2018:
RMBI I/sqm.)
RREFEADEEARELRE=R- There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.
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18. MR -MEREME 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HRtH HE-BF ENRE RAR
R#F R#i% RERRE HARIR MLERRE AE HEIE 1]
Plant, Wind
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture
land and and  plant and and  and office Motor Construction
buildings  machinery equipment tools  equipment vehicles in progress Total

TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

B# cosT

R20I8%1 818 At | January 2018 16,601 6,066 426,507 51323 2343 23975 7211 554926
ERHRE Exchange realigment @21 (33) (21,376) (2328) (620) (487) (7) (26030)
RE Additions - 3181 1130 1,049 1,264 5477 12,01

HE /M Disposals/write off - (4614) (1,601) (1012 (3825) (6734) (17,786)
RIERBHE—TME  Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary (note 44)

DAl (HiE4) (424) - (892) .129) (1201 - (4646)
H018% 128318 At 31 December 2018 15,780 5319 403,698 47,632 20,531 19,7126 5879 518,565
EHAE Exchange realignment (31) (234) (9,097) (844) (257) (344) (125 (11,213)
RE Additions - 97 3,417 25 401 240 2,739 6919
FEREIRETHER  Transfer upon completion of construction in progress - 5,394 - - - - (5,394) -
e/ Disposals/write off - ®3) (6,170)  (10,688) (W) (1,591) - (18,523)
20195128318 At 31 December 2019 15,408 10,573 391,848 36,125 20,604 18,031 3,099 495,688
REREE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
R20I8E1A18 At | January 2018 7268 4265 170435 3741 19,668 16623 - 251,000
EXAE Exchange realignment (420) (249) (10006) (1625) (496) (233) - (13029)
AEERE Provided for the year 855 233 21479 5432 1329 1838 - 31,166
HE /W b Eliminated on disposalsfwrite off - (4093) (1333) (928) (2676) - (9030)
{1 & — M B 2 FIF 4 8 Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary (note 44)

(Hizt44) (200) - (639) (1,701) (1077) - (3617)
WBEER ZRMERE  Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - 23501 - - - - 23501
0185126318 At 31 December 2018 7,703 4,049 201316 34,576 17,872 14,475 - 9,991
B3 HE Exchange realignment (210) (119) (4,832) (605) (225) (282) (56) (6,329)
TEERE Provided for the year 823 166 19,330 1,933 784 1,427 - 24,463
HE /W Eliminated on disposalsfwrite off - ®) (1,143)  (10,304) (63) (1,305) - (12,818)
RERBAZFEEE  Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - 355 11,299 455 109 501 3,155 15,874
20195128318 At 31 December 2019 8,316 4448 225970 26,055 18,477 14,816 3,099 301,181
REE CARRYING VALUES
#0195 128318 At 31 December 2019 7,092 6,125 165,878 10,070 2,127 3,215 - 194,507
H2018% 128318 At 31 December 2018 8077 1,270 202382 13,056 2659 5251 5879 238574
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold land and buildings 3 — 5% or over the unexpired lease

terms, whichever is shorter

Plant, equipment and machinery 9 — 15%

Wind energy plant and 5-15%
equipment

Moulds and tools 25%

Furniture and office equipment 10 —25%

Motor vehicles 18 — 25%

With the segment losses resulted from the wind energy related
products segment for the year ended 31 December 2019 as disclosed
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, the management of
the Group considered that there was an impairment indicator on the

wind energy related product segment.

For the impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the
relevant cash-generating unit (“CGU") in which the property, plant
and equipment are included is determined based on the value in
use calculated by the directors of the Company with reference to a

valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer.
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18. ME -BRERERM 2)
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The income approach is applied in the calculation in value in use of
the CGU. The calculation of value in use used discounted cash flow
forecast based on financial budget covering a period of [0 years,
which was prepared by using the most recent financial results with
projections approved by management at pre-tax discount rate of
20.7% (2018: 19.2%) for the “wind energy related products segment.
Cash flows beyond the ten-year period have been extrapolated using
an estimated constant growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) which does not
exceed the average growth rate for the relevant markets. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation
of future cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the cash generating unit's historical
performance, management's strategic plans and expectations for the

market development.

The fair value less costs of disposal is determined based on the
valuation carried out by the independent professional valuer. This
combines both a market approach and a cost approach (as defined by
the relevant valuation standards) on the measurement of fair value less
costs of disposal. The market approach is adopted to determine the
fair value of the lands with reference to the market price transactions
on arm's length terms for land comparable in size and location to that
held by the Group. The fair value on which the recoverable amounts
were based is categorised as a Level 2 measurement. The most
significant observable input into this valuation approach is price per
land area. The cost approach is adopted to determine the fair value of
plant and equipment with referencing to the depreciated replacement
cost. The depreciated replacement cost approach considers the cost
to reproduce or replace in new condition the property appraised in
accordance with construction costs for similar properties in the locality,
with allowance for accrued depreciation as evidenced by observed
condition or obsolescence percent, whether arising from physical,
functional or economic causes. The depreciated replacement cost
approach generally furnishes the most reliable indication of value for
properties in the absence of a known market based on comparable
sales. The significant observable inputs into this valuation approach are
construction costs, price indexes, depreciation rates and economic

obsolescence.
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18.

19.

DR BERRE ) 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
BEFEER FAESEEEEETE Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group
RRcELBUFEABENREEL determined that the recoverable amount of the CGU based on the
BumrkEeBRERRETE- BE value in use of the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The
SHEENRERENE BERRE impairment amount has been allocated to each category of property,
(i3 E%% BE RFENREET plant and equipment such that the carrying amount of each category
GROVZBERERTFERBEERE of property, plant and equipment is not reduced below the highest
EREERZEZERE - RECLAE of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero. Based
ENGFERSE ERReEEEN on the value in use calculation and the allocation, an impairment of
FE1h B 1) 5 - IR P B % 1 1) BR T 1 B HK$15,753,000 (2018: HK$23,501,000) has been recognised against
R E5,753,0008 T (ZF—\F: the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment attributable to
23,501,000/ 7T) the CGU.
BE_ZT-/\E+_A=1T—HLF During the year ended 31 December 2018, a write off of
B AR ASEKRIER E@TERT HK$6,734,000 was recognised in respect of construction in progress
12 B HE SR 856,734,00078 T ° due to termination of a project by the Group.
EEREE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HETHRET
Leasehold
land and
buildings
FE7T
HK$000
R2019% 1 A 1R As at | January 2019
ARE (B Carrying amount 4,725
M20195 12431 H As at 31 December 2019
RREE Carrying amount 6,342
BEWIOFNAIBLEFE For the year ended 3| December 2019
HEER Depreciation charge 5,698
RHAE R EMMABMNEIX  Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases ended
JER BB G £ within 12 months at the date of initial application of
Flei ARIEAARKRE  HKFRS 16
MAEMEAR R 3791
HERES AL RE Total cash outflow for leases 9,708
RNEERREE Additions to right-of-use assets 7,403

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#
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19. EHESE »)

AEERMESFEHEETMRET
AReE -BERNRIFEIFNET
HARTAL - TR TOAE (B Il 7 L RERS - B
REBTRGR K& - RETEER
A AR SRR a0 B R - AR E R
BENMTEELET A LA RHIHIT
B HARE o

N AREREETHRAERET
ARBRZENFRDNECEFA
Tﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ St -RNIRBEREDEE
BAER — RN R ATIES
W SEAR SEDR  SURBEB25IZ
FEAMENHEEL R D

RZZE—NE+-_A=+—H £&E
URBEENEHAEEEAI390000%8
TR T EAEEERNMARE-

N R=E—-hF+=-A=+—8"
ERERAE A E6,441,000/ T R AEREH
15 FAHE B EE6,342,0008 7T < [ A A3
BRHEEETHNERERN HER
ETEME A EMRE - HEREEE
TRARBRER:.

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases leasehold lands and buildings for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms ranging
from | to 3 vyears. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and

determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are not presented separately as the payments made

cannot be allocated reliably.

As at 3| December 2019, the Group's right-of-use assets amounted
to HK$1,390,000 were located in Hong Kong and the remaining were
located in the PRC.

In addition, lease liabilities of HK6,441,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$6,342,000 as at 31 December 2019.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor and
the relevant leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.
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20. & 20. GOODWILL
TET
HK$'000
|53 COST
R2018F 1 A 1A - At | January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
20185 124318 & 31 December 2019
20196 12A318 15,397
i {E IMPAIRMENT
R2018F 1 AR - At | January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
20185 124318 K 31 December 2019
2019 124318 (13,393)
IREE CARRYING VALUES
M2018F 12A318 & At 31 December 2018 and 3| December 2019
2019 124318 2,004

WREARTS BECHIRERGE
ENRZENREELEN-

AEEEREFRAUNRTBRYSEE
RENABAFUKEEMSLHZ
RensBlARE SHATHSE
2,004,000/ 7T 2 BB * M ZTBAKIEE
BERLE 2 b5 REZEE DB 28
BEGI% (20185 1 9.6% ) 5t & » AR AR
BEAmEHEYRRERRSELSE
R E R 2 511 - BB ERETEAZ
ERJ[ZAEMNABEUREEDH BT HE
PREEAAERS A NEESE - FAR
R AN5% (20184 :5% ) » M H M E &=
HRHETE ARSELBNNITKES
BHeBLEKEE:-

B E2019F K2018E 128318 1IEF

B ASEEEEHEMECSHEL
REeELBMHBRRME

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to the individual cash generating unit of the Operation of Wind Farm

segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for the
remaining goodwill of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast
derived from the financial budget covering a period of 5 vyears,
which was prepared by using the most recent financial results with
projections approved by management at discount rate of 8.9% (2018:
9.6%) for the Operation of Wind Farm segment, which reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the cash generating unit. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount. If the discount rate was increased by 5% (2018: 5%), while
other parameters remain constant, the recoverable amount of the

cash-generating unit would still exceed its carrying amount.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, management
of the Group determines that there are no impairment of its cash

generating unit containing goodwill.
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21 WL EE 21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
MR pEWHNE BESTE ot ]
Development Technology Licence
cost know-how right Total
FAET FHET FHET FET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(Hfita) (Hiitb) (Hfitc)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
B#F cosT
R2018FI1AIB At | January 2018 44,192 237,054 14,088 295,334
B i 5 B Exchange realignment (2,032) (10,900) (582) (13514)
NE Additions 28,174 8,721 14,565 51,460
HE—FHB AR Derecognised on disposal of
AR TR a subsidiary — — (26,630) (26,630)
720185 12A318 At 31 December 2018 70,334 234,875 1,441 306,650
B 5, 38 B Exchange realignment (1,537) (5,134) - (6,671)
RE Additions 2,082 - - 2,082
88 Write off - - (1,441) (1,441)
2019512318 At 31 December 2019 70,879 229,741 - 300,620
HmmEE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R2018FI1AIB At | January 2018 = 73,535 9,145 82,680
B 5,5 B Exchange realignment (1,955) (7,352) (338) (9,645)
AEEXH Charge for the year = 30410 3,064 33474
RIERERZ Impairment losses recognised
REEE in profit or loss 57,494 89,912 16,200 163,606
RIHE—FRMB2 Eliminated on disposal of
] B B a subsidiary = - (26,630) (26,630)
2018 12A318 At 31 December 2018 55,539 186,505 | 441 243,485
B 5, 3 B Exchange realignment (1,510) (4,923) - (6,433)
AEELH Charge for the year - 9,577 - 9,577
RERHER Impairment losses recognised
REEE in profit or loss 16,850 38,582 = 55,432
i sH Write off - - (1,441) (1,441)
#2019% 128318 At 31 December 2019 70,879 229,741 - 300,620
fREE CARRYING VALUES
72019 12A31H At 31 December 2019 — — — =
R2018%F12A318 At 31 December 2018 14,795 48,370 - 63,165
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21. ELE&E &)

T EREERESEERTHIHE

B
A 3 B AR 56
B &0 3 6FEBEF
RIEFF A& 5%
Bz

(@) Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁézowiuﬂmaﬁﬁﬁ
BRIEEE [RERBEER] 58
EREREH ea/ﬁziaﬂwmw&zi@
Bt R BB o

b) ZEBEARNLEIRNZEREE
) D8R BRE R B B PTE £ R
XA o

(0 ZeBRIZEHRHEZE018FI12A31HIF
EFEWM«M BAEKI DR
HEML RS m i B AR Al 3

REZE2019F 12831 BIEFE » Sl
503 TR B2 B 5 1838,582,0008 7T 0 A
AALNTESE; AREMKRER
B ZEBEVEEARTEHKRESREN
EE/i\//l % °

FAR2018F 12 A3 HRRER R T =
BB C I BEE B2
(BRHEERBEER] 2B 2ERNRE
EEBM B REZE20I18F12A
JIREFERBRM AR ERREEE
89,912,000 7T °

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following period:
Development cost 5 years
Technology know-how 6 years — 8 years

Licence right 5 years

Notes:

(a) The amounts represent costs to develop graphene-based cathode material
for batteries and high capacity lithium batteries for the “Energy Storage and
Related Products” segment, which was discontinued during 31 December
2019.

(b)  The amounts represent costs incurred for the technology know-how for
the manufacture of wind turbines for the “Wind Energy Related Products”

segment.

(0) The amounts mainly represent global positioning system terminal
development licence rights for the "“Telecommunication Business” segment,

which was discontinued during the year ended 3| December 2018.

During the year ended 3| December 2019, impairment losses of
HK$38,582,000 are recognised in respect of the technology know-how
as the directors of the Company would not expect any significant
future cash flows from these intangible assets because of technology

obsolescence.

For the purpose of impairment testing, as at 31 December 2018,
technology know-how have been allocated to the individual cash
generating unit of the “Wind Energy Related Products” segment as
disclosed in note |8. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$89,912,000
were recognised in respect of the technology know-how during the
year ended 3| December 2018.
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EBLEE 2

M09 128318 BRI AH 2
ZEHREEE A141,877,0007 7T (2018
£ 1 106,298,000/ 7T ) ©

REZE2019F 128318 IEFE A
% B 7N T 5R OB 1B 185 181 6,850,000% 7T
(20184 :57,494,000/8 7T ) * R &8
REBEMEBNCEEERMBER
RElt AEEERIELEZBEE
B W ARREERR REREFE
ENEHREeREY TEK-

REZE2018F12A3IBILEE B
REFT O] B HERR R (B 518 16,200,000/5 7T
(019F &) RARARESER
AR ETRE B ZEEVEER®R
TR REENTERE-

REBEEQRcHERD

AEBERBERRZREFHBOT:

21.

22.

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated impairment losses in
respect of technology know-how was HK$141,877,000 (2018:
HK$106,298,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment losses of
HK$16,850,000 (2018: HK$57,494,000) are recognised in respect of
development cost which in the opinion of directors of the Company,
expected cash flows from these intangible assets are insignificant as the
Group ceased its business in the Energy Storage and Related Products
operation due to deterioration of operating results and financial

performance.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment losses of
HK$16,200,000 (2019: nil) were recognised in respect of licence right
as the directors of the Company would not expect any significant
future cash flows from these intangible assets because of technology

obsolescence.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follows:

2019 2018

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FLTREZRA Cost of unlisted investments 428,874 426,598

BE N B Exchange realignment 12,353 16,600
FEE U BB 12 5 18 K% Share of post-acquisition losses and other
Hin 2 A% comprehensive expense, net of dividend

(MBREKRE) received (246,640) (237,090)

194,587 206,108

R2019F 12831 B ' JELETIREKAE
U BE B 2 N B E 4 2 15E681,0008

7T (20184 : 681,000/ 7T, ) ° of associates.

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 3| December 2019 is
goodwill of HK$681,000 (2018: HK$681,000) arising on the acquisition
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22. RBBARICEE ») 22.

EXHE

BRAKEEKN

UNCIE Y Fe N

YN

IHEFRRIREERL A ([THE

AFIZHBERABE

Al BT A R
BEEHIMT - L THBEERBIE 27
BEARMBERE (RESBHBERE
ERRE)IRZEE

i BN

ELN=NAN

/\4\'
%2 ERE

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

U>

o

consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts shown in the associates' financial statements

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu

1) Longyuan”)
2019 2018
FET FET
HKS$’000 HK$'000
mBEE urrent assets ,
MEEE C 156,369 564,280
ERBEE Non-current assets 583,436 671,222
mEa & Current liabilities (37,399) (49,731)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities (279,086) (741,954)
BE219F HZ2018F
12A31BLFE 2A3IBILEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
g Revenue 120,311 160,536
F R A &2 E K Profit and total comprehensive income for
k] the year 6,999 18,550
FAE WL ARIKE  Dividends received from the associate
during the year 4,474 3,339
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22. RBBARICEE ») 22.

EXHELRZHERHEE (£)

THERBYREERAA ([CTEE
B1) (&)

tkﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁiéﬁ“@/\ iR A B TSR EK
FREACNBEARES  CREEY

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Longyuan®) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

A consolidated financial statements:
2019 2018
FE7T TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T# R EEFR Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 423,320 443,817
REBNIEBEIRAB  Proportion of the Group's ownership
BERZADL interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 25% 25%
REBENTEHRERESZ  Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
ZERHEE Jiangsu Longyuan 105,830 110,954

EMEFRIREBFRL A ([FME
-,

Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Longyuan”)

2019 2018
FET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

mEE E Current assets 302,010 601,627
ERBEE Non-current assets 873,369 915,173
mBaE Current liabilities (10,644) (262,737)
ERBEME Non-current liabilities (669,882) (742,083)
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22. RBELRIZHER &) 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)
EXBEQARZCHEEHEE (&) Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)
EMERRSIBREERLA ([ ZHE Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Longyuan”)
Bl (&) (Continued)
BE2019F HZ2018F
12A3IHLLEE 2A3IBIEFEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
g Revenue 127,112 88,920
FRABEREZERS Loss and total comprehensive expense for
FE ] the year (6,042) (25,709)
FAE YL ARMRE  Dividends received from the associate during
the year - 2,650
Lt B AR ERNGRE B RE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
HHRRIRBE AR RS REEY carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the
AR consolidated financial statements:
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMERZEEFH Net assets of Jilin Longyuan 494,853 511,980
AEBEREMBEIRME  Proportion of the Group's ownership
BER AL interest in Jilin Longyuan 15.35% 15.35%

REBEREFEMERIFEER  Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
ZERHEE Jilin Longyuan 75,960 78,589
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RBEQFcHER &) 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
FENEXCHEQATESLRH Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material
2019 2018
F#ET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
AEEDEFNER The Group's share of loss for the year (5,899) (130,526)
REBRZERE QAR Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
B BEREE interests in these associates 12,797 16,565
M20195F R20185 12A318 - REE X Details of the principal associates of the Group at 3| December 2019
EHE RN A2 FHIFH IR K45 o and 2018 are set out in note 45.
REELRZRER 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
REERGERCEZREFBWT Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:
2019 2018
TET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
RNEEREZFE LT Cost of unlisted investments in joint
BREMA  HIBRUEER]  ventures, net of pre-acquisition dividend
g 1,624,311 1,624,311
BE 5 5 B Exchange realignment 88,954 111,699
FEIEWEEES Share of post-acquisition losses,
HIBR AR B net of dividend (127,984) (67.811)
1,585,281 1,668,199
B EHRZMERE  Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,900) (652,900)
932,381 1,015,299
FEMREXABIE2007FERES Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
&1 ¥ i & & 2 7% 2703,308,000% 7T HK$703,308,000 (2018: HK$703,308,000) arising on the acquisition of
(20184 : 703,308,000/ 7T ) ° joint ventures arose in 2007.
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23. REELEZRE ») 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continved)
EXAELRZHMBRHEAE Summarised financial information of material joint venture
BRARESEEREECECMBER Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
BESHINWAT - AT BERZZ5 joint venture, is set out below. The summarised financial information
BEPENBERER (BEEEMBRE below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial
EARE)MRZEE- statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

AR ERARRENZEGA MG The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
BERAK- consolidated financial statements.
B Delphi
2019 2018
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
mEEE Current assets 567,412 765,050
FRBEE Non-current assets 343,584 382,406
nBEE Current liabilities (495,552) (639,094)

NEEERBESHBRNTSR:

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

2019 2018
FET T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
RekBeEED Cash and cash equivalents 7,251 61,862
nBTHER Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
(TBEEIHR and other payables and provisions)

Hip AR B )
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23. REBLEZER »)

EXCELRZMBERHEE (£)

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continved)

Summarised financial information of material joint venture

(Continued)
ZEE(E) Delphi (Continued)
BE2019¥ B Z2018F
12A31HILFE 12A3IBILEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Wzs Revenue 1,527,549 2,341,247
N A R 2 s Profit and total comprehensive income
mE for the year 106,876 190,008
FRAEKERBRE Dividends received from Delphi during
the year 91,532 195,747

TRFREMNBREATEE:

The above profit for the year include the following:

2019 2018

FETT &

HK$’000 HK$ 000

e K Depreciation and amortisation 35,911 25292
) B A Interest income 1,630 1,176
FEFRX Interest expense 515 1926
P15 35 B8 X Income tax expenses 16,688 32,661
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23. REELEZRE ») 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continved)
EXCELRZHMBERHEE (&) Summarised financial information of material joint venture
(Continued)
ZEE(E) Delphi (Continued)
P B E R B RN R A MRk Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
RN EREEa REELYER: the carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2019 2018
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
ERRCEETHE Net assets of Delphi 415,444 508,362
AEBREREAA Proportion of the Group's ownership
S AL interest in Delphi 49% 49%
S Goodwill 562,870 575,448
R BERETATE Effect of fair value adjustment at acquisition
RELHE 131,870 152,119
REBENEHREEZ < Carrying amount of the Group's
FREE interest in Delphi 898,307 976,664
FENEAXZAELREREH Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material
2019 2018
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
AEENHER The Group's share of (loss) profit for the
(B8) &AM year (3,783) 985
AEERD CREE Carrying amount of the Group's interests 34,074 38,635
M20195F 20185 12A31B - REE X Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 3| December
EREREZFHITHIINHI 45 o 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 45.
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BROTFEHFARMMZERRZZ 24.
EMEE
FEEM R Unlisted shares

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
4,800 4908

FETROAREEFERF KL
FABRORE ARARESEERZ
ERERTEARLATFETALMEZE
W RETA RAALERENIER
FEE BET AR REREE-
HERRASENERE B IEE
REEHEMEAREGELZETGS
TERTHETT o

R2019F R20185E 128310 RAFE
AR EENECEMEEZHE
Rl st B S PAM FE4 1 o

The unlisted shares represent the Group's equity interest in a private
entity established in the PRC. The directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as
at FVTOCI as these investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. The valuation was
carried out by Beijing Tianhaihua Assets Appraisal LLP, an independent

qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.

Details of valuation technique of financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31

December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 41.

R 25. INVENTORIES
2019 2018
FRT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 14,726 14,462
E8m Work-in-progress 17,112 20,871
SIpK Finished goods 9,332 42,958
41,170 78291

REZE2019F 128310 IEEE  REE
7%22 2330008 T (0185 E\) 27 &
RET—REERT

During the year ended 3| December 2019, inventories with a carrying

amount of HK$22,233,000 (2018: nil) are returned to an associate.
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26 RHREMBHER HERE

fit &

ZHREMELR ZERBEARE
& E 5 e W 30983,249,0007 7T (2018
4 :1,495,086,0008 0) ' EHIBREE
18 kB #51,002,592,00078 7T (20184 :
632,447,000/ 7T ) ©

R0I8EIAIB EXEBRPELHNE
5 FEW TR 552,690,233,0005 IT ©

AEBMHEENLTEP BN
BANEES -ATEZHBAFEE
IZRFPNEERR—FRBEE FTA
EHRKSTN BT EC RRIRNEEH
579,219,000/ 7T (20184 : 943,820,000
B RESABEREBRHERKE
ENESRU - NBESHRREER
BH (&R B EE)JIRE
EOWRE B FRYGR (HURRHE)
ZIRE DT

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are trade receivables of HK$983,249,000 (2018: HK$1,495,086,000),
net of allowance for credit losses of HK$1,002,592,000 (2018:
HK$632,447,000).

As at | January 2018, trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers was HK$2,690,233,000.

The Group allows credit periods for not more than six months to
its customers for sales of goods. At the discretion of the executive
director, several major customers were allowed to settle their balances
beyond the credit terms up to one year. Included in trade receivables
are balances of HK$579,219,000 (2018: HK$943,820,000) without bills
received while the remaining balances are trade receivables with bills
received for future settlements. The following is an aging analysis of
trade receivables without bills received, net of allowances, presented
based on the invoices dates at the end of the reporting period, which

approximately the respective revenue recognition dates:

2019 2018

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

30HA Within 30 days 3,700 [1,023
31290H Between 31 — 90 days 1,837 3,702
91Z180H Between 91 — 180 days L171 28,829
1812365H Between 81 — 365 days 12,248 6,467
HiR—F Over | year 560,263 893,799
579,219 943,820
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26 BHREMBHER HERE

ek e)

R2019F 128318 K2018F 12831
B A&EEMEACKERNE SRR
RZRRBA—F (RMEHRNER
BEE) -

R2019F 128318 AEBWES WE
B EE 5 FE U FR18,956,0005% 7T (2018
% : 50,021,000/ 7T ) 2 BR#R B —F LA
W HRBABR—F (RBEHRNE
ZRBE) °

R2019F 128318 A5BEE FEW
AL B B ¥E 48 BR T {5982,728,0007%8 7T
(20184 : 1,463,344,0007 7T ) H) & IR
R RBEBEHEal-stARS
HA 4 4 H9494,986,00078 7T (20184 :
1,461,074,0007% 7T ) 2 %8 HI90K 3k A
b EERRF BN EBAEER
BEEBIR BZRBL AR RE
K -BRABKREBRNGEHRIN REBY
BRZEEBRBEEMERR-

ARE-RE/MABHSANEK
RERERHE RARREAERLR
B EA365 B Y FE MR — AR EOE R - 1
HATEERBRTREERENZET
TREFPKRIN

REBM0I19FI12B3IB 2 H Mt fE
B ZeRBENARBERTBEEK
BEEZ®R£3,199,000% T (2018
F : 25,490,000 7T) ~ A] Ui [ 3 (B B
25,654,000/ 7T (20184 : 19,511,000
L)« H A E R 13,508,000 7T
(2018%F : 184,739,000/ 7T ) I FE YR — A
B &0 E KRR 837,297,000% 7T (2018
FE) e

BEHZE2019F 20I18F 1283182
B 5 N E b JE W R H) R B AT R B
NGRS

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

All the Group's trade receivables with bills received as at 3l
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are aged over one year
based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's trade receivables without bills received of HK$ 18,956,000
(2018: HK$50,021,000) as at 31 December 2019 are aged within one
year while the remaining balances are aged over one year, based on the
invoice dates at the end of reporting period.

As at 3| December 2019, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$982,728,000 (2018: HK$1,463,344,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date. Included in the past due balances of
HK$494,986,000 (2018: HK$1,461,074,000) has been past due 90
days or more but is not considered as in default based on repayment
records for those customers and continuous business with the Group.
Other than those balances with bills received, the Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables
overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that
receivables that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable,
except for some major customers with longer credit terms at the
discretion of the executive directors.

Included in the Group's other receivables, deposits and prepayments
at 31 December 2019 are deposits for purchase of inventories in
the PRC of HK$3,199,000 (2018: HK$25,490,000), VAT recoverable
of HK$25,654,000 (2018: HK$19,511,000), other bills receivables of
HK$ 13,508,000 (2018: HK$184,739,000) and dividend receivable from
a joint venture of HK37,297,000 (2018: nil).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 41.
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27. EHEE 27. CONTRACT ASSETS

2019128318 H2018F 12731 H

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
i L DA K R e Sales of wind turbines and energy storage
HAEm and related products 386,731 403,349
W EEERRE Less: Allowance for credit losses (160,213) (98,590)
226,518 304,759
R2018F 1 HIB - &HEER As at | January 2018, the contract assets were HK$13,938,000.
13,938,000/ TT °
R2018F 12A31 B st AGKEELR Included in balances of contract assets were contract asset arising from
M RE—FHBE AR LA AEEN contract with an associate of HK$9,085,000 as at 3| December 2018
A #)& 79,085,00078 7T °
REBRBZEENEEDERRE The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the
ARAE ITEEHKEﬁﬁﬁﬂHHH%E Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.
SR B
BRI EEMR2019%F k2018F12A31H Details of impairment assessment of contract assets as at 3|
EVRE R R B DI R KT aE41 - December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 41.
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28. Bl BABELTR

MR EEEEE#214,982,000% 7T
(20184 : 138,382,000/ 7T ) 14 - FEE U Bt
& X B 50154,507,0007 7T (20184 :

252,457,000 7T ) B & B 5 I WK
38,589,000/ 7T (20184F : 127,619,000/
L) HAERERR 28 KRk
B—FEREEER(ETE2AE %
EHRAER)BIS0AEER -HKREE
JE5 18 % 1%36,485,0003% 7T (20184 : )
1% 45 82115918,0005 7T (20184 :
124,838,000/ 7T ) A EE M R iZ E K
&8 E 115918000/ 7T (20184 :
90,771,000 L) Tat B - MR T £ 58
R [EE M %4.35% (2018 < 4.35% ) 5t
B o

JE B & R B R 2 BB A BEHR
EEZII

EBRBEATAREREESIREAR
23,360,000 7T (20184F : 25,167,000
T) AN BAEER 28 RAE365
B 1= & 8 o %I &2 4 88 12,000% 7T (2018
F:709,0008 ) REIEF 2 ERIK
ZRER-

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates of HK$154,507,000
(2018: HK$252,457,000) are trade receivables of HK$38,589,000
(2018: HK$127,619,000) net of allowance for credit loss of
HK$214,982,000 (2018: HK$138,382,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing, aged over one year and has a credit period of
180 days for sales of goods mainly wind energy related products.
Balances of HK$115,918,000 (2018: HK$124,838,000) net of allowance
for credit loss of HK$36,485,000 (2018: nil) are unsecured and
repayable on demand, of which an amount of HK$ 115,918,000 (2018:
HK$90,771,000) are non-interest bearing while the remaining amount
bears fixed interest at 4.35% (2018: 4.35%).

Details of impairment assessment of amounts from associates are set

out in note 41.

Included in the amounts due to associates are trade payables of
HK$23,360,000 (2018: HK$25,167,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit period of 365 days. The remaining
balance of HK$12,000 (2018: HK$709,000) are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.
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29. Bl BASELRER

IR B R

Mk E E BB A E38,150,000% 7T
(0185 &E)& B —HeELE
K2 4% B67,351,0007 7T (20184
104,165,000 L) - ERBEHR T —
MeetEmmERETE516000%
7% (20184 : 63,912,000/ 7T) * R E F
FEF R435% (20185 1 435% ) 5T B °
REBEFR 6EbXCEMASEK
i REF o 87 T 42 8542,985,0007%8
7% (20184F 40,253,000 L) B % B
BEPEERNEEF209F12A31R
2 Fill B34 5862,516,0007% 7T (2018
F: 63,912,000 7T ) R E AR B &R
20,541,000 7T (2018%F : 21,000,00078
TO)RI N T ZERERUERZE
EhECTHEEFRETHMEE
RMFTSRIBER A RRIEZRAEMK
EECEREIERBERARET =
BAARBE BZRBDEEERE
BE-

FEUL— A & ETE19,1860007 7T
(20184 : 20,089,000 7T) * A E 5
B EEE B REEREE-

FEULE: & N B R BB A FBER
BizE4l o

EREECEFREREIRAR
1,933,000/ 7T (20184F : 2,218,000/ 7T )
BRRBR—F -ZRNEAEER &
B EHMERAWSHEEH - FH
45 ££929,0007% 7T (20184 : 241,000
TU)REER 2ERRERKEE-

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES

Non-current balance

Included in the balance of an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$67,351,000 (2018: HK$104,165,000) net allowance for credit loss
of HK$38,150,000 (2018: nil) is a loan advanced to a joint venture with
a gross amount of HK$62,516,000 (2018: HK$63,912,000) that bears
fixed interest rate at 4.35% (2018: 4.35%) per annum.The joint venture
has pledged its land and buildings to the Group to secure the loan. The
remaining gross amount of HK$42,985,000 (2018: HK$40,253,000) is
non-interest bearing. The joint venture has entered into arrangements
with the Group in connection with the above gross amount of loan
of HK$62,516,000 (2018: HK$63,912,000) and other balance of
HK$20,541,000 (2018: HK$21,000,000) which is non-interest bearing
as at 3|1 December 2019 that these amounts shall be repaid from the
proceeds upon the realisation of the land and buildings and certain
other assets of that joint venture. The directors of the Company
considered that the amount due from the joint venture would not be
settled within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and

therefore is classified as non-current asset.

Current balance

The amount due from a joint venture of HKI9,186,000 (2018:
HK$20,089,000) is non-trade related, unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts from associates are set

out in note 41,

Included in the amounts due to joint ventures are trade payables of
HK$1,933,000 (2018: HK$2,218,000) and aged over one vyear. The
amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing, trade nature and has credit
period of 365 days. The remaining balance of HK$929,000 (2018:
HK$241,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.
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30. BIEWBITER BTHEBR 30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK

B& BALANCES AND CASH

SAREBRRITER RITEHREAR Included in the pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash are
i) /3 B B # 8R 1777 579,000 7T (2018 pledged bank deposits of HK$9,000 (2018: HK$9,000) which carry
F 19,0008 7T) * %7 R B E F H R fixed interest rate of 0.30% (2018: 0.30%) per annum.

0.30% (20184 : 0.30% ) 5T B. °

RITHE B IR0.01%%1.25% (20185 : Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range
0.01%Z1.25%) 2 H 1T % F N X5t from 0.01% to 1.25% (2018: 0.01% to |.25%) per annum.

f5he

RITEBRBRETINEBEREE Included in bank balances are the following amount denominated in
BN ER IR currency other than the functional currency of the respective group

entities to which they are related.

#2019 128318 RK2018F 12H31H

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
FETT FET

HK$’000 HK$000

BT HK$ 35,626 18,371
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3. EAREMEFR

ESNHEBENRBEESRE
fFFR1,129,823,000/ 7T (20184 -

944,674,000/ 70 ) ° AN B R 1L e
EEUS30E0HMEER - B FEMNRK

REBERREZZEAHZERR TN
T

31.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$1,129,823,000 (2018: HK$944,674,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at

the end of the reporting period:

2019 2018

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

30HA Within 30 days 9,361 19,010
31290H Between 31 — 90 days 11,431 8,697
91Z180H Between 91 — 180 days 2,233 11,053
181 %365H Between 181 — 365 days 32,181 35,255
HiR—F Over | year 1,074,617 870,659
1,129,823 944,674

R2019F 128318 AEE z H4EA
B 4 JE 3 E #588,760,00078 7T (2018
F 1 426,974,000 7T ) bA I e B — R Mt
B QA EMAEI2151,000% 7T (2018
112,422,000 7T ) °

20195128318 %2018 12831
H EREMRNEZEBH AEH
ENEERNERROBB—F-

REREBH AREALHKE R
FPRERERXSHTFNBEAGH
A 9 B AR A AL T,ﬁa,ﬁ@ ARH

445,143,000/ 7T ° AR RE B
WeRBELEEZRE IEA B3R
RAEABR-e

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

Included in the Group's other payables at 31 December 2019 are bills
payables of HK$88,760,000 (2018: HK$426,974,000) and consideration
payable for acquisition of a subsidiary of HK$12,151,000 (2018:
HK$12,422,000).

All the Group's bills payable as at 31 December 2019 and 3l
December 2018 are aged over one year, based on invoice dates at the

end of the reporting period.

As at the date of this report, several subsidiaries of the Company are
involved in legal proceedings in relation to contract payment disputes
with business counterparties and an associate with an aggregate claim
amount of approximately HK$445,143,000. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the relevant amounts are due considered

and accrued for in the consolidated financial statements accordingly.
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32. T B

R-ZE-NAE+-A=+—0 BF
8 5028,216,0008 L (ZF— N\F:
28,834,000 7T ) A& 7 Bl BT 1 B 3k R
ENE BERLEREESMETZ
B ZFIBBBIEEBEEE L RE
F(BEEWE BEREERN) 2T
FRERRSFER0FRIBERER
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32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2019, government grants of HK$28,216,000
(2018: HK$28,834,000) represent subsidies granted by the PRC
government authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment. The amount will be recognised in
profit or loss over 5 to 50 years according to the useful lives of the
relevant leasehold land and buildings (included in property, plant and

equipment).

2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

RERmMANA: Analysed for reporting purpose as:
EEN=R Non-current liabilities 27,520 28,123
mEaE Current liabilities 696 711
28,216 28,834
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33. RiEEE 33.

REBRBREESREASEN A H
SR REBIEZHTE M E LB
SARRHEELRERT 2RE

WARRANTY PROVISION

Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors'

best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be

required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

REREE Movement in the warranty provision:

2019 2018

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

F A2 KR Balance at beginning of the year 259,918 139,091
bE 5 38 B Exchange realignment (5,681) (6,397)
MR R A Additional provision recognised 111,087 158,752
BAEE Utilisation of provision (37,093) (31,528)
FIRZEER Balance at end of the year 328,231 259918

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#
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34. fER 34. BORROWINGS
2019 2018
TET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
MESRITE R (f7i2a)  Short-term bank loans (note a) 89,308 125,542
HMBEEER (f/i#b)  Short-term other loans (note b) 570,675 -
HinRHEER (f/72b)  Long-term other loans (note b) 368,395 899,338
RHRFRER (f/iFc)  Long-term shareholder's loans (note ) 725,624 741,840
1,754,002 1,766,720
B BREABEMK  Less: Amount due within one year under
—FREH KA current liabilities (659,983) (125,542)
—F1& 3B 2 5B Amount due after one year 1,094,019 | 641,178
REEEEZEHENR  The maturity of the Group's borrowings is
AT as follows*:
—FR Within one year 659,983 125,542
—EEZMEF Between one to two years 1,094,019 899,338
MEZRHF Between two to five years - 741,840
1,754,002 1,766,720
* ERmEmEERAREREL ks Based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
Biat - Notes:
@ RZE-AF+-_A=+-HBHLE (@  The amount as at 3| December 2019 represents unsecured bank loans of
B8 AR 1T B 289,308,000 7T (= HK$89,308,000 (2018: HK$125,542,000).
Z— )\ : 125,542,000 7T) °
R-E—NE+-_A=+—HHNEZ Loan of HK$89,308,000 or RMB80,000,000 as at 3| December 2019 bears
89,308,000 7T 3% A E #80,000,0007T floating-rate interest at PRC Loan Prime Rate plus 0.15% that is 4.35% per

EH B E R R ERF R MN0.15% (BIE annum.
FE435% )51 B
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34. B8 (#)

B (&)

(@)

(%)

R-ZB-NE+-_A=+—BHEX
125,542,0007% 7T 3% A K # 110,000,000
TCIRH BB RS EE R X 10.04% (A
FFIE479% ) & B, ° 34,239,000/ 7T 5K,
AR #30,000,000 M ERER=F
—NEBHEE-

ZEERAN-FAREE(ZT-N
Fi—FRN) BEDAREENEH
REBRNES-

REBY AR 2R R B A RMX
Bl 5 B 75 £ 158 & 38930, 139,0007% 7T 3%
A B #833,200,0007T (= F — J\ 4 :
890,208,0007% 7t 3k A K #£780,000,000
L) c ZEFIABEIEI R NPT iE
R IBNT4.10%24.51%2 B E 7R
(ZZE—N\F:413%)5T B °

R-—_ZE-hE+-_A=+—-H &
345,770,000 7T 3 A K #41,000,000
JT 245,596,000 T A R ¥
220,000,0007T * 39,072,000/ 7T 3k A R
#£35,000,0007T * 208,756,000 T 8k A
K #187,000,0007T * 22,550,000 JT. 3%
A R #20,200,0007T * 334,905,000 7T
kA R #300,000,0007T 33,490,000
Je A R #30,000000E 5 AIZEAR = F
—ZF=R-ZZ2ZTFNA ZT=
TR ZTTF+—F %=
ZFE+-R-ZT=—F—-AR=E
——F-REER-

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

34. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Loan of HK$125,542,000 or RMB 10,000,000 as at 3| December 2018 bore
floating-rate interest at PRC Loan Prime Rate plus 0.04% that was 4.79% per
annum. The loan of HK$34,239,000 or RMB30,000,000 was fully repaid in
2019.

The loans are repayable within one year (2018: within one year) and are

used to finance the operations of the Group.

The Group obtained loans from ASTF a fellow subsidiary of CALT
amounting to HK$930,139,000 or RMB833,200,000 (2018: HK$890,208,000
or RMB780,000,000). The amounts are unsecured and are guaranteed by
CALT, bearing fixed-rate interest ranging from 4.10% to 4.51% (2018: 4.13%)

per annum.

As at 3| December 2019, loans of HK$45,770,000 or RMB41,000,000,
HK$245,596,000 or RMB220,000,000, HK$39,072,000 or RMB35,000,000,
HK$208,756,000 or RM187,000,000, HK$22,550,000 or RMB20,200,000,
HK$334,905,000 or RMB300,000,000 and HK$33,490,000 or
RMB30,000,000 are repayable in March 2020, September 2020, October
2020, November 2020, December 2020, January 2021 and February 2021,

respectively.
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34. B8 (#)

B (&)

(®)

(%&)

R=ZZ—-NE+=ZA=+—8"
B 30148,368,0008 L AR
130,000,0007T * 44,282,000 7T 3k A
R #38,800,0007T * 148,368,000/ 7T
g A K #130,000,0007T 34,238,000
7 70 8 A R #630,000,0007T 8 5 Bl A
“E-TF=-R-ZT=-TFHA"
ZE-TFAARZZTZTFLA
EBE - Fll¢BEER T —NLEEH
{838 - & 50251,085,0005 L A R &
220,000,0007T * 27,391,000 T3 A R
#24,000,0007T ~ 213,422,000 JT 8k A
R #187,000,0007T %23,054,0007% 7T 5k
AR20200000c 0 MAR=ZE=F
FhR ZZ-ZTF+A ZT=TF
+—AR-_ZE_TE+_REE-

FAREMERNEHRTRERE —
BB AREERBRERFHOER
8,931,000/ 7T 8k A R #8,000,0007C
(ZZ—\F 19,130,000 THARE
8,000,00070) *Z EHEAEKE B
BIA RRT EER EH0.9ME (BIFEF
%428% (ZZT—)\F :4.28%) ) )%
BFRHE  BR-_E-_BFE+—PE

Pl

SHEANGRERTMBZNE
NAMAMETE (EAXTA)
B2 B 3725,624,00058 7T 3 A
R #650,000,0007t (=& — J\
741,840,000 7T 3k A R 650,000,000
TU) oA B REER RETEFF
R488%F5.0% (= F— )\ : 4.88%%
5.00% ) &t & °

o
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34. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

(Continued)

As at 3| December 2018, loans of HK$148,368,000 or RMBI30,000,000,
HK$44,282,000 or RMB38,800,000, HK$148,368,000 or RMBI30,000,000,
HK$34,238,000 or RMB30,000,000, are repayable in March 2020, May 2020,
June 2020, July 2020, respectively. The above amounts were fully repaid in
2019. Loans of HK$251,085000 or RMB220,000,000, HK$27,391,000 or
RMB24,000,000, HK$2 13,422,000 or RMB87,000,000 and HK$23,054,000
or RMB20,200,000 which are repayable in September 2020, October 2020,
November 2020 and December 2020 respectively.

Included in the balance of other loans is also a loan of HK$8,931,000 or
RMB8,000,000 (2018: HK$9,130,000 or RMB8,000,000) advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured, bears
floating-rate interest at 0.9 times of the People's Bank of China Benchmark
Interest Rate that is 4.28% (2018: 4.28%) per annum and is repayable in
November 2020.

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, ASTF as the trustee in aggregate amounting to HK$725,624,000
or RMB650,000,000 (2018: HK$741,840,000 or RMB650,000,000). The
amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 4.88% to 5.0%
(2018: 4.88% to 5.00%) per annum.
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34. B8 (2) 34. BORROWINGS
HeE: (&) Notes: (Continued)
© (&) ()  (Continued)
RZE-NF+-_A=+—"H EXR As at 3| December 2019, the loans of HK$446,538,000 or RMB400,000,000
446,538,000/ 7T 3k A R 400,000,000 (2018:HK$456,517,000 or RMB400,000,000) and HK$279,086,000 or
70 (ZF — )\ : 456,517,000/ 7L 3k A RMB250,000,000 (2018:HK$285,323,000 or RMB250,000,000) are repayable
IR #£400,000,0007T ) %279,086,0007% 7T in April 2021 and December 2021, respectively.

sk A R #250,000,0007 ( =T — )\ :

285,323,000/ 7T 3k A & #250,000,000
TORNBER - E-_—FHNAR_-ZT
——Ft+ZAEE-

BE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—81I The effective interest rate of the Group's borrowings were ranged from
FE-ASEEENERENENTF 4.10% to 5.00% per annum (2018: 2.44% to 5.34% per annum) for the year
410%E5.00% ( ZF — \F : 2.44% % ended 3| December 2019.
534%) °
35. HRRRK 35. LEASE LIABILITIES
2019
TR
HK$’000
EHERRE: Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 5,078
—FEMFEHBA Within a period of more than one year but not
more than two years 1,363
6,441
AEEHELENMEULERLER R The Group leases various properties to operate its business and
ZEMERBURAXN 2 EERMK these lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease
ZHEE payments that are not yet paid.
MOREERRHR—FEMFERK Lease and rental are negotiated and fixed for term of | to 2 years.
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35. HERAR &) 35. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
MEEBEETINEREREER Included in lease liabilities are the following amounts denominated in
BN ER IR currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which

they are related.

2019

FET

HK$’000

BT HK$ 1,420

36. BEWRIF 36. DEFERRED TAXATION
REIEEMBRRARMNE B TEL For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
HMEEERABBE THE - ATRAE financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
SRR 2 BB IR AR DT - offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT IEE E Deferred tax assets - l,643

EIERARE Deferred tax liabilities (17,833) (18,337)

(17,833) (16,694)
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36. GEERIE (2)

REFERBEFEEHRZENE
ERBRE(BE) REBESWT

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continved)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

BT -
SELRR
B BELT Rt
rEME XEEF (B¥EE) At
Undistributed
profits
of
Revaluation subsidiaries,
of joint ventures
investment and Others
properties associates (note) Total
TBT T T/ S
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
RZE—N\F At | January 2018
—A—H 10,476 11,761 (1,784) 20,453
RS Exchange adjustments (401) (518) 82 (837)
(st A)EEEX  (Credit) charge to profit or loss
i (2,363) (618) 59 (2922)
RZZ—\%F  At3l December 2018
+-A
=+—H 7,712 10,625 (1,643) 16,694
B 5, B Exchange adjustments (167) (231) 12 (386)
Baixx Charge (credit) to profit or loss
(5t A) 28 (134) 1,631 1,525
R-E—-hE At 31 December 2019
+=—A
=+—H 7,573 10,260 - 17,833

Wit ZFRETRRRFAHPELZEREZ
E o

paiig
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EERIE (2)

R-Z—AF+_A=+—0 K&£E
i 51 R Bp A 75 18 /85 48 49944,472,0007%8
7t (ZZ — )\ & : 758,336,000/ 7T ) 7
REEEARIRR - F A - AR KRB
SRR AR - AR IB B ERER
EERBEE-#H#E-_T—N\F+=
A=+—1FE HIEEE31,033,000
BL(ZE—NF BB HH-KE
A IEEE 12081400087 (ZF—N
F 1 136,670,000/ 7T ) F] fEPR HA A5 85 o
HRERTEEE/RE = 7_7¢
E_T_ME(ZE-N\F:BZ
—NEI_Y__E)ﬁimuﬂ

RERPBECERSHEZ BTSN
F—-A—BRpPEKE QR MmERR
=S IR AR B ABRTEING - REE
ERZEFRNERRRD K&
F 2 BE AT HE IR B IR 85 10,260,000/
T (ZZF—\F 10625000/ 7T ) ° I
EL R BB A R AR SRR FI R =
BN AN BRERPIELELTHIBR
- RERASEEIFGIRREE &
Ol - MR =R P AATRER A B R
B o

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continved)

At 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$944,472,000 (2018: HK$758,336,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses during the year due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. During the year ended 31
December 2018, tax losses of HK$31,033,000 were expired (2019:
nil). Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$120,814,000
(2018: HK$136,670,000) that may be carried forward indefinitely. The
remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five years from
2020 to 2024 (2018: from 2019 to 2023).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
| January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$10,260,000
(2018: HK$10,625,000) has been provided in respect of temporary
differences attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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37. &#F 37. SHARE CAPITAL
KT8 E 4]
Number of
shares Amount
FET
HK$’000
BREHIET L EAR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
RZZ-\5—-R—-H" At | January 2018, 31 December 2018
“Z2-N\F+ZA=1t—HK  and 3| December 2019
—E-NEtZA=1—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
ERITRAR: Issued and fully paid:
RZE—-N\E—F—H" At | January 2018, 3| December 2018
ZZ-N\F+ZA=+t—HK  and 3l December 2019
“E-NAFE+R=+—H 4,368,995,668 436,900
38. BEHR AR 38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
FEEEEEKBA The Group as lessee
RZB-\F+_A=+t—H F&E At 31 December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
BREFAHECEREMRNRKL payable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
MmEEFREESMOT: buildings as set out below:
2018
FAT
HK$ 000
—F KX Within one year 7,504
F_EFEERF In the second to fifth year inclusive
(BREEME) 1,442
8,946
MA—BREFHIRP—FE=5" Leases were generally negotiated for an average term of one to three
MmEEREHRTE - years and rentals were fixed for the lease period.
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38. ¥EHERIE =) 38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
FEEESHBEA The Group as lessor

RZE-NAF+A=+—H F%H
ME&EHERYFIMT :

At 31 December 2019, the Group has minimum lease payments

receivable on leases as set out below:

2019
FET

HK$’000

—FR Within one year 4,651
F_F In the second year 4,651
F=F In the third year 4,651
FYE In the fourth year 4,651
FAF In the fifth year 4,651
L’ After five years 43,799
67,054

ASEE R NIRKKEHEE R E
ABATLAH:

The Group had contracted with leasees for the following future

minimum lease payments:

2018

FAT

HK$ 000

—FR Within one year 6,969
E_EFEERF In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BREEMSF) 21,647

L&’ After five years 46,353

74,969

s RERR N2 ARAHA
FR—ETEE

The properties held for rental purposes have committed leasees for

the next one to fifteen years.

Annual Report 2019  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

229



230

e MEREME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2201912431 H 1L F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

39.

40.

iB ¢k # BB

AEBREBMARERERRER
wlERE R 8 ([Z5tE]) - &5t &
EERASBEEEN FERIEY AL
A REFEALRS - NEE R XS
1B B # BB 5% 5K i B
TMEHR R E -

ARARZHANBARIEE BT HK
fF e IR B R IKE A58l 2 7K
B ARRZHRBENBRARBEREEH
B 9 5 SE B 49 b T AR R 4R U ET B 45K
DA R - AE B RIREFIFEZ
E—EFABEZEEL T 2 H
e

BB & Bk < AN 458 10,523,000 7T

(ZE—NFE(ZLEH) : 11358000
) BAEERASHRAREELE

EBENZETE 2T

REERER

Kﬁl%ﬁ§$vuﬁ%$%ﬁm%§
2 RAETERELE
Z?Nﬁﬁﬁﬁx%?ﬁiﬁ—m B

BB A RS

%ETE
W AKE

REBEZ B RBEEAE BDEE
e HERE BABEQAR E
NEELER (MBERERREEEY
BARBHEE NEGER (BREET
B RERREER)) -

AEEEEBTE RN EARE -EHE
BEREAKRARESEARE IR
HEEE  HEOEREEARRE-

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

39.

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll

costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$10,523,000 (2018
(restated): HK$11,358,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the continuing operations during

the current accounting period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings, lease liabilities, amounts due to associates and amounts
due to joint ventures, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

eMIRER Categories of financial instruments
2019 2018
FET T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TR EE Financial assets
REHEK ARG E 2 Financial assets at amortised cost
TREE 1,358,239 2,032,763
BRAFESAEM Financial assets at FVTOCI
FHRANESHEE 4,800 4908
1,363,039 2,037,671
EREE Financial liabilities
BEHAOR Amortised cost 3,011,751 3,192,344
eHAEEEARRBE Financial risk management objectives and policies

AEEZXESRIARERATE
AARMEERANEREE BHK
Hin R Bl EABE QRN
Bl ENAELER BERRITE
PO RITEBRERE BEHREMEN
FoEENHERE-AREZEERT
BZHBEREMEIARE - BBZF
ERTACZEREBEEZERR K
RER T

CRIAHASE ATEEEHE
Z-EREEERERE@ARR AR
1%&5—?%@?3@@% e o AN BT
AR EERRE miZRBRRAESES
Rk B Rt ER K 2 72 &k

g o

2

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets at
FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/to associates,
amounts due from/to joint ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, borrowings and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments

and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure
to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk.
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41. ERIR (@)
eHERREEERREER (&)
s meE
T

AEEAZE-_T-NERZT—N
FRERTES (FRME) R=F
—“NERZT—\FZERITEE (F
R Bz RS REFNERR -
EEEHBEERNKEE TERE

B0 E B — SR M KRR

AEENAXE-_T-NFRZT
—NEEBRITER (FRMHE30) -
“E-NEFRZT-N\FEEEE (F
RMeEs34) - nEFRZE-N\F
I —ME & N RE B RIA (F R
B ARZZE-NEFRZZE-N\FEK
—FAaEETELSFTE (FRITE29)
UWERHEEE (FRITEN)BHA
FTEMNERR BEEERMERR -
TERBEHHRERFERREZE

EEERDRITEE

AEBAEREBREFRREROFE
ENAHEZRBE SRR ETE -
AEBZRAESREFNXAREIEZET
RPBEERREENELFEARR

TTEEFRAKE -

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2019 and 2018 (note 30 for details)
and variable-rate bank borrowings for 2019 and 2018 (note 34
for details). The management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuation and will consider further hedging interest rate risk should

the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits for 2019 and 2018 (note 30 for
details), fixed-rate borrowings for 2019 and 2018 (note 34 for details),
amount due from an associate that bears fixed interest rate for 2019
and 2018 (note 28 for details) and amount due from a joint venture
that bears fixed interest rate for 2019 and 2018 (note 29 for details)
and lease liabilities (note 35 for details). The management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank

borrowings when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of PRC Loan Prime Rate and People’s Bank of China

Benchmark Interest Rate.



FEMBGHMRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41, & TH #)

eHERREEZERREER (&)
e mEE (E)
BEED T

TRERESFHRETEEENR
i%*);szfUTﬂM &Fﬁ%ﬁhkz
REMETE2FRFIAEMETE -

i) BEEZFE LA/ THIOEE

B(ZZ—N\F:10EE%) mHE
Hig ] EREG@EAE - RIAKE 2

ik EREe EH,/ TBL740008 7T
(- N\EFE:BREBEBHESLH/ T
101,000/ 7T) °

EEmE
AKEAZZEBRARGBE REZ
j<4|§/'\/\ /\\D%i/;_‘llf/(;%@gﬁfi%g

R E M EHE - A E B AT EINES
HmBR AW EEEGERIMNER
B HAEFREEEYPEKNINER

B o

REBREREE U R2NHEED
Mo

41.

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end of
the reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the
beginning of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings have been |0 basis
points (2018: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$74,000 (2018: post-tax loss would
have increased/decreased by HK$101,000).

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposure as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposures should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the currency exposure is

minimal.
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4. & T H #)

eREBREEERREE (&)
EE R R B E T

FERREASEHFIERKE
W%Vﬁ%ﬁ$¢l?$%%%ﬁm

R - AEEEBNEERBRIERE
g5 K E Al UK - QWQF 2HEH
RITHEF RITAR B E D FIR
BREBRAE RN

RZE-—hER-_T—-NF+_-A
=+—B BRERATFEFAHMZEK
AREREEIN MR BHRREKZ
JIMERMEERABERREFIEE
BTEAREASERINIBKELX
BENEREERR ASEYESE
R AT 4K 4 &R o EL At DN 58 15 B 48 e DR
ERESHEERBNEERR 5
B TEELEERZ EERBRES
I - REANEBERR AL REFE
o

AEBBEEFEERR  EABKAS
ESAEEARAREBEAFEEEZ
SEWTBEDRNI% (ZE—\F:
24% ) }186% (ZF— N\ :76% ) °

HWWEF?W%““ PBEZTT%
(= JWEWMXE*Wﬁ%“
ETEHA“ﬁ%w 158.278% (ZF
—/\F:84% ) RE—FHAELE Rt
AEBEEERRET - ARERBHE

ERAINAELCRE B REERE

BITEAR B R ARRH N EHER
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EERFCEERR-
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, contract assets, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances, amounts due from associates and amounts due from

joint ventures.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, other than the financial assets
at FVTOCI, the carrying amounts of financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets, except that
the credit risks associated with loans to a joint venture is mitigated

because they are pledged by land and building.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 29% (2018: 24%) and
86% (2018: 76%) of the total trade receivables due from the Group's

largest debtor and the five largest debtors respectively.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 77% (2018:
77%) of total amounts due from associates is due from one associate.
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 78% (2018: 84%) of
total amounts due from joint ventures is due from one joint venture.
The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of the
amounts due from associates and joint ventures through exercising
significant influence or joint control over their financial and operating

policy decisions and reviewing their financial position on a regular basis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Except for financial assets at FVTOCI, the Group performed
impairment assessment for financial assets and other items under
ECL model. Information about the Group's credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related impairment

assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers and amounts

due from associates in trade nature

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer; the Group
assesses the potential customer's credit quality, assigns an internal
credit rating and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and credit
rating attributed to customers are reviewed on a periodic basis. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL

model on trade balances based on individual assessment.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for trade balances arising from
contracts with customers and amounts due from associates in trade

nature.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers and amounts

due from associates in trade nature (Continued)

Management assessed the expected loss on trade balances arising
from contracts with customers and amounts due from associates in
trade nature individually by estimation with the internal credit rating
applied to each debtor (based on recent trade relationships, financial
background and creditability of individual trade debtors, historical
settlement records such as default or delay in payments, aging analysis
of such balances and general economic conditions of industry in
which the debtors operate), subsequent settlements (for credit-
impaired balances) and adjusted for the forward looking information
available without undue costs or effort, including the expected market

competition in the future.

The management considered a trade balance is credit-impaired when
there is event of default occurred. The management made assessment
on trade debtor individually if there is event of default such as
significant litigation proceedings the debtor involved due to breach of
contracts and significant financial difficulty that the debtor will probably

enter liquidation.

However in certain circumstances, the trade debtors more than
90 days past due is not considered as in default if there is recent
repayment record for those customers and continuous business with

the Group.

As at 3|1 December 2019, trade balances arising from contracts with
customers, contract assets and amounts due from associates in trade
nature that were assessed to be credit-impaired with aggregate gross
carrying amount of HK$1,694,000,000 (2018: HK$1,709,482,000) were

assessed individually.
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41. £ IR #) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)
eRMEREEARRBE (£) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
EEmBER B EFG () Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
HEPITVAENELHBEZRBHRE Trade balances arising from contracts with customers and amounts
WS LA ZIEEZ (&) due from associates in trade nature (Continued)
ERASEEERREREN 25 As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies
AEBEHHEEFEARNDEETR internal credit rating for its customers. The following table provides
TREHER-_Z-NFE_T-N\F information about the exposure to credit risk for trade balances arising
T A=+ —HERFENEETHE from contracts with customers and amounts due from associates in
EBHESMEEERRIMNERTPEIY trade nature which are subject to lifetime ECL assessment and are
BHEENEBESEAR KBNS AR individually assessed as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

BEESHETNEERRZER

2019 2018
R 1 B BIRERE fRmEE* BERE
Gross Gross

carrying Loss carrying Loss

amount* allowance amount*® allowance

T#ET FET FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

mE Satisfactory 932,143 216,101 1,087,401 39,473
& ZeROEEIREFREFPENE b The amount included trade receivables and contract assets from customers

ENRENREE N EEIHER- and amounts due from associates in trade nature.
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4. @MI R (2 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers and amounts

due from associates in trade nature (Continued)

Quality classification definitions:

“Satisfactory”: The counterparty has moderate default risk.

The estimated loss rate applied is based on the internal credit
rating assessed individually taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable, supportable, and available to
the directors of the Company without undue costs or effort. Such
forward-looking information is used by the directors of the Company
to assess both the current as well as the forecast of future conditions

at the reporting date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers and amounts

due from associates in trade nature (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade balances arising from contracts with customers
including trade receivables, contract assets, amounts due from

associates in trade nature under the simplified approach.

FHRBAX FHRBAM
ERER ERER
(3K IEHRE) (BiERFEE) #st
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FET TFET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-N\F As at | January 2018
—H—H - 185,186 185,186
ERAREERE Impairment losses recognised 40,862 686,331 727,193
BE 5 3% Exchange adjustments (1,389) (41,571) (42,960)
R-ZE—N\F As at 31 December 2018
tTZRA=+—H 39,473 829,946 869,419
ERRREEE Impairment losses recognised 174,868 367,325 542,193
mECAE DAY SE Impairment losses reversed (578) (6,047) (6,625)
b i 3 B Exchange adjustments 2,338 (29,538) (27,200)
R-T—hE As at 31 December 2019
+=ZA=+—8 216,101 1,161,686 377 73

BEFIVANELNIIEE HER
HWEREEERKE AL NEKX-

The ECL on newly originated trade balances arising from contracts

with customers is considered insignificant.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers and amounts

due from associates in trade nature (Continued)

As a result of the changing in market environment during the year,
the result of the operation has not improved and the collection of
trade balances was below expectation, a significant credit loss was
recognised. The management has considered the financial position of
the counterparty individually and taken into consideration the change
of market environment to determine the impairment allowance.
During the year ended 3| December 2019, the management assessed
the exposure at default for credit-impaired trade balances arising from
contracts with customers including trade receivables and contract
assets by considering the future cash flows that the Group expects
to recover and provided HK$280,227,000 (2018: HK$567,531,000)
impairment allowance on such balances. Impairment allowance of
HK$174,290,000 (2018: HK$40,862,000) which is net of reversal
were made on trade balances arising from contracts with customers
including trade receivables and contract assets that are not credit-

impaired.

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the management
assessed the exposure at default for credit-impaired amounts due
from associates in trade nature and provided HK$81,051,000 (2018:

HK$118,800,000) impairment allowance on such balances.

Amounts due from associates and amounts due from joint ventures

which are non-trade nature

For amounts due from associates and amounts due from joint ventures
which are non-trade nature, the management of the Group has taken
into account the financial position of the counterparties and forward-

looking information.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from associates and amounts due from joint ventures

which are non-trade nature (Continued)

For amounts due from an associate which is non-trade nature of
nil (2018: HK$34,067,000) as at 31 December 2019, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL as the management of the Group believes
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition as there is significant deterioration in the operating
result of the associate. During the year ended 2019, the management
provided HK$37,136,000 (2018: nil) impairment allowance on such

balance.

For amount due from a joint venture which is non-trade nature
of HK$67,351,000 (2018: HK$104,165,000) as at 31 December
2019, the Group recognises lifetime ECL as the management of the
Group believes that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition as there is significant deterioration in the
operating result of the joint venture. During the year ended 2019,
the management recognised the credit loss with reference to the fair
value of pledged land and building based on the valuation performed
by an independent valuer not connected with the Group and provided
HK$38,833,000 (2018: nil) impairment allowance on such balance.
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from associates and amounts due from joint ventures

which are non-trade nature (Continued)

For the remaining balances of amounts due from associates which
are non-trade nature of HK$115918,000 (2018: HK$90,771,000)
and amount due from a joint venture which is non-trade nature of
HK$19,186,000 (2018: HK$20,089,000) as at 31 December 2019,
the management of the Group believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on |2m ECL. During the years ended 3| December
2019 and 2018, the Group assessed the ECL for these balances
unsecured balances of amounts due from associates were insignificant

and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the management of the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example, the Group has considered the
consistently low historical loss rate in connection with payments, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding other
receivables is insignificant. The directors of the Company believe that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on [2m
ECL. For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables were insignificant and thus no

loss allowance was recognised.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

The management of the Group considers the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances that are deposited with the financial institutions with
high credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The management
of the Group considers the pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are short-term in nature and the probability of default is negligible on
the basis of high-credit-rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance

was considered as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The amount of net current liabilities of the Group is approximately
HK$742,748,000 as at 31 December 2019, which causes the Group in
significant liquidity risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has taken appropriate measures as set out in Note B to mitigate such

liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of

the reporting period.
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. &MIR 2 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)
eRMEREEARRBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
HBEZmE (& Liquidity risk (Continued)
REEE RFERE R Liquidity and interest risk tables
migFEsy REXR KR
{E uft  OR-fER -EZ@R ZERE-F§  -EIif RENERA REE
Weighted
average 3 months Total
effective Less than 1-3 to -5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  On demand | month months | year years cash flows amount

% FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
% HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

Z8-A% 2019
BHREMBEMT  Trade and other payables - 1,121,963 9,361 12,860 87,331 - 1,231,515 1,231,515
Lease liabilities 435 - 302 601 4,207 1,379 6,489 6,441
Borrowings - fixed rate 4.56 - - 46,200 532,727 1,168,742 1,747,669 1,655,763
Borrowings - floating rate 4.74 - - - 102,479 - 102,479 98,239
EREBERRR Amounts due to associates - 23,372 - - - - 23,372 23,372
EREELER Amounts due to joint ventures - 2,862 - - - - 2,862 2,862
1,148,197 9,663 59,661 726,744 1,170,121 3,114,386 3,018,192
MEF RERE RER
ERA = X SR-ER -Z=ff ZfERZ-% —E0% REREER FmE
Weighted
average 3 months Total
effective Less than -3 to I'=5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate~ On demand | month months | year years cash flows amount
% FAT TET FAT TET TET TET TET
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
—2-0\% 2018
BHREMBEMT  Trade and other payables - 942,608 11358 45,164 398,159 - 1,397,289 1,397,289
EE-ES Borrowings - fixed rate 447 - - - - 1,789,174 1,789,174 632,048
EE-%8 Borrowings  floating rate 475 - - = 130,966 9,886 140,852 134672
FERBIE AR Amounts due to associates - 25,876 - - - - 25,876 25876
EREELER Amounts due to joint ventures - 2459 - - - - 2459 2459
970943 11358 45,164 529,125 1,799,060 3,355,650 3,192,344

244 HEMAERERE (£8)5RAF ¢ 2019F 5K
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the

end of each reporting period. The following table gives information

about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the

level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements

are categorised (Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the

inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

fEAERMABARE

Valuation techniques

and key inputs

REMRE-sUTE BF R

RERRSETELAERL
REHSERRAEERS
ARERANRE (A28
MEREREAR)

Dividend discount approach
— in this approach, the
discounted dividend method
was used to capture
the present value of the
expected future dividend
income to be derived
from the ownership of
this investee, based on an

appropriate discount rate.

EXTURRGABE

Significant unobservable

m@ﬁ%&ﬁkiﬂiﬁﬂ%T%“

Discount rate, revenue growth rate and operating
margin taking into account management's
experience and knowledge of market conditions

of the specific industries.

FUBRRBABES
KFEHRE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs

to far value

BREHE ATEEE K
REREREE RN XY
m ATEER-

]I:l

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value The
higher the revenue growth
rate and operating margin,

the higher the fair value
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41.

42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

There were no transfers between Level | and 3 during the year ended
31 December 2019.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
those financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

approximate their fair values.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements,
the Group has the following significant transactions and balances with

related companies:

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself
is part of a larger group of companies under CASC which is

controlled by the PRC government.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(a) Transactions with CASC Group

(1)

Included in borrowings as at 31 December 2019
were two (2018: two) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$725,624,000 or RMB650,000,000
(2018: HK$741,840,000 or RMB650,000,000)
which are unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest
ranging from 4.88% to 5.00% (2018: 4.88% to
5.00%) per annum. Loans of HK$446,537,000
or RMB400,000,000 (2018: HK$456,518,000
or RMB400,000,000) and HK$279,086,000 or
RMB250,000,000 (2018: HK$285,323,000 or
RMB250,000,000) are repayable in April 2021 and
December 2021, respectively.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

0]

Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(a) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

)

The Group also obtained loans from ASTF, a fellow
subsidiary of CALT, amounting to HK$930, 139,000
or RMB833,200,000 (2018: HK$890,208,000 or
RMB780,000,000). The amount are unsecured
and are guaranteed by CALT, bearing fixed-
rate interest ranging from 4.10% to 4.51% (2018:
4.13%) per annum. Loans of HK$561,745,000
or RMB503,200,000 and HK$368,394,000 or
RMB330,000,000 are repayable in 2020 and
2021 (2018: repayable in 2020). Loans of
HK$375,256,000 or RMB328,800,000 as at 3|
December 2018 were fully repaid in 2019.
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42. RELATED

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1)

)

Included in borrowings as at 31 December 2019
was a loan of HK$8,931,000 or RMB8,000,000
(2018: HK$9,130,000 or RMB8,000,000) advanced
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.
The amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate
interest at 4.28% (2018: 4.28%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020.

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related
entities are independent third parties so far as
the Group's business with them are concerned.
The Group also has certain sales and purchases
transactions with certain customers and suppliers
in which the directors are of the opinion that
it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of
the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions are with other government-related

entities.
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42. HRBEALTZX R s 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(%) BALANCES (Continued)
() HABERFHRERZIXS (i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
(&) PRC (Continued)
(b) HEMBFERZXE (b) Transactions with other government entities
(%) (Continued)
2 (&) 2 (&
BEAN RS B HE I In addition, the Group has entered into various
FIHEREE B8 2 R1TA] transactions, including deposits placements,
URERS BERF borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
o EEREM—R banks which are government-related entities. A
RITHME KPR majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings
TERRBITEER are with government-related entities.
HRFHBAEER
% o
(i) REMBBEAEALTZRS (ii) Transactions with other related parties
@ HBERKFEEEDQR (@) For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note
o FL RN 28 - 28.
b) BEEWK ENeELE (b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to
FE2RMET29 - note 29.
o BREK-—BeEatEH (c) In addition to dividend receivable from a joint venture of
A% 837,297,000 7T (2018 HK$37,297,000 (2018: nil), the Group has bill receivables
FE)N REER2019 as at 31 December 2019 of HK$13,508,000 (2018:
FI2AIBNEKRRER HK$184,739,000) in relation to the settlement of dividend
13,508,000/ 7T (2018%F - receivable from a joint venture.

184,739,000/ 7T ) * J5F 8
RENER—HE20%E
MR B o

250 hEMXBRERE (£E8)5RAT  2019F K
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

42, BREATZRS #ig 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(%) BALANCES (Continued)

(i) BEMAEALZRSH (Z)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)

d FR FEEERBEEZEAL (d) During the year, the Group had the following significant
ZERZSHWT transactions with related parties:
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BBMENRIREE Purchase of goods from
associates - 279
RERE X 2 Interest expenses on loan
B EX from a shareholder, CALT 36,385 36,920
RERZRKERA] Interest expenses on loan
PN ST LUk from a fellow subsidiary, ASTF
BERFIE X 38,613 34,196
RE—Reagb®Ez Interest income from
FEWA a joint venture 3,677 2,878
RE—RBERAZ Interest income from an
FERA associate 1,301 1,365
M—fA&&ER¥EX{TZ Mantenance service expense
HAERB paid to a joint venture 3,718 10,835
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42. BREATZX S Hi 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(%) BALANCES (Continued)
(i) HEMREALTZES (&) (ii) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)
(e) M2019%F 124318 " K& (e) At 31 December 2019, CALT has given corporate

Br 2 [ fin A BH B 7 2 4t
A BHER1,205,653,000%8
7o 3k A R #1,080,000,000
7t (20184 ¢ 1,232,595,000
7Stk AR % 1,080,000,000
TU) MERAEBER 215
ERE 2 HEA

H TEBEBABZEFMH 6}
TEEEABEREAD
BAMTEER YN TRSE
ZE I RIS o
TEEEABZHHAEH

MEBERTEARRR
MEBEETE -

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

guarantees amounting to HK$1,205,653,000 or
RMB1,080,000,000 (2018: HK$1,232,595,000 or
RMB1,080,000,000) to ASTF to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel includes solely
the executive directors of the Company and the

compensation paid to them is disclosed in note |3.

The remuneration of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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FEMBGHMRME
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METHZARBIE

TRFNAEERE LS AEE
RAEERRAEIIREES -BEED
EEXZBENEERGREIRRE
EREBNAEEGARERERT
NHRRBEEDRERECAB

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

HEAR/  EfkRE

B R ER MRERER BKRRE #E
Lease
liabilities/ Amounts
obligation due to
under a non-
Interest finance controlling
payable Borrowings lease  shareholders Total
THET TET TET TET T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(Hit34) (Ht35)
(note 34) (note 35)
20181 A18 At | January 2018 - 1,749,884 22 - 1,749,906
[ 5 A Exchange realignment = (73,107) - - (73,107)
MERERE Financing cash flows (82,546) 89,943 (22) (1,282) 6,093
FEXH Interest expenses 82,546 = = = 82,546
EERRE Dividend declared - - - 1282 1282
12018124318 At 31 December 2018 = 1,766,720 = = ,766,720
KABEVERE  Adjustment upon
EBIEI65ERZ  application of HKFRS
HE 16 - - 4725 - 4725
R2019F1A18 At | January 2019
(BE) (restated) - 1,766,720 4,725 - 1,771,445
ERAR Exchange
realignment - (31,162) (89) - (31,251)
MERERE Financing cash flows (80,541) 18,444 (5,917) (797) (68,811)
FIBXH Interest expenses 80,541 - 319 - 80,860
EHEE ) New leases entered - - 7,403 - 1,403
BEERRE Dividend declared - - - 191 197
R2019%12A318 At 31 December
2019 - 1,754,002 6,441 - 1,760,443
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44. HE—HRE LR 44. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
FAAF LI (D) PR BE - B E 2018512 As disclosed in note | I(b), during the year ended 31 December 2018,
ABLEFE FEERHEENB R the Group discontinued its Telecommunication Business operation at
BRI RBISS | %A AERAX IEH B the time of disposal of 51% equity interest in its subsidiary, Shenzhen
5o Aerospace Telecommunications.
REEE R RAIMAXBENEEFH The net assets of Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications as at the
(I date of disposal are as follows:
FET
HK$000
ER G E Property, plant and equipment 1,029
FE Inventories 4,323
g 5 K H A YR Trade and other receivables 4,391
RITERRIRE Bank balances and cash 3,140
B 5 K H e 5K Trade and other payables (4,370)
BHEEEFHE Net assets disposed of 8,513
HERS : Gain on disposal:
B (E Consideration received 21,759
HERIMRBE Net assets disposed of Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications
BEFH Fair value of the equity interest in Shenzhen Aerospace (8513)
AEBEARINMAA  Telecommunications held by the Group as interest in an associate
ERENAFE (R
B SRR 2 ) 4,171
HERYIMRBE Gain on disposal of Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications
Wozs 17,417
& E AR Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
BeRAFE:
BeRE Cash consideration 21,759
B HERITAERRRIAE  Less bank balances and cash disposed of (3,140)
18,619

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#



45. TERBLF RELFRE

ELERH

P2019F K20185E 128318 RARE

EMBRA BERRREE
BT :
e

Name of company

MELR
Subsidiaries

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:

FERAMRBEARAT

China Aerospace Telecommunications Limited

TERAER (FE)ERAR
China Energine (Hong Kong) Limited

NRERARAT

New Image Development Limited

NEERARAR

Crownpluss International Limited

Vil g
Registered and operating in the PRC:

TRERIEERAR (Hite)

Beijing Energine Industry Co., Ltd. (note (b))

RARR (FZ) BN EEERAT
([®EXE]) (Wite)

Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power Co,,

Ltd. (“Longyuan Benxi") (note (a))

hRZF

BRTRERFZE
E/2Ra%
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

10,0005 7T
HK$10,000

VBT

HK$2

1T

HKS |

BT

HKS |
ARE118251,1007
RMBI18251,100
AR %93,8000007
RIMBY93,800,000

maMEREME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2019F 12831 A IFFE

For the year ended 3| December 20/9

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

Company at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

BEREzEIN
Percentage of equity
LA FRMELS

held by attributable

the Company to the Group
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
100 100 - =
100 100 - =
100 100 - =
100 100 - =
- - 100 100
- = 55 55

FERE

Principal activities

PREBER

Distribution of broadband business

DEFEHER

Distribution of elevator products

RAZRK

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

RAZRRD HREE
Investment holding and distribution of
wind turbine generators

BSEE

Operation of wind farm
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45. FERB LT BELAFTRS
BLEEH 2

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

20194 K20185F12A318 - KR A Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the
TEWEAT BEAARAELE
ZHEBWOT: (&)

Company at 3| December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

ERTEERSZE
E/EREs

Nominal value of

BERGZEAL

Percentage of equity

issued ordinary FNEHE FEEER
LFER share capital/ held by attributable TERE
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %

WELE (&)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
EHEAMREE (&)
Registered and operating in the PRC:

(Continued)
mABRMER (R BRAR 200000007 7T - - 100 loo BENE

(Hig®) (note (b)) HK$20,000,000 Rental of properties
RRERAERAERAEERAE AR 80,0000007C - - 100 100 SHERDHEK

(Hizm)
Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distribution of wind

Development Co. Ltd. (note (b)) turbine generators
NELERAEREAHBERAR AR 800000007 - - 56.41 5641 BERAHAKER

(HitE)
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Composite RMB80,000,000 distribution of Manufacture and wind

Materials Co. Ltd. (note (a) blades
IRRRERA RN BARAR AR 8250000007 65 65 - - NHERER

(B () (note (2) RMB25,000,000 Distribution of wind turbine products
HRMAERRERBERERRAR AR H800000007 - - 100 100 SR 2 HEK

(B3 b)) (note () RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distribution of wind

turbine generators

HEMAERF A RAEARAR AR 600000007 - = 100 00 HEME

(B b)) (note (b)) RMB60,000,000 Rental of properties

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#



45. TERBLF RELFRE

BLEEH 2

M2019%E K20I18FE 128318 - K

n
TEHBLAA BEAARABLE

2B (&)

NEER

Name of company

RELR

Associates

ERELRAE:
Registered and operating in the PRC:

TERRANEEARAR (HiEe)
Jiangsu Longyuan (note (a))

EMERBNEEBRAR (HE0) (o)

Jilin Longyuan (notes (a), (@))

DABSHEREERR
(i) (note (b))

RAH

EBRAERAANERERAR
(Hia)

Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali Co,, Ltd.
(note (a))

ENMARERENEERRAR (HZe)

Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co,, Ltd.
(note (a))

IHEMABRREERAA
(@) (c)) (notes (), (c)

MARBREETRN (R ARAR
(B )
Shenzhen Aerospace Telecommunications

(note (b))

5

BRTRERFZE
E/2Ra%
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

AR 3333200007
RMB333,320,000

A 438,200,000
RMB438,200,000

ARE1500000007C
RMB150,000,000

AR 120,000,0007
RMB120,000,000

AR 171,070,007
RMBI71,070,000

AR 700000007
RMB70,000,000

AR #60,000,0007C

RMB60,000,000

maMEREME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2019F 12831 A IFFE

For the year ended 3| December 20/9

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

Company at 3| December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

BERGZERL

Percentage of equity

L NGEE )
held by

FREEE
attributable
the Company to the Group
2019 2018 2019

% % %

15.35

41.67

48.78

37.14

2018
%

[5.35

20

41.67

48.78

37.14

49

FERE

Principal activities

BSEE
Operation of wind farm

EEEE
Operation of wind farm

BSEE
Operation of wind farm

SERD HEHE

Manufacture and distribution of wind
turbine generators

AEE
Operation of wind farm

HERDEFBRBER
Manufacture and distribution of
elevator products

RS HENER

Manufacture and distribution of
telecommunication products
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45. TEMBLFE BEAFTIRE  45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
BELXREH 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

20195 K20185F 12A31R A2
TEMBRAR HeE A ReEhE Company at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)
ZHEBWT: (&)

] Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

ERTEERSZE BERGZEAL
1/ 2mEs Percentage of equity
Nominal value of
issued ordinary FNEHE FEEER
LFER share capital/ held by attributable TERE
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
RELR
Joint ventures
ERELRAE
Registered and operating in the PRC:
BRE(MiHGE) @) 16,000,000 70 - - 49 49 BEEERHREEZGRIMG
Delphi (notes (a), (e)) US$16,000,000 Manufacture of automotive engine
management systems and
components
R REERFERAR AR ARE926100007 - - 49 49 RBHEE
(B3 (2) (e)) (notes (2), (e)) RMB92,610,000 Operation of wind farm

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#
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45. TERBLF RELFRE

BLEEH 2

Bt -
@ RPEERzRIEERE-
(b) RPBEFMz2IERE-

()  H20I19F K2018F 128318  A&E
BERBRZZAENEZEXERESS
£%§$ﬁqﬂ_%°lﬁt'$"ﬂ§$
R FEBHZEREEATEN
WZERBARRBASEER3T.14%E

s BANT-

(d)  R2019F K2018F 128318 A&EE
ERBESZAVELZAZERESS
NEEFEPML Bt RARES
RRASEUZERBEEATEN
MZRAARRAEEER|535%E

BHZBERT -

() HRZEBHBRBIRARABAK
I&ﬁ\@ﬂx%/ﬂﬁ%?&ﬂéf‘ﬁﬂj - C N
AEERREEHZERELRZH
1o

FRRBIRKL ARSI REERE £
ARRIRD BRI RZERRIETL

i

Bz
P

o

ARAEERR LRI 2 AR AN
BRR MELRRSERE DFE
AEEXELBEIBRASEEE
FREABDZEBAF -EZRAR
AOEMKBAR BMELTRAER
RZEBEM BLABBRIE.

EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(®)

Sino-foreign joint entity enterprises registered in the PRC.

Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of five
directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 31 December 2019
and 2018. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
has significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the entity is accounted

for a 37.14% owned associate of the Group.

The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of nine
directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 3| December 2019
and 2018. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group has significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the company is

accounted for as a 15.35% owned associate of the Group.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group and the other
shareholders have joint control over the company because decisions on the
relevant activities of the entity cannot be made without agreements among

all parties.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares

held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of

the Company which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

principally affected the results or assets or form a substantial portion

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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For the year ended 3| December 2019

45. TEMBLFE BEAFTIRE  45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
BELXREH 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

BERSHR WEARBEEZITEM None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
BE5E S the reporting period.
TREINAREER20195F K20185F12 The table below shows details of the non-wholly-owned subsidiary
AIBBEBERFERERNELE of the Group that has material non-controlling interests as at 3|
Loy YN = December 2019 and 2018;
WHERE
BUIREE F&RE2019F EFREHD 2019F R it
MELFER CEXRHRE REREESL HEH(ER) FRERED
Place of Profit (loss)
establishment Percentage allocated ~ Accumulated
and principal of equity to non- non-
place of attributable to controlling controlling
Name of subsidiary business the Group interests interests
2019 2019 2019
% FET FET
% HK$’000 HK$’000
ERAE FE 55 1,066 50,934
Longyuan Benxi PRC
FIEERERMERNL SERRNEA R (11,239) (9,743)

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling
interests

(10,173) 41,191
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BLEEH 2
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

20185 A
KUIRETE  AKRENI18F  EFERER 2018%F Rt
i) PACIE=E REXHE FAERERSL R (BR) SRS
Place of Profit (loss)
establishment Percentage allocated Accumulated
and principal of equity to non- non-—
place of attributable to controlling controlling
Name of subsidiary business the Group interests interests
2018 2018 2018
% TET TET
% HK$000 HK$ 000
ERAE FE 55 912 51,802
Longyuan Benxi PRC
RIFERESEM AR L N ERNME R
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling
interests (10,533) 1,302
(9.621) 53,104

TSI A S B A B R I B = Y
BLRMPBER - TR EE
HASEANAREMENSHE-

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiary
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The

summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intergroup eliminations.
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

BoX®H ) SUBSIDIARIES,ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)
REFE Longyuan Benxi
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
RBEE Current assets 41,024 30,847
FEREBEE Non-current assets 85,898 96,468
mBEE Current liabilities (4,804) (3,069)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities (8,931) (9,130)
ERAZHEA A Equity attributable to owners of
FE 15 AR 12 Longyuan Benxi 62,253 63,314
ERRREFEERE R Non-controlling interests of
Longyuan Benxi 50,934 51,802
BE2019¥F B 220185
12A31BLFE 12A318 EF &
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2019 31712/2018
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Wzs Revenue 26,413 25,438
FE s A Profit for the year 2,369 2,028
BERAEEA AEI Profit and total comprehensive income
FEHRMEZEKA for the year attributable to owners of
FE] Longyuan Benxi 1,303 1116
BRANEFEZERER Profit and total comprehensive income
FE A5 £ [ )5 M| ]2 for the year attributable to non-controlling
FHRAERE interests of Longyuan Benxi 1,066 912
ENERAZIFZR Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of
Bk e Longyuan Benxi 797 1,282

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#
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EE20/9F 12431 H1EF &
For the year ended 3| December 20/9

46. ELFMBRRRZEH 46. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
RRERRRARMBIRAKZ (a) Information about the statement of financial position of the
EX e Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2019 2018
FET BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERDEE Non-current assets
ER NG Property, plant and equipment 748 1,098
EREEE Right-of-use asset 1,390 =
B Bl e Interests in subsidiaries 158,512 560917
160,650 562,015
mEEE Current assets
H i i W 3K Other receivables 4,564 [,790
& W Bft B 7 B3R Amount due from a subsidiary 23,608 36,109
WITHEHB LIRS Bank balances and cash 23,739 4861
501,911 42,760
mEAR Current liabilities
g5 R EHAMERN Trade and other payables 3,360 3,660
MERE Lease liabilities 1,420 -
4,780 3,660
mEEE R Net current assets 47,131 39,100
RERH Net assets 207,781 601,115
BERER Capital and reserves
R Share capital 436,900 436,900
-1 (Deficit) reserves (229,119) 164,215
RBRdE Total equity 207,781 601,115
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2201912431 A 1F F &
For the year ended 3| December 2019

46. XLFIMBERARZCEH

(&)

) ARRENERZHIERS
&

R2018FI1A1B At | January 2018

REEBEK Loss and total
PHMXBR comprehensive

expense for the year

46. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Information about the movement of reserves of the Company

during the year includes:

B {5 & R Lo delN ] Rt BN aa
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
S FET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
2,732,397 86,971 (1,358,154) 1,461,214

- - (1296999)  (1,296999)

2018 128318 At 31 December 2018 2,732,397 86,971 (2,655,153) 164,215
REEBEK Loss and total
2HAXRE comprehensive
expenses for the year = = (393,334) (393,334)
2019 12318 At 31 December 2019 2,732,397 86,971 (3,048,487) (229,119)

7. RERMEER

20205 4] B R B BB E20195
HKRE([FEMHL]) TELEEZE
Bl - & BB RE R 1T 2 B iE e &
HRTT PR 1 3 A8 5 B2020F2 B AR 945
EENEETE BAAKEZKES
ERFERES BAREZ Bk
B/ REMMIRFE - ARABFASB
Il % 15 2 A i X BN &) 9 1 AR 0 1 A -
REBRERR2020F2 A EIZEE -
REBER200FIARET -ERE
BREROBEERURRARERHT
T8 R (B BB A R3S b A
MAMEITEERE RIEHE) AEEERE
DABERTHARSEX BT
2 MmEERTE BABERBRER
SECGEMBREZR -

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

47. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") in the
PRC and Hong Kong and spread across different countries in early
2020. The subsequent quarantine measures as well as the travel
restrictions imposed by the government of various countries have
had a negative impact on the operations of the Group since February
2020, as most of the Group's operations are located in the PRC
and Hong Kong and the major suppliers/customers of the Group
are located in the PRC. The Group has had to stop its operation in
February 2020 due to mandatory government quarantine measures
in an effort to contain the spread of the epidemic. The Group had
resumed its operation since March 2020. Given the dynamic nature
of these circumstances and unpredictability of future development,
including government policies and measures in response to COVID-19,
the management of the Group is still unable to estimate the potential
financial impact to the Group and the actual effects, if any, will be
reflected in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the future.



MERHIRR

BENAALEE
Year ended 31 December
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
TET FET FAET TAR TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
(& =5)
(Restated)
(Hit) (HiE)
(Note) (Note)
FREERE Continuing operations
= Turnover 2,616,696 2415211 263,414 59,116 38,307
BEAER (B#B)  Profit (loss) before taxation 74,854 94,131 (228,252) (1,233464) (991,868)
HE Taxation (2701 (12367) (5,165) (580) (3,770)
RECEEBELR  Profit (loss) for the
REE RN year from continuing
(B#8) operations 72,153 81,764 (233417) (1,234,044) (995,638)
BREREEBESE  Loss for the year from
MAFEBR discontinued operation - (2,440) (14531) (96,102) (59.841)
AEFEM (BR)  Profit (loss) for the year 72,153 79324 (247948)  (1330.146)  (1,055479)
Hiet - BDREEEREBERCEEBNE Note:  Included results of Energy Storage and Related Products operation whereby its
BB EEBRWI9FENE operation was classified as discontinued operation in 2019.The results of 2018 has
RIS IEEE RS 0I8FHEED been restated to conform to the presentation of 2019.
EXRY E019F 2 25—
Ho
®12A318
At 31 December
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
FAET FET TET TER TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RERAR ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
BELE Total assets 5,698,802 6,322,715 5,845,669 4274430 3,131,967
BELE Total liabilities (3,449,874) (4,112,552) (3744791 (3571273)  (3,482,754)
BEFHE(8F) Net assets (liabilities) 2,248,928 2210,163 2,100,878 703,157 (350,787)
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2020 AGM" the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 12 June
2020
[ 44 ] ARRBEWI9FNAIRLEFENFERE

“Annual Report”

the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019

[E72] ARrEEER (BTKER])

“Articles” the articles of association of the Company as amended from time to time

[ Astrotech | Astrotech Group Limited" REBERRHSEMKX LN ERARL AKX
b 2 & K1 B A A

“Astrotech” Astrotech Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT

k73 Gl ARBINEZBAIEE - BERT S 5HATT

“Auditor” the external auditor of the Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

[BE%ZE®T
"Audit Committee”

EXZ2ENREZES
the Audit Committee of the Board

[E£g] ARREFE

“Board” the board of director(s) of the Company

[N BB E NSRRI TER R BRI AR AR A RAER RS
BEMAMBREERR2EHRS

“CALT" B3 A ST R T A 3T BT (China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology ) ,
a company established in the PRC which is wholly-owned by Bl fi X B % &
& 72 A (China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation ) , the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company

[ A48 REMAMKRERAR RPEKIANRFLBAR B REERAR

“CASC” F B i K B & B A 7] (China Aerospace Science and Technology
Corporation), a company established in the PRC and the ultimate controlling
Shareholder of the Company

[ARaE] China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (Bl A EREIR (£H)
BRAFY) RNASHEEMKINERAR EEFRBRAER L
(B A% 01185)

“Company” China Energine International (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the securities of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01 185)



[ARDA]

“Companies Law"

[EEERSFAI
"CG Code”

[ B

“China” or “"PRC"

(%]
“Director(s)"

[ESGH % |
“ESG Report”

[REE ][]

“GI”OU[D”, oF “we” or “us”

[B)
“HK”

(&)
“Hong Kong"

[ARER]

“IM Composite Material”

[ARFRER

“IM New Energy"

G
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HERBAREENE (—AAN—FEIRWEH KH5a k) (BTK
BaT WA RAE A A e E)

The Companies Law (Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman lIslands) as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

EHRAIM ST mAE AR E AT A

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules

REARAME ERAFHENE TEREE PEARKMEIRME
RITTHR & & &

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report
only, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's
Republic of China and Taiwan

ARAES
director(s) of the Company

ARARE HERELRE

the environmental, social and governance report of the Company

ARAREME AT

the Company and its subsidiaries

BRAEERET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

REARANBEEERRITHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’'s Republic of
China

AREMABRESHMHERLDA] RPBEAREEREMKILALRLD
AR 56.4 1% 55 KO Y /8 2 B

NEREMABEREESMEBEBER A EF ( Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Material Co. Ltd. ), a subsidiary of the Company as to 56.41%
equity established in Ulangab City, Inner Mongolia, the PRC

AEEMABRMERAEGRRF RRARARFERNTHSHEMK
URNEEME AR

NEEMAERMNEERFEBRLQAF ( Inner Mongolia Energine New
Energy Development Co. Ltd. ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
established in Ulangab City, Inner Mongolia, the PRC
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[ £ Rl
“Listing Rules”

Eg A
“Model Code”

[fetZEQ

“Nomination Committee”

[HMZEE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[R&H ]
“Reporting Period”

[ARE]
“RMB"” or “Renminbi”

[ 7 R & ]
“SFO"

Nigrll
“Share(s)"

AR ]
“Shareholder(s)"

[ Bt 32 Ffr |
“Stock Exchange”

*EHES

* for identification purposes only

TEMABRER (SE)ERADT o 2019F#

BEEMARSIMERARES LHRA
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

EHRAMET A LM ETAEZETELF I FNRETE
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out

in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules

EXgR%ZBe

the Nomination Committee of the Board

EXeyMEzEe

the Remuneration Committee of the Board

BE-_T-NF+-RA=1+—-HLFE
the year ended 31 December 2019

FEAEER
the lawful currency of the PRC

BEREPIESTI ER S BB ED (B TIRERT MR RAEMT A ER)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AR BBAT B EEC. 07 TTH B
share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company

BORHEA
the holder(s) of Shares

BEEMARSMAERRAT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited



CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
FEMXBRER(ER)ERAA

Tel E5F : (852) 2586 1185
Fax & : (852) 2531 0088
Email E  : energine@energine.hk

Website #3k : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFBEB18NTIRERITBITOE
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